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INTRODUCTION

North Shore Community College’s Fifth-Year Interim Report has come at an opportune time as the College
celebrates its 50t anniversary and welcomes Dr. Patricia Gentile, the College’s fourth president, who
began her tenure in January 2014. Preparing the report has enabled the College to collectively assess
its institutional successes and challenges since the 2009 comprehensive self-study and at the same time
spotlight future directions for the College.

Drafting the report was an all-college enterprise which began in September 2013. At a meeting of the
College’s faculty and staff, the report’'s parameters and timeline were presented. Some faculty and
staff volunteered to serve on committees while other members were approached to ensure balanced
representation across committees. This all-college process involved more than seventy-five people,
half of whom were faculty and professional staff. The development of the report was coordinated by
three co-chairs: an English Department faculty member, a professional staff member from Student
Enrollment Services, and an academic dean. Complementing each other’s talents, the “triumvirate” worked
collaboratively in sharing responsibilities and monitoring progress.

Members of the College involved in writing, reviewing, and guiding the report were structured into three
tiers:

e The Leadership Team was made up of the co-chairs and administrators who evaluated, made
decisions, and kept the report progress on target.

e The Steering Committee was composed of the co-chairs and the chairs of all subcommittees and
provided a balanced perspective for the report.

o The Subcommittees wrote the majority of the report. They collected and analyzed data and then
drafted and revised the segments of the report related to their Standards, including the areas of
emphasis.

In preparation for their work, all committee members were given a packet of materials that included
NEASC’s Standards for Accreditation. Additionally, all committee members were invited to attend a
workshop by Dr. Robert Froh. Report updates were shared with the College community throughout the
academic year at Coordinating Council meetings (the principal governance committee at the College),
Faculty/Staff meetings, and Board of Trustees meetings. Information was also provided in The Bulletin, the
College’s weekly newsletter. Further, a Google site was created to allow all faculty and staff, including those
not on a committee, to read drafts and participate directly.

To provide consistency and coherence, a retired faculty member, who has participated in previous NSCC
accreditation efforts, served as editor, working closely with the three co-chairs throughout the writing
process. An administrative assistant provided support to the editor and the co-chairs, while also creating
and managing the Google site.

Co-Chairs

Lisa Altomari, English Professor

Aillie J. McKeever, Disability Counselor

Laura M. Ventimiglia, Dean for Academic Assessment and Curriculum, Retired

The Leadership Team
Patricia A. Gentile, President



Maureen S. O’Neill, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs; now Dean of Academic Affairs Special
Projects

Karen A. Hynick, Current Vice President for Academic Affairs

Donna L. Richemond, Vice President for Student Enrollment Services; now Executive Director
CommUniverCity/Lynn Chief Officer

Janice M. Forsstrom, Vice President for Administration and Finance

Madeline P. Wallis, Vice President for Human Resource Development

Sandra B. Edwards, Vice President for Institutional Advancement

Laurie J. LaChapelle, Director of Planning and Institutional Research

Steering Committee

Michael Badolato, Dean of Academic Technology

Linda A. Brantley, Director of Public Relations & New Media

Patricia Brown Viall, Dean of Business Sciences

Stephen J. Creamer, Dean of Student Financial Services

Andrea C. DeFusco-Sullivan, Director of Center for Teaching, Learning, and Assessment
Gary Ham, Chief Information Officer for Information Systems

Laurie J. LaChapelle, Director of Planning & Research

Daniel O’Neill, Director of Student Support & Advising

Maureen S. O’Neill, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs; now Dean of Academic Affairs Special
Projects

Dianne Palter Gill, Dean of Workforce Development & Community Education

Karen L. Pangallo, Director of Library

Saradha Ramesh, Senior Special Programs Coordinator/Academic Assessment

Richard R. Reney, Assistant Vice President of Facilities

Donna L. Richemond, Vice President of Student Enrollment Services; now Executive Director
CommUniverCity/Lynn Chief Officer

Mariflor T. Uva, Assistant Vice President of Budget/Planning

Madeline P. Wallis, Vice President of Human Resource Development

Editor
Philip A. Sbharatta, Professor Emeritus of English

Administrative Assistant
Kristen Ercha

NSCC Fifth-Year Report



INSTITUTIONAL OVERVIEW

North Shore Community College (NSCC), founded in 1965 as the seventh community college in the fifteen
college system of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, serves nineteen primary service area cities
and towns and another 10-15 secondary communities with four campuses in both urban and suburban
communities in the center of the North Shore region. Providing comprehensive transfer, career, and
vocational instruction, NSCC offers seventy-eight credit certificate and degree programs across five
divisions: Business Sciences, Health Professions, Human Services, Liberal Studies, and Math, Science &
Engineering. The College schedules credit and non-credit courses during the day and evening, as well as
offering weekend and online programming. NSCC serves its students with an array of support services from
advising to tutoring, disability services, and career placement. To facilitate transfer to the baccalaureate,
the College maintains more than 194 articulation agreements with area colleges and universities as well as
participation in the Mass Transfer block, guaranteeing full transfer of credits to qualified students within
the State system of colleges and universities.

With a diverse student body that is more than 35% minority, NSCC's students reflect the shifting
demographics of its region. The College educates more than 11,000 credit students annually, in more than
2,600 course sections, and offers noncredit community and workforce programming to an additional 5,000
students each year. Since its founding, the College has served more than 220,000 North Shore residents
and conferred degrees and certificates to more than 36,000 alumni.

NSCC is governed by an eleven member Board of Trustees appointed by the Commonwealth’s Governor.
With five-year terms, Trustees are volunteers with no financial or business interest in the College.
Additionally, a private Foundation Board of twenty members provides support for the institution. Internally,
the College boasts a highly active governance system consisting of nine committees overseen by a
Coordinating Council. Cross component committee membership is composed of appointed and elected
members who serve for limited terms.

As NSCC prepares to celebrate its golden anniversary, many changes have occurred since the last NEASC
visit. Significantly, the College has welcomed its fourth President, Dr. Patricia A. Gentile, and within this
academic year, a new Vice President for Academic Affairs, Dr. Karen A. Hynick, was hired replacing the
retired long-serving Vice President Mr. Paul M. Frydrych. Simultaneously, the College has embarked on its
new Strategic Plan, Pathways, Partnership, Performance . .. Leading the Way.

From its founding, NSCC has engaged in “space wars,” often hunting for space in storefronts, abandoned
buildings, and church basements to deliver instruction while awaiting a permanent campus. After many
false starts, the College opened its first permanent campus in Lynn in 1985, twenty years after it began
offering instruction. Nearly twenty years after that, the College opened its full-service campus in Danvers.
Today, NSCC has expanded its Danvers campus and expects to build an addition to the Lynn Campus. The
spark of new leadership and the thrust of a new Strategic Plan provides a framework for advancement as
the College progresses through the second decade of the 21st century and prepares for the next NEASC
decennial visit. What remains constant amid planned for and, on occasion, unpredictable change is
NSCC’s vision: “North Shore Community College will be a catalyst for personal, community, and regional
change through education, training, and civic engagement. The College will serve as a beacon of hope and
opportunity for an increasingly diverse student body and be a respected, full partner with other public and
private organizations seeking better lives for North Shore residents and a vibrant future for the region.”
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AREAS OF SPECIAL EMPHASIS
MASTER PLANNING

Fundamental to North Shore Community College’s strategic growth and development is a comprehensive
set of master improvement plans. In the recent past, the College’s Master Plan has consisted of three
interlocking components: the Danvers Consolidation Study by DiMella Shaffer, the Regional Master Plan
by Sasaki Associates, and the Lynn Expansion Plan by Shepley Bulfinch. While individual components have
been initiated at different times and for different purposes, each plan has addressed common needs and
goals articulated in NSCC's Strategic Plan. Over the past five years, the College has implemented particular
elements of the Master Plan, working with the Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance
(DCAMM) and using contracted architectural/engineering firms for smaller ancillary projects.

The Danvers Consolidation Study (2008) focused on bringing together health programs and animal science,
which were dispersed on the Danvers and Essex Aggie campuses, into a new health building on the Danvers
campus, replacing inadequate and outdated facilities. The impetus for this study as a priority was a plan to
build a new regional Voc Tech high school on the site of the current Essex Agricultural and Technical High
School, which would displace those programs completely. Secondly, the study examined the consolidation
of enrollment services and student support services into an all-inclusive Student Services Center within the
proposed new facility. As part of the study process, attention was given to the re-use/backfill of space being
vacated by the health programs and student related functions.

The Study resulted in the construction of the Health Professions and Student Services Building, which began
in May of 2009. A 58,700 square foot state-of-the-art facility was funded with $31.9M from the State’s
capital spending plan authorized by the 2008 Higher Education Bond Bill. The building has specialty labs and
sophisticated simulation labs for nurse education, practical nursing, respiratory therapy, medical assisting,
occupational therapy assistant, physical therapy assistant, radiological technician, surgical technician,
and animal science. Equally important, the consolidated student services are strategically located near
the entrances to the building for heightened visibility and ease of access. Reflecting NSCC’s sustainability
initiatives, the building is the first “zero net energy building” built by the Commonwealth—defined as a
building “that is optimally efficient, and over the course of a year, generates energy onsite, using clean
renewable resources in a quantity equal to or greater than the total amount of energy consumed onsite.”

The opening of the Health Professions and Student Services Building in November 2011 enabled the College
to move most programs housed in the Essex Aggie campus except for the Culinary Arts and Cosmetology
programs because of their specialized space and licensing requirements. For the better part of a year,
the College in conjunction with Higher Education Partners (HEP) sought a location in Lynn to house
these programs. Despite intensive efforts, the agreement was not workable. Consequently, the College
terminated its agreement with HEP and began exploring alternative solutions.

In July 2014, President Gentile signed a lease agreement for 12,360 square feet of space at the North
Shore Business Center in Middleton, formerly North Shore Voc Tech High School, for NSCC's Culinary Arts
and Cosmetology programs. This is a short-term solution that will provide a temporary location for both
programs for one to three years and allows continuation of the programs with new student admissions, but
with a reduced number being served. Cosmetology was reduced from 40 to 25 students; Culinary Arts was
reduced from 100 to about 50 students. This location is 3.5 miles from the Danvers campus and the College
is actively working with the private developer that purchased the site to build out according to program
needs. Upon signing the lease agreement, renovation started immediately on the site in preparation for
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opening in October 2014. (NSCC’s substantive change report provides further details.)

As the College completes an update to the Master Plan, anticipated in 2014-2015 academic year, the
process will include a program review and facilities update for the Lynn Campus. It is anticipated that the
long-term placement of the Culinary Arts and Cosmetology programs will be included in this Master Plan
with a focus on building appropriate facility space at the Lynn Campus.

The Regional Master Plan (2007) conducted by Sasaki Associates gathered and analyzed information
and data relative to all of the College’s campus locations, resulting in a prioritized set of capital projects.
Conducted around the same time as the Danvers Consolidation Study, it corroborated the need for new
construction in Danvers. At the same time, the Regional Master Plan, considering data of earlier studies
and analysis by Eva Klein & Associates and Rickes Associates, concluded that the existing Lynn campus
facilities required expansion of classrooms and spaces for student life and student services. The plan also
recommended modernization, renovation, “right-sizing” of classrooms and the reassignment of spaces
within the existing McGee building. Following analysis of data and input from college constituencies, a plan
emerged recommending a 56,620 square foot facility, which would enable the vacating of the MBTA leased
space. Following the completion of the Lynn Study in April 2014, the State approved 520.7M for expansion
and renovation of the Lynn Campus; this Lynn campus expansion and renovation study was necessary
before the funding would be authorized and the project included in the Massachusetts five-year capital
spending plan.

The College is also funding a project with DCAMM to update to the Facilities Regional Master Plan of
2007.That process will be conducted from October 2014 to May 2015 and will update the Master Plan with
a focus on the remaining space at the Lynn campus, planning for the future of college facilities for the next
ten years including the CommUniverCity concept (Further discussed in Standard One)..

The Lynn Expansion Plan (2012) is an outgrowth of the preceding facilities development plans. To expedite
the planning process, the NSCC Board of Trustee authorized $375K to fund the required project study. With
the assistance of DCAMM and the Designer Selection Board, Shepley Bulfinch was selected as the study/
design consultant for the Lynn expansion project. Based on a year-long assessment, the Lynn Expansion
Plan identifies the need for an additional 78,000 square feet and renovation of approximately 43% of the
existing McGee Building. Because of funding limitations, however, a multiphase approach was developed.
The first phase is the construction of a 28,000 gross sq. ft. addition. The design phase has begun; actual
construction is expected to begin Spring 2015 with completion and occupancy projected for Fall 2016.
These improvements will add instructional space, relocate services for efficiency, and alleviate cramped
offices and support functions. Because of steadfast efforts by the College leadership, the first phase of the
Lynn Expansion has been included in the State’s capital spending plan.

Integral to master planning initiatives, the College has put in place its “Green Building Policy,” which
requires that all facilities be designed, rehabilitated/renovated, constructed, managed, and maintained
in a sustainable fashion. The policy further states that all new buildings meet LEED Silver standards and
that reasonable efforts should be made “to meet higher LEED rating levels.” In keeping with that policy,
the recently completed Health Professions and Student Services Building has been certified at the LEED
Gold level. Again, as part of its commitment to a culture of sustainability, the College has initiated its
“Environmentally Preferable Products — Energy Star Policy”. The goals of this policy are to reduce waste,
minimize environmental impacts, purchase products that reduce greenhouse gases, use recycled content,
and require the purchase of energy-efficient Energy Star certified products.
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Aligning with Master Plan implementation are several small-scale but important facilities upgrades and
systems maintenance with services and expertise provided by regional firms; for example, renovating
and reconfiguring space to house a Veterans Center on the Danvers campus, upgrading the energy
management system, and upgrading the fire alarm systems. Many projects support sustainability initiatives
such as installing solar panels at the McGee and Berry buildings, replacement of inefficient motors,
installation of variable frequency drives, replacement of electric heat with a gas system, the replacement of
two chillers, and the replacement of roof top units.

As part of the College’s process of continuous planning, priorities are established and synchronized with
fiscal considerations. In this way, the College can allocate appropriate funds to realize critical improvements
while at the same time finding alternatives to accomplish tasks that are less complex and costly. This
balance enables the College to advance its major strategic initiatives and yet remain fiscally responsible.

APPROPRIATE STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES

In order to assure “appropriate student support services for all students, including online students, with
particular emphasis on library and information resources and services,” North Shore Community College
has moved forward on several fronts. The reporting structure for tutoring services has been changed,
moving from Student Enrollment Services to Academic Affairs, aligned with the Libraries to provide
comprehensive academic support. Tutoring Centers exist at both the Lynn and the Danvers campuses. Since
the 2009 NEASC visit, e-tutoring has been made available for students to supplement online courses. E-
writing papers are uploaded and returned within 24 hours. E-questions are answered within 8-10 hours.
Synchronous sessions are available for different subjects as scheduled. The e-tutoring vendor, CTDLC.org
(Connecticut Distance Learning Consortium), tracks student use, tutor performance, and response turn-
around time and provides the college these statistics. Since 2011, use of e-tutoring has seen approximately
a 50% increase. TutorTrac, an online product used to monitor and track student success by connecting to
Banner, is also being considered to ensure that students, whether on campus or online, have improved
access to services that support their success and achievement. Tutoring services will be assessed for their
effectiveness under Academic Affairs by analyzing data reflected in the use of both centers as well as the
proposed adoption of TutorTrac.

With the adoption of new online resources and services, the Library assures all students access to the full
range of Library services. With an emphasis on access, the Library considers the adoption of innovative
online student support services through a variety of professional resources, which are tested through
trial subscriptions or pilot programs. Trials and pilots are assessed by usage statistics and by discussions
between academic department chairs, faculty, and the library liaisons to each academic department. These
discussions and evaluations determine the adoption of a new resource product. LibGuides is an excellent
example of a new product that was extremely well-received by faculty, students and librarians and is
now a standard practice in every information literacy class. Another example of evaluating resources, as
determined by a program’s national or regional accrediting board, resulted in the transition away from
paralegal print resources to online paralegal resources, as endorsed by the American Bar Association. As
with all Library resources, Library staff will monitor the access data and promote the use of these resources,
especially to the specific academic departments. (The Library and information resources are fully addressed
in the Standard 7 narrative).

Importantly, databases and electronic resources serve all NSCC library users, on and off-campus, via a proxy
server (EZproxy) provided by NOBLE (North of Boston Library Exchange). All NSCC users are authenticated
by their NSCC ID barcode, which the proxy server recognizes and allows users with remote access to web-
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based licensed databases. Some library resources are located behind the local network, Pipeline, and are
accessed by the NSCC username and password login to Pipeline. Currently, the Library subscribes to 105
distinct databases, including e-articles, e-books, online reference books, downloadable audiobooks, and
streaming videos. This is a 65% increase since 2009, when the Library subscribed to 69 online resources.
The persistent links functionality allows librarians, students, and educators to copy, bookmark, or email a
persistent URL to incorporate electronic resources into the learning management system’s courses. All of
the Library’s online resources are evaluated by appraising usage statistics and accrediting needs. Moreover,
through the statewide Virtual Catalog, as well as the Library’s participation in the nation-wide OCLC, and
the NOBLE interlibrary loan process, all patrons can now make their own online requests for books, videos,
and DVDs. Interlibrary loans, where the NSCC Library is the net borrower, increase yearly as measured by
usage data.

Expanding access to support and services, the Library catalog, databases, and electronic resources are
optimized for mobile devices. This year the Library developed information to be included in the Ellucian
Go app for the college. The Library participates in Web 2.0 sharing, allowing linking through social media
networks and with online bookmarking tools. An FAQ was created and made available on the Library
homepage for distance learning students who have questions about accessing the Library resources from
off-campus. In addition, e-mail reference service and an online chat service are available on the Library
homepage, and information literacy instruction is also offered through an online tutorial and video tutorials
on the NSCC Library YouTube channel. Usage of all new resources offered through the Library web page is
assessed in periodic Google Analytics summaries.

Supporting student diversity, document translators, new since 2009, in approximately thirty languages
are a feature of most of the Library’s databases. For students with various learning styles, the new
online databases offer media-rich content, including images, audio portions, streaming videos, maps and
interactive resources. Additionally, nearly every online resource provides text-to-speech technology for
visually impaired patrons and for struggling readers; and the streaming video collection is either closed-
captioned or provides a written transcript.

To support online learners, Academic Technology offers online technical support for accessing campus
information services and, up until recently, provided ANGEL Learning Management System support for
assistance with online courses. In FY14, the college searched for a new LMS. Faculty and staff were asked
to participate in “sandbox” trials to assess a variety of LMS products. Overall consensus determined that
Blackboard will be the new LMS and a plan for migration is in place for the next academic year. Academic
Technology plans to pilot Blackboard in the Fall 2014 semester with 15-20 faculty. During the pilot,
feedback will be solicited from the faculty and students on the system interface set up, ease of use, and
types of support needed.

Academic Technology Staff has developed and launched Online Learning 101, a free, self-paced online
course to orient students to online learning at NSCC. This course was developed in response to a 2012-
2013 faculty survey where faculty indicated students were not prepared to take courses delivered online.
The goal of the course is to guide students through what is needed to succeed in online courses. During
the spring 2014 pilot semester of Online Learning 101, a survey of student satisfaction was conducted.
The results confirmed the usefulness of the course and students’ comments were used to improve the
course by maintaining the most beneficial resources and eliminating others. Following several semesters
of implementation, Academic Technology Staff will again survey faculty teaching online to see if they have
perceived a difference in how prepared students are to take online courses and compare student data
before and after implementation. Moreover, Atomic Learning, which is available through Pipeline, provides
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online training in various facets of campus technology. Through Atomic Learning, students have access to a
collection of nearly 50,000 step-by-step technology tutorials on over 200 applications. These tutorials can
be used by students to answer their how-to technology questions or learn a particular software program.
Within the first year of implementation of Atomic Learning, the total number of tutorials and workshops
viewed by the NSCC community was 6,501. Academic Technology will continue to monitor the access data
and to promote the use of this resource.

The College has made significant progress in providing a network of support through its portal, including
advising, career services, textbook purchases, tutoring, and general college information. Student support
services have transitioned to enable a significant level of assistance online so that all students have a just-
in-time response to their inquiries and needs.

ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT LEARNING

The commitment to assessment and improvement at North Shore Community College is pervasive and
varied with the College community collectively working toward the shared goal of student achievement.
Since 2009, the college has actualized a General Education Outcomes Assessment Program. Further,
through its work with individual faculty in classroom workshops, to department and program assessment
team projects, to participation in regional and multi-state assessment pilots, NSCC has made clear, varied,
and deep commitments to assessment as a means of both faculty development and tangible improvement
in all levels of student outcomes. Coordinating assessment efforts, the Center for Teaching, Learning and
Assessment (CTLA) has become a resource hub both for the support of academic professionals and for
endeavors essential to the continued assessment of student learning.

Spurred by vigorous self-examination and the recommendations of educational consultants such as Dr.
Peggy Maki, the CTLA, along with a team of faculty and staff, has restructured the assessment program to
achieve a collaborative framework, tailored to the particular needs of individual departments / programs
and enabling free-flowing communication and enhanced interaction among faculty. (A comprehensive
analysis of the assessment program is contained in the Reflective Essay).

As part of this restructuring effort, in 2012 a team of one dozen faculty members from the five credit
academic divisions, one instructor from the noncredit academic division, and six staff members from
support services formed a GenEd Assessment Team, with the purpose of formulating an effective
assessment strategy to document the five fundamental GenEd outcomes underpinning all programs of
study. An important first step, the team drafted an Assessment Assurance Policy and the first institution-
wide assessment model, articulating the steps of the assessment process, data gathering, and data analysis.
To promote dialog, the team created an ANGEL website subheading called “GenEd Assessment” as a forum
for open discussion and sharing resources about assessment overall yet with an emphasis on developing
and refining the institution-wide GenEd assessment program. (Please note: the General Education
Outcomes at NSCC are considered Institutional Student Learning Outcomes [ISLOs] herein called GenEd
Outcomes.)

In the following semester, Spring 2013, the team and the CTLA staff designed a GenEd Assessment pilot
study of two GenEd Outcomes: Critical Thinking and Writing Skills using VALUE rubrics to assess students’
work. The pilot study focused on four goals: 1) raising faculty awareness about the assessment program;
2) using the knowledge gained by the pilot studies to make recommendations about the next college-wide
assessment of outcomes; 3) promoting the assessment program; and 4) encouraging new assessment
representatives to join the team. An appraisal of the pilot study by GenEd Assessment Team members
and faculty participants resulted in a refined institution-wide assessment model and the Assessment
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Assurance Policy which serves as a guide for assessment going forward. Additionally, feedback from
participants has helped the CTLA to devise guidelines and workshops to assist faculty in enhancing their
assessment strategies. This First Pilot Study provided practice in selecting metrics that would produce the
most instructive data, and most importantly, was preparation for the College’s Second Institutional Gentd
Assessment.

Assessment occurs at all levels of NSCC's collective work. On the macro level, the CTLA is continuing its
work by conducting a Second Pilot to assess three NSCC GenEd outcomes by adding Quantitative Reasoning
to Critical Thinking and Writing Skills. With this assessment study, NSCC is concurrently participating in
the Second Statewide Pilot Assessment Program. The NSCC team, along with multi-college teams from all
regions of Massachusetts, have joined a SHEEO-led multistate collaborative via which all institutions will
share data and best practices in the three GenEd outcome areas. The work of individuals in the CTLA has
been recognized on the statewide level, and accordingly, staff members have been asked to share expertise
with the Massachusetts Assessment Professional Development Network (MAPDN) and join the DHE's newly
formed Civic Learning Data Collection Team.

On the institutional level, acknowledging the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education’s recent
focus on the GenEd outcome of Civic Learning, the CTLA is spearheading the launch of a Civic Learning
Committee, which will welcome faculty, staff, administration, students, and community members. The
work of the Civic Learning Committee will provide a baseline assessment of the college’s engagement in
curricula-rooted Civic Learning, transparency of and guidance for activities as well as ongoing assessment
and reporting. The CTLA also welcomes a Civic Learning Graduate Fellow for 2014-2015 to assist in
supporting civic learning initiatives and administering and recording metrics.

NSCC remains immersed in an interdepartmental assessment of Writing Skills. Contributing to the
assessment framework, e-portfolios, and support of Universal Design for Learning have been instituted,
so that faculty will have more tools with which to empower students. Finally, CTLA staff continue
to systematically collaborate with, and advise constituents in self-studies of all academic programs,
departments, and student support departments. All interested faculty and staff (full and part time) are
invited to this initiative. Through this multipronged approach, the CTLA provides the resource infrastructure
for advancing faculty development, teaching and learning—and thus, student success—via assessment.

The use of assessment activities to inform institutional planning as it relates to student achievement
has increased since 2009. Most notably has been the inclusion in strategic multi-year and annual plans
to develop an assessment program of GenEd Outcomes and an ongoing process to review and modify
these outcomes with a goal of providing all students in liberal arts and career courses and programs the
ability to think analytically and creatively, solve problems, and clearly express and defend an idea. Further,
a key priority in planning is to strengthen the culture of assessment and continuous improvement to
ensure effectiveness of programs and services. Under the guidance of new Presidential and Executive
Staff leadership, greater strides are also being made towards aligning assessment of student and graduate
educational gains with resource allocation.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES

As the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education has established increased accountability measures
and has created systemic directions for community colleges, the role and responsibilities of the local Board
of Trustees have become integral to the College’s advancement. Both individually and as a group, the
trustees participate in college-wide initiatives and events; and they are included in grant development,
workforce training, career advisory boards, and Alumni Association activities. Trustees are also actively
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engaged in representing the College and advocating for its support on a local and state level. Of particular
importance is the trustees’ direct participation in the Strategic Planning and Governance retreats with
College governance committees, faculty, and staff. Trustees, in turn, evaluate the President’s performance
related to its alignment with both the Strategic Plan and the Department of Higher Education Vision
Project.

To ensure that trustees have a strong foundation in state, local, and national issues in higher education,
a multipronged professional development program has been established. First, new trustees participate
in meetings with the President and the Board Chair when they are nominated for the Board and an
orientation process when they are appointed. On a broader scale, trustees participate in meetings and
conferences hosted by the Massachusetts Community College Trustee Association, attend biannual
meetings and serve on policy committees. Moreover, the newly established Massachusetts Office of
Trustee Relations has hosted its first Trustee Conference, with several trustees in attendance; and the
Vision Project Conference now includes a special track for trustees. On a national level, the President
and trustees attend the Association of Community College Trustees annual conference, having made
presentations at the last two events.

To provide a framework for professional development, an online self-assessment questionnaire was
designed and administered in 2011 to help Trustees define their roles and responsibilities, evaluate the
performance of the board, identify areas of improvement, and develop new strategies to enhance board
effectiveness. The evaluation included assessment of the following categories: Orientation/Education,
Trustee Responsibilities, Board Representation/Composition, Board-President Relationship, Meeting/
Committee Structure, and Monitoring Institutional Performance.

Analysis of survey results indicated: 1) the orientation process was sufficient; 2) more ongoing professional
development was needed; 3) the current structure and operations of the board were effective; 4) the
board needed more diversity; and 5) the board needed more involvement in strategic long-range planning.
Subsequently, these results formed the basis for a full-day retreat, also attended by Commissioner of
Higher Education, Dr. Richard Freeland, where survey findings were discussed and an action plan developed
for addressing board “areas of improvement.” As a result, changes have been made to the nominating
process for new trustees that address diversity through use of a board matrix and interviews are directly
linked to a more formal orientation. Professional development opportunities for trustees — at local, state,
and national levels — are encouraged and opportunities are also offered through NSCC. For example, in
September 2014 NSCC will host a Board of Trustee professional development retreat with Dr. Narcisa
Polonia from ACCT for the College’s Trustees. Trustees participate in the college’s strategic planning/
governance retreats each year. Additionally, the board meeting agenda structure now includes a report
from the Student Trustee, targeted reports on strategic directions, and monthly reports linked to the state’s
Vision Project goals and objectives.

With NSCC’s new college President, a further assessment of the board — its composition, structure, and
college agenda — will be underway in fall 2014 in collaboration with the appropriate state and local parties.
Also important to the President are measures of board affluence and influence to greater impact the
growth of the philanthropic capacity of the college.

EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES

In July of 2012, the legislature approved changes in organization and governance at community colleges
which affects colleges and local boards of trustees. Legislation created a new Office of Trustee Relations,
gave the Governor the power to appoint the Chair of the Board of Trustees, issued new guidelines and
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procedures for the search, selection, appointment, compensation, evaluation, and removal of chief
executive officers at community colleges, and charged the DHE with appointing a voting member on all
chief executive officer search committees.

At an institutional level, the NSCC Governance Subcommittee, a subcommittee of the Coordinating Council,
has taken a leadership role in assessing the current governance structure and making recommendations
for improvements in effectiveness and efficiency. The Subcommittee has worked with the eight standing
committees to review their roles and committee composition to ensure that the membership effectively
represents the College community and aligns with committee responsibilities.

To this end, governance effectiveness surveys were initiated in 2007 and are administered biannually.
An online survey is sent to all members of college governance evaluating their responsibilities across
nine categories ranging from understanding the governance process to understanding committee
responsibilities to assessing the work of the committee related to its responsibilities and communications.
The data results are shared with each committee along with comparative data for all committees. Each
committee analyzes their results and the comparative data and reports back to the Coordinating Council
with plans for improvement if needed.

Overall assessment data revealed the College community was unaware of the governance committees’
work and that communication through a blog was ineffective. As a result, the Governance Subcommittee
worked with the Public Relations Office to publish a profile of standing committee chairs and the work
of their committee in the weekly employee Bulletin. Additionally, a Governance End of Year Report
summarizes each committee’s work for the year. The report is distributed at the Governance Retreat held
in August and made available to the College community online.

Currently, the NSCC Google site houses governance minutes, agendas, survey results, and end of year
reports and allows members to communicate with each other on governance matters. The most recent
survey (2013) indicated improvements in awareness of the work of governance and the effectiveness of
governance communications as well as an overall improvement in all survey categories.

Complementing the governance effectiveness survey, comparative results from the 2009 and 2013 PACE
Survey also show improvements in the following areas:

e the extent to which the actions of this institution reflect its Mission

e the extent to which decisions are made at the appropriate level at this institution

e the extent to which [a faculty or staff member] is able to appropriately influence the direction of
this institution

e the extent to which information is shared within the institution.

This college wide data supports the governance survey data indicating improvements in awareness of the
work of college governance and the effectiveness of governance communications.

To increase governance acumen, the Governance Subcommittee conducts annual training with new
standing committee members and committee chairs to acclimate them to the governance system and their
roles and responsibilities. To enhance shared decision-making, the Governance Sub-committee proposed
changes to the operating policies and procedures statements for standing committees and the Coordinating
Council to clarify the flow of information and decisions through the College governance structure; the
changes were approved by the Coordinating Council and the faculty and staff in 2010.
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In recognition of the importance of effective governance, the College has initiated the annual Governance
Award for outstanding governance service and for ongoing participation and dedication to college
governance. The College also has established a Mini Grant of $1,000 for which standing committees may
apply to work on strategic plan goals and priorities.

Much has been accomplished to align State initiatives with College strategic planning priorities and
governance structures. For example, the annual Governance Retreat brings together Governance
Committee members, the Strategic Planning Steering Committee, and the Board of Trustees to align
strategic planning themes with governance priorities. This collaboration continues as the Vision Project,
performance funding, and the Strategic Plan continue to inform the work of the College’s governance
systems.
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STANDARD ONE — MISSION AND PURPOSES

DESCRIPTION

The cornerstone of North Shore Community College is its mission and vision, which fundamentally guide
the College in its strategic directions. In 2013, in the development of its current Strategic Plan— Pathways,
Partnerships, Performance . . . Leading the Way, the strategic planning Steering Committee and the
Coordinating Council, the College’s governance interlocutor, reviewed and discussed the College’s mission
and vision articulated in the previous Strategic Plan. It was agreed that those statements remain a powerful
expression to steer the College forward.

The Vision, noted in the Institutional Overview, expresses the College’s aspirations; while the Mission
describes the vital contribution NSCC makes to an ever changing and global society.

Table 1: NSCC Mission

North Shore Community College is a source of hope and opportunity and a regional leader for social and
economic change. Blending tradition and innovation, liberal arts and career preparation, intellectual
development and career and personal growth, we foster a diverse and caring community of learners
where all are welcome and each is challenged. We offer lifelong education responsive to changing
community needs, a global economy, evolving technology and the shifting roles faced by individuals
and institutions. Our greatest contribution to the Commonwealth is the success and achievement of our
students.

Aligned with the College’s Mission and Vision, Pathways, Partnerships and Performance ... Leading the Way
is the guiding principle of NSCC's commitment to enhance student success at all levels — access to college,
retention in college and completion of education goals. NSCC is committed to enhancing what works,
strengthening areas that need improvement, and ensuring that NSCC faces its next half century as a flexible
learning organization where students come first and are supported every step of the way.

As NSCC prepares to celebrate its 50% anniversary, the College is focused on implementing its 2013-2016
Strategic Plan.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

The Mission and Vision provide the philosophical and practical underpinnings of the current strategic plan,
grounded in the core values of Pathways, Partnerships and Performance, examples which are noted below.

e Pathways — The Early College High School Initiative focuses on young people for whom the
transition into postsecondary education is now problematic. lts priority is to serve low-income
young people, first-generation college goers, English language learners, and students of color, all of
whom are statistically underrepresented in higher education. Student cohorts take college classes
both in the high school and on the college campus, in addition to a variety of supports including
Achievement Coaches and parent programming. In its third year, the program began in Lynn
Classical High School and, this year, has expanded to Lynn English High School. The effectiveness of
the program is measured by the percentage of students in each cohort who have completed college
courses while in high school and the percent who enrolled in college. The success of the program
will be measured by the number of graduates who continue on from high school to college and get
their early college credits accepted at their transfer institutions.

NSCC Fifth-Year Report 10



o Partnerships — The CommUniverCity at Lynn, initiated in June 2014 by President Gentile and
concentrated on the Lynn Campus, is an urban education-workforce development collaboration
with community leaders and organizations that will provide effective and affordable educational
pathways from pre-school to graduate school and into the workforce. The CommuUniverCity at
Lynn, by design, integrates partners - The City of Lynn, Lynn Public Schools, North Shore Workforce
Investment Board, Salem State University and the Lynn Community Health Center- into systems
alignment and leveraging of services, resources and leadership around the priorities of access
and completion with particular emphasis on targeting student engagement in navigating their
success within structured pathways. Partner organizations, through their collaboratively designed
supportive activities will be integrating the comprehensive approach to student success into their
interactions with students and the larger community. Plans to assess The CommUniverCity at
Lynn will be developed within the next three years which will allow time for the initiative to be
established.

s An example of both pathways and partnerships is the 2012 collaboration with Salem State
University resulting in a 3+1 program to enable North Shore Community College Associate Nursing
graduates to complete the Mass Transfer block and transfer to SSU to complete a Bachelor of
Nursing degree. In 2013-2014, 39 students registered for classes in the RN to BSN program; 7
have graduated and 4 of those have transferred to Salem State. This 3+1 transfer opportunity not
only provides seamless transfer to SSU, but if our graduates find other RN-BSN programs more
conducive to their schedules, they are able to apply these general education requirements to other
BSN programs.

e Performance — NSCC performance on the metrics that support the six applicable goals of the state’s
Vision Project is assessed and included in a yearly report card produced by the Department of
Higher Education. Progress on NSCC's strategic plan is evaluated annually by the Executive staff and
reported to the Coordinating Council and the board of trustees.

Prior to the comprehensive NEASC 2019 evaluation, NSCC will have already embarked on its successor
strategic planning process as well as a review of its mission and purposes including the guiding principle of
the ‘Three Ps’, positioning the College to meet the challenges that the future holds.
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STANDARD TWO — PLANNING AND EVALUATION

DESCRIPTION

North Shore Community College has a strong tradition of strategic planning and since 1983 has
continuously had a strategic plan in place. Rooted in the governance structure enacted in 1999, the
strategic planning process is directed and overseen by the Coordinating Council, a cross-component body
composed of elected and appointed members from all employee groups and departments, ensuring broad-
based participation. With guidance from a Steering Committee composed of members of the Coordinating
Council and representatives from across the institution, the strategic planning process initiated in the
fall of 2012 brought together more than 100 internal and external constituents and business partners to
review the results of the college-wide SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats) survey,
and environmental scans on trends in admissions, enrollment, graduation, labor market and workforce,
population and information technology. But in a departure from previous planning processes, the Steering
Committee incorporated two external documents, Time to Lead: the Need for Excellence in Public Higher
Education {Massachusetts Department of Higher Education) and Reclaiming the American Dream:
Community Colleges and the Nation’s Future (American Association of Community Colleges). (Please refer
to Data Form 2.1)

With a state and national focus on student success, NSCC streamlined its strategic plan with three highly
focused goals designed to emphasize completion, access, and institutional effectiveness. The outcome,
Pathways, Partnership, Performance . . . Leading the Way, corresponds directly with the Massachusetts
Department of Higher Education’s Vision Plan. Dovetailing with NSCC's own Strategic Enroliment
Management Plan, the end result is a series of initiatives, outcomes, and measures aimed at minimizing
silos, encouraging cross component cooperation with a common purpose, and achieving statewide goals of
retention, completion, achievement gap reduction, and STEM expansion.

NSCC is an institution grounded in data-driven decision-making, as evidenced by the full implementation of
the Operational Data Store (ODS), which was completed in 2010. The availability of granular student unit
record data enhanced the functional capacity of the Office of Planning & Institutional Research, which now
boasts two full time analysts in addition to a Director with more than fifteen years of experience at the
College. Database analysts have been deployed in Fiscal Affairs, Student Enrollment Services, and Academic
Affairs, delivering the capacity to handle operational data needs directly to the departments most likely to
require such information.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

In 2008, while the College was preparing its 2009 self-study report to NEASC, the Massachusetts Board of
Higher Education was folded into a Department of Higher Education, joining the Department of Elementary
and Secondary Education to become a branch of the newly formed Education Secretariat, one of eight
under Governor Deval Patrick. The result is a more comprehensive, centralized organizational structure in
terms of planning and evaluation for Massachusetts public higher education.

s At the end of the last five year strategic plan (FY2012), the executive staff evaluated the matrix of
strategies attempted and completed and determined that the number of strategies not completed
was indicative of an institution being pulled in too many directions. The executive staff also realized
that NSCC's strategic plans needed to be more focused and that a five-year plan was outdated
before being completed. A comparison of NSCC's strategic plans with institutions nationally and
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regionally showed that many institutions were developing three year plans which were more
appropriately able to address the quickly changing landscape in higher education. As a result of this

evaluation, the strategic planning cycle was trimmed from five years to three.

Table 2: 2009-2013 Strategic Plan Evaluation

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013
Strategies Attempted* 79 72 95 106 69
Strategies Completed 52 57 54 81 42
% Completed 66% 79% 57% 76% 61%
*Note: Strategies attempted are duplicated (i.e., carried over to the next year are also counted in the next year).

The 2013-2016 strategic planning effort was closely aligned with the emerging priorities of the
state’s Department of Higher Education — The Vision Project, AMCOA (Advancing a Massachusetts
Culture of Assessment), and PARCC (Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and
Careers). These initiatives, combined with the priorities of a new funding formula based on
completion and performance, became the foundation of the College’s current Strategic Plan. With
only three goals, this tightly focused plan was approved by the college-wide community in April,
2013 and by the Board of Trustees in May, 2013, for deployment in July, 2013. Having completed
its first year of implementation, its progress was evaluated and analyzed by the Executive Staff. The
analyses of results were considered in the Annual Plan for year two. The successes, results, and the
second year plan will be shared with the college community during fall 2014.

In October 2013, the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education signaled its intent to take
up its statutory responsibility to review campus-level strategic plans to ensure connection with
the State’s goals. This new approach validates the focused methodology of the executive staff
and Strategic Planning Steering Committee and underscores the importance of the Coordinating
Council’s oversight of the strategic plan. The next strategic planning cycle will commence in FY2016,
and will most likely be a different process with more oversight from the Department of Higher
Education.

With all areas of the college focused on student success, and the full implementation of the
Enterprise Data Warehouse on the horizon, the College is well positioned to utilize data trending
and dashboards to track student progress from matriculation to graduation under the guidance of
staff in the Office of Planning and Institutional Research. Within the next five years, the Executive
staff and upper level managers should have access to dashboards depicting key performance
metrics, providing them with real time assessment and facilitating the incorporation of data into
daily decision-making. The effectiveness of these dashboards will undergo continual review and
their usage will be modified to ensure they continue to reflect college and statewide initiatives.

Additionally, the Office of Planning & Institutional Research plans to create and monitor an
intranet website to annually post non-academic department assessment activities. That site, or an
additional site, will also be used to host the results of academic program assessments, including a
schedule of academic program assessment for the year(s).

Beginning with the 2014-2015 Academic year, NSCC will develop a coordinated master academic
planning process and master strategic enrollment process. Under executive leadership, the
eventual goal is to develop academic and enrollment plans that are transparent, inform budget and
planning decisions, lead to informing and creating a related technology and facilities plan to guide
NSCC in further achieving its mission.
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STANDARD THREE — ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNANCE
DESCRIPTION

In July 2012, the legislature approved changes in organization and governance at community colleges,
giving the Governor the power to appoint the Chair of the Board of Trustees; issuing new guidelines
and procedures for the search, selection, appointment, compensation, evaluation, and removal of chief
executive officers at community colleges; and charging the DHE with appointing a voting member on all
chief executive officer search committees. NSCC hired President Gentile under these new guidelines.

By legislation, NSCC's local Board of Trustees is made up of eleven members, all appointed by the Governor.
None of the Board members have personal or familial financial interest in the institution. While the Board
includes two trustees who are alumni of the College and one student trustee, new trustees are increasingly
nominated by the Governor’s office instead of local boards Trustee selection and training, as coordinated
through a central Office of Trustee Relations, will impact local boards and their unique connections to each
regional campus. (Please see Data Forms 3.1 and 3.2)

The executive structure of North Shore Community College remains the same with five component Vice
Presidents reporting to the President including the Vice President for Academic Affairs. In addition, a newly
created position — Executive Director of the CommUniverCity at Lynn and Chief Officer of the Lynn Campus
— also reports to the President. This position has a two-fold focus: 1) To provide the executive level support
to the formal collaborative partners of the CommUniverCity planning and implementation; and 2) To
provide Chief Operating Officer responsibilities for the Lynn Campus while it undergoes construction and
expansion. A similar position in the executive structure -- a Lynn Campus operations officer - was in place in
past administrations.

The governance structure of the College is composed of the cross-component Coordinating Council,
and supported by the following Standing Committees: Academic Policy, Classified Steering Committee,
Curriculum, Diversity Leadership, Faculty & Staff Steering, Information Technology, Professional
Development, and Student Development. Meeting monthly, each Standing Committee has appointed and
elected members of faculty, staff, and students representing a cross-section of the College. With a clear
statement of responsibilities, the Standing Committees are responsible for generating recommendations on
governance matters, and their work is shared through annual reports posted on the NSCC Google site.

To improve effectiveness, governance training workshops are conducted annually by the Governance
Sub-committee for new governance members and Standing Committee chairs. The training includes an
overview of the governance system, roles and responsibilities, use of Google sites, a discussion of strategic
planning goals, and aligning the work of the Standing Committees to the strategic planning priorities.

In fall 2009, the Student Government Association (SGA) revised its constitution and by-laws, resulting in
increased participation of students. SGA students determine service initiatives each year and work with the
Northeast Arc as volunteers. In addition, the SGA offers a scholarship for an incoming student who joins
student government. With a planning retreat each summer for officers, SGA members have become leaders
in policy issues such as advocating for gender-neutral bathrooms, state funding for community colleges,
arming campus police, and parking for motorcycles on site.
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APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

The major changes in organization and governance since 2009 have come about partially as a result of
several new statewide initiatives launched by the Department of Higher Education, which will impact the
College’s strategic direction, internal governance, policies and procedures, and operations going forward.

e Internal governance committees will continue to align their work with strategic planning and
will assess their effectiveness through the biannual online survey process to meet institutional
strategic, budget, and performance goals.

e The NSCC Foundation provided an Innovation Fund in FY 2014, which offered grants through a
competitive process of up to $5,000 to faculty and staff to develop new initiatives fostering student
success and advancing strategic priorities. Following an assessment of this grant program, the
future of an Innovation Fund will be determined by the President and Executive Staff.

o The Coordinating Council plans to initiate a college-wide assessment of governance over the
next 2 years. The Governance Subcommittee is at the initial stage of forming a team to begin this
assessment project with the expectation that 2014-2015 will be a planning year by working with
the CTLA to design the review. The goal is twofold: 1) expand the scope of the biannual governance
effectiveness survey to include the college community, not just the members of governance
committees; and, 2) assess the effectiveness of the current structure of 8 standing committees
and a coordinating council. Today’s structure was established 15 years ago and a review of the
committee functions may identify which committees appropriately meet the needs of the college.
For example, the work of some of the committees may have been institutionalized over the years
and not necessarily appropriate as part of the governance system now and new committees may be
required. The assessment of the governance system also coincides with the arrival of a new college
president.
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STANDARD FOUR — THE ACADEMIC PROGRAM
DESCRIPTION

As part of its comprehensive mission, North Shore Community College offers 46 assaciate degree programs
of study and 32 credit-certificates. Additionally, the College delivers 32 noncredit certificates, primarily
through the Division of Corporate and Community Education. Through thorough needs assessment and
program review, NSCC has modified programs of study in order to maintain academic vitality and meet the
educational and workforce needs of the region. Table 4 delineates the major academic program changes
that have occurred since the 2009 NEASC visit. (Please refer to Data Forms 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, and 4.4)

Table 3: Academic Program Changes since 2009

Credit Programs Added Credit Programs Inactivated

s  Accounting Certificate s  Floriculture
s Child & Adolescent Behavioral Health Certificate e  Floriculture Certificate
e Dietary Management Certificate s  School Age Educator Certificate
e Environmental Studies Degree o Gerontology/Activities Specialist
e Financial Services Certificate e  Paraeducator Certificate
e  Graphic Design-Integrated Media Degree e Fire Protection and Safety Technology FPS Professional
e  Small Business Management-Entrepreneurship Development Certificate

Certificate s  Advanced Manufacturing Degree
e  RN-BSN Collaboration with Salem State University

To ensure high academic standards, the Center for Teaching, Learning, and Assessment (CTLA) has
developed a program review guide for both academic and support services programs to conduct a self-
study at the department or program level. The CTLA offers stipends and provides professional support for
conducting the program review. Between 2011-2013, seven academic programs and two student support
services completed their self-study, while three academic program reviews are currently in progress.
Overall, program review facilitates ongoing, systematic, evidence-based practices.

Many career programs hold accreditation from their professional organizations, and therefore engage
in frequent and extensive self-studies and external review. For professionally accredited programs, the
accreditation process is conjoined with the institutional program review to avoid duplication of effort.
Document E1B in the Appendix contains relevant information on these accreditations and their cycles for
review.

To maintain consistency at the course level, the credit hour definition was defined according to NEASC
standards and approved by the College’s Curriculum Committee in November 2011. The updated version
is published in the latest College catalog and on the College website. It has been reviewed and discussed
with faculty during academic division meetings and is included in the new faculty orientation material.
The instructional activities delivered in the classroom or through alternative delivery modes along with
additional required student work are evidenced through course syllabi, which are reviewed and approved
each semester by the academic deans. The credit hour definition also covers the awarding of credit(s)
for prior learning through professional/life experience or licensure. Prior learning assessments are based
on a faculty review of documentation that verifies achievement of college-level, course-specific learning
outcomes. Similarly improving access, the Center for Alternative Studies and Educational Testing (CAS),
which has long-standing policies and procedures for awarding credit for prior learning, has recently
expanded opportunities to award academic credit for military experience, training, coursework, and
occupation/s, which can shorten the time to degree completion and prepares veterans for a smooth
military-to-college transition. In accordance with NSCC's Credit Hour Policy, Prior Learning through
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professional/life experience or licensure requires evaluation of learning outcomes, based upon criteria set
by academic departments, which are comparable in depth, breadth and quality to successful completion of
classroom courses. A minimum of 45 contact hours or equivalent is required for one credit. Prior Learning
assessments are based on review of documentation that may include portfolios, professional certificates/
licenses, transcripts of military training or courses completed at non-accredited institutions, or some
combination of documents that verifies achievement of college-level learning outcomes.

As part of its mission, NSCC provides resources for students to transfer to baccalaureate institutions. The
College participates in the statewide effort to encourage seamless transfer between public colleges (MAST),
encourages students to use the MassTransfer Agreement, and engages in articulation agreements with area
schools. On average, 40% of all NSCC students matriculate into a transfer program and an average of 95% of
them transfer to 4-year institutions. The annual transfer rate of graduates is excellent: 2010 — 95%; 2011 -
96%; 2012 — 94%. The transfer rate for career program graduates had increased from Fall 2010 to Fall 2011
(from 62% to 71%) but decreased from Fall 2011 to 2012 by 13%. Recognizing the growing need of bachelor
degrees required in career areas, opportunities for transfer are being explored for all NSCC two-year career
programs with the goal of having at least one transfer opportunity available for every associate degree.
The college will offer more transfer events during the academic year to keep students informed of transfer
opportunities and new marketing materials will be created for distribution to the college community and
high school partners.

Responding to the workforce demand for bachelor level preparation, the College created a full time
position to focus on the development and maintenance of transfer articulation agreements to guarantee
the transfer of credit from associate to bachelor degrees. As a result of this increased attention, transfer
opportunities have increased by 69% in the last two years. Although assessment of transfer programs and
processes has not taken place in the past, the creation of this new position will enable assessment to occur
on an annual basis.

Students participating in online courses are enrolled and verified through a password-protected, secure
learning management system (LMS). Enrollment is automatically generated through the Banner Student
information System. As such, student access to all online resources is through a central authentication
system.

Several data points have been examined since the 2009 Self-Study concerning online and hybrid courses,
including student satisfaction with college offerings, faculty perceptions of student issues with technology-
mediated learning overall, and an analysis of course completion and grade distributions across these
delivery methods. Surveys on student satisfaction with online courses yielded similar results in two
different years. Satisfaction was greatest with students’ perceived efficacy of online course assignments,
with 90-92% agreeing or strongly agreeing or that they were helpful to learning. Students also agreed or
strongly agreed 89- 91% that our online courses were well-designed and easy to follow. One area indicating
some room for improvement was the desire to have more opportunity to interact with other students (76-
78%); this resulted in emphasis during the course design phase to increase active interaction with other
students through group presentations.

A college-wide instructional technology survey of faculty was conducted during the 2012-2013 academic
year, soliciting the input of 35 academic departments within a focus group context. Nearly all cited to a gap
in student support when it comes to instructional technology. Problem areas identified include the need for
additional guidance across online/hybrid instructor assignments and understanding and navigating online
courses. The Academic Technology department created a self-paced course (Online 101) to encourage
students to learn how to use the technology prior to beginning an online course.
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A comparative analysis of overall course completion rates and grade distributions across online, hybrid,
and traditional face-to-face courses was taken for the fall 2013 semester. Clear gaps are noted in course
completions rates, defined as the percentage of enrollees who persisted in a course from the start of
the semester to its conclusion with a grade of ‘C’ or better. These results are consistent with community
colleges across our system, and indicative of a significant group within the student population who, while
choosing online courses, either lack the preparation to fully participate or otherwise find this delivery
method uncomfortable. Continued efforts to address this problem will continue; the use and efficacy of
Online 101 will be part of this research. Given the demand for this flexible learning option, NSCC plans to
double its online learning inventory through a continuum of models from entirely online to hybrid within
the next three years.

Twenty three percent of incoming students require developmental coursework in English, and 49% require
developmental Math. Extensive national research indicates that the longer students are in developmental
courses, the lower their completion rate. To foster student success, the College redesigned curriculum to
address accelerating student progress through developmental coursework.

In September 2012, NSCC implemented a competency-based, self-paced, modular developmental
math-redesign called Preparation for College Mathematics. With instructor support, students work
individually though this course by completing online modules comprised of a workbook, problem sets,
and assessments. The goal is to encourage students to progress as quickly as possible through pre-College
mathematics. Fall 2013 marked the first universal application of the curriculum. Assessment of student
success (grades) in the new curriculum shows higher rates of success than in the previous curriculum;
however, Math faculty are concerned that alternative approaches may be required to support those
students with the highest remediation needs. A Bootcamp approach is being piloted summer 2014.
Results will be assessed to determine whether this approach has promise for larger numbers of students.
The college will continue to review data (student progress/persistence) and provide additional and/or
alternative support to meet the needs of our students.

To accelerate student progress in English, the College began a pilot of the Accelerated Learning Program
(ALP, also known as the Baltimore Model) in spring 2015. The program enables students who are close to
college-ready to complete developmental writing/reading and Composition 1 in one semester by taking
both Composition and a developmental writing course with the same instructor. The developmental course
is a support course for Composition. Student success in ALP sections is being compared to student success
in the regular developmental curriculum. Based on initial findings, the pilot is being expanded for 2014-
2015. Results will be carefully monitored to determine whether this program should be expanded.

A new initiative introduced by the Department of Higher Education is the requirement that community
colleges use high school GPA’s to place students into college level mathematics classes (rather than
Accuplacer scores) starting in fall 2014. The college decided to adopt this recommendation fully and now
requests transcripts with GPA’s for all incoming students. All incoming students will continue to take
the placement test, but those whose GPA is in the defined range will be placed into appropriate college
math courses. At the initiative of the Math Department, the College changed prerequisites through the
appropriate governance committee process to allow for placement into several college math courses
based upon the GPA range specified in the DHE mandate. At the end of the year, results will be analyzed to
determine whether GPA’s do indicate college readiness in math.

Under the Perkins Act, the College provides Career Vocational Technical Education (CVTE) activities to high
school students to introduce postsecondary education and career programs. These include articulation
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agreements enabling students an opportunity to earn college credit for coursework completed in high
school, early Accuplacer assessment to eliminate the need for developmental coursework, and College
visits to introduce students to the postsecondary learning environment.

Eligible high school students can receive college credit through two programs. Dual Enrollment allows
recommended students to enroll in an NSCC course taught either on campus or online by an NSCC faculty
member. Admission requires involvement of high school guidance counselors and college personnel.
In addition, the Early College High School program with the Lynn Public Schools is a close collaboration.
College faculty teach summer courses on campus; students have enrichment experiences at area museums
and colleges. NSCC Deans select high school faculty who have the appropriate credentials and teaching
experience. NSCC faculty partner with the high school instructors to assure that the syllabi are equivalent to
all other sections at the college, meet with them regularly during the year, and monitor student outcomes
to assure that they meet college expectations. The faculty are evaluated each year. Achievement Coaches
work closely with the students throughout the year; by the end of the two years, students have learned
about the college admission process, financial aid, and expectations about college and careers in general.
The first class of graduates was a great success: of the 19 students, 18 are attending college and one is
entering military service. The college is working toward NACEP standards for this program.

Another new requirement for 2014-2015 is the DHE requirement that community colleges develop Math
Pathways into specific programs of study. The goal is to provide incoming students with information about
what level of math is required in their chosen program of study so that they can complete developmental
math faster, enter their field more quickly, and take only the required courses. Particularly if statistics is
the appropriate path rather than the algebra/calculus required in technical areas such as engineering, the
statistics based path may increase degree completion. Every program of study and its math requirements
were reviewed, and pathways were defined, so that students know what level of math proficiency they
need to achieve. The Math Department plans to place students at a higher starting level in Preparation for
College Math based on their placement scores, and advisors will actively advise students concerning levels
of math proficiency needed in the various programs of study.

As noted earlier, two of the programs at the college were forced to relocate to a new location this year.
The college had to vacate the Cosmetology and Culinary Arts space due to construction of the new Essex
Regional Technical High School campus effective May 2014, A license agreement has been signed with
North Shore Business Center, LLC for 12,360 square feet of space. While the new space is completed,
Culinary Arts students will take their didactic courses on the college’s Danvers campus with the usual
September starting date, and take hands-on classes starting in mid-October. Cosmetology students will
begin in October and have their complete 1,000 hours of instructional time scheduled, ending in June 2015.
(A request for substantive change now that a new location has been established will be submitted in August
2014.)

Towards the advancement of Vision Project goals, the College has significantly expanded its portfolio of
noncredit courses that can be taken alone or bundled for the award of academic credit. These courses
include areas of study such as Allied Health, Environmental Science, and Business. In addition to existing
policies and procedures housed in the College’s Center for Alternative Studies and Educational Testing,
the College has developed a review process involving teams of non-credit instructors and faculty members
that established internal articulation agreements between the Division of Workforce Development and
Corporate and Community Education and its Divisions of Academic Credit. Noncredit to credit opportunities
will be explored through the established review process at a rate of approximately one “bundle” per
semester.
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As a major engagement strategy, Service Learning has become increasingly integrated into academic
programs. In 2008-2009, there were 55 courses with a service-learning component. In 2013-2014, the
number of courses has grown to 80. Five years ago student participation was optional; today, full class
participation is at 60%. An anticipated 1000 students will take part in service learning this year, an increase
from 350 students in 2008.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

Reflecting national trends and statewide priorities, the College has embarked on several academic
initiatives to increase engagement, achievement, retention, and graduation.

e Committed to working with state and high school partners to improve access and transition to college,
NSCC has established a regional team to advance common core standards in Math and English and
identify college and career-ready curriculum, including a campus liaison represents the College in
PARCC discussions. In five years, NSCC will be well-positioned to implement changes mandated by the
State, including how assessment will be used as an indicator of students’ readiness for college.

e Based on statewide results of the effectiveness of placement into college math by GPS, data may
indicate that Accuplacer may no longer be required of incoming students with appropriate GPA’s for
placement into some college math courses.

e Assessment of student outcomes in developmental math and in the ALP curriculum will inform the
college concerning future placement and curriculum implementation.

e The efficacy and utility of the Math Pathways will be assessed to determine whether these are clear
and easily understood by students and advisors, and modifications made based on assessment.

e Based on the assessments of online learning, it will be incumbent upon us to address the achievement
gaps by strengthening key support services for online students. We will also need to conduct a deeper
analysis of subject areas and specific content types that are most compatible with online delivery, or
where problems exist, can be improved through strategic design. Moving forward, we will work to set
the appropriate interventions in place and formalize our assessment of online learning.

e Assessment of GenEd outcomes is described in detail above, in Assessment of Student Learning. The
College intends to continue emphasis on assessment of curriculum and learning outcomes throughout
the coming years.

e In a survey of students who had participated in Service Learning during 2013-2014, 82% reported that
Service Learning increased their willingness to enroll in classes offered the next semester; 77% that it
increased their willingness to complete an Associate degree; and 68% that it increased their willingness
to complete a Bachelor degree. With the addition of the Civic Learning Graduate Fellow for 2014-2015,
the Service Learning program will expand and further assessment of its effectiveness will be conducted.

e The Cosmetology and Culinary Arts programs will be carefully monitored in this first year at the new
facility to assure that all academic and other support is available for those students.
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STANDARD FIVE — FACULTY
DESCRIPTION

The highly-qualified faculty reflect the depth and breadth of the programs of study leading to an associate
degree or certificate. There were 132 full time faculty in Fall 2013; three more were hired for spring
semester. Among the 135 full-time faculty, many hold doctoral degrees, and the majority hold master’s
degrees. (Please refer to Data Forms 5.1 and 5.3)

Table 4: Full-time Faculty Credentials 2013-2014

Degree Number of Faculty
Doctorate 28
Master’s Degree 94
Bachelor’'s Degree 11
Certificates 2
(Cosmetology & Culinary Arts)

Professional Licenses 42

{in addition to above)

In addition to their academic qualifications, faculty in professional programs bring to the classroom their
expertise in specific businesses or careers. As in many institutions across the country, an aging faculty has
retired and been replaced with a new cadre of instructors. Since the last comprehensive NEASC visit in
2009, 44 full-time faculty have retired or left for other reasons, and forty-eight new full-time faculty have
been hired. As a result, 35% of the full-time faculty are relatively new to the institution, balanced by a
significant number of long-serving faculty with institutional history.

The hiring process for full-time faculty is robust, facilitated by Interview Exchange, an online application
process that allows for more efficient review of resumes. Orientation for both full time and adjunct
faculty addresses College policies, procedures, values, and goals. General information is available to
everyone electronically through the NSCC portal Campus Pipeline, and adjuncts receive a thumb drive with
information when they are oriented. All faculty receive the weekly Bulletin and the President’s weekly
message to the College community through campus email.

Organizationally, the faculty belong to one of five academic divisions, each led by a Division Dean, who
manages academic areas in accordance with the Massachusetts Community College Council (MCCC)
contract. Elected Department Chairs head academic departments, while career departments/programs are
led by Program Coordinators. The Chairs/Coordinators oversee forty-four departments and programs, some
of which offer multiple certificates and degree options. In order to assure consistency in learning outcomes
among course sections, Deans review syllabi for completeness and Chairs/Coordinators review syllabi for
content each semester. Nevertheless, academic freedom is highly valued, enabling flexibility in instructional
methodology and classroom practice.

Because of their multiple duties that include instruction, advising, and college service, faculty provide
the backbone of the curriculum. As a major responsibility, faculty design and refine curriculum within
the governance structure; consequently, faculty are deeply involved in their disciplines, participating in
conferences on teaching and learning, assessment activities, and grant-funded initiatives. They provide
extensive opportunities for students to learn outside the classroom, including service learning, internships,
participation in competitions in their fields, and co-curricular activities.
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Through an election process, faculty serve on all standing committees in NSCC’s governance structure. The
College governance committees have representatives from each academic division. Adjunct faculty are paid
a stipend for their participation on committees. Additionally, faculty volunteer for other ad hoc committees
that focus on special concerns or issues that impact the College.

Because faculty play such a critical role in student success, professional development is available
through several channels: 1) Academic divisions provide funds for local conferences. 2) The Professional
Development Committee funds major conferences, study, and travel. 3) The Center for Teaching, Learning,
and Assessment supports teaching innovations, teaching/learning conferences, and assessment activities.
4) The Academic Technology Department supports faculty in exploring curriculum design and in using
technologies in instruction and learning. 5) Sabbaticals are available for full-time faculty. 6) A year-long
professional development program for faculty focuses on effective teaching and learning, with stipends or
workload consideration provided for participation. The program has both online and in person components.
7) Three faculty members were chosen to participate in the Chair Academy in June 2014. 8) Faculty have
been invited to participate in the year-long Community College Leadership Academy (CCLA).

The evaluation processes for both full-time and adjunct faculty are governed by collective bargaining
agreements, detailing teaching loads, responsibilities, and compensation. The Massachusetts Teachers
Assaciation represents faculty in contract negotiations.

The College emphasizes academic standards and academic honesty, publishing statements on plagiarism on
its website, the Student Handbook, and on many course syllabi. Academic standards regarding credit hour
requirements are contained in the Curriculum Committee Handbook, discussed in department/division
meetings, and posted on the college website. Syllabi are reviewed to assure that the amount of work
expected in the course is consistent with credit hour expectations.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

The success and achievement of students and the accomplishment of the College mission are dependent
on a dedicated faculty who prepare students for the challenges and demands of pursuing further learning,
joining the professional workforce, and becoming lifelong learners.

e Asin most community colleges nationally, enrollment growth and economic realities have required
a reliance on adjunct faculty. At NSCC, approximately 400 part-time faculty complement the 135
full-time faculty. Typically teaching about 50% of the sections offered each semester, adjunct
faculty often bring real-world experience and professional expertise to the classroom. The College
makes a particular effort to welcome adjuncts into the campus community through participation in
academics, governance, and professional development. Nevertheless, the College is committed to
hiring full-time faculty in conjunction with Strategic Plan initiatives.

e Hiring managers (deans and assistant deans) assess the hiring process on a regular basis, and find
that it has improved since the adoption of Interview Exchange. The previous process, dependent
on printed applications and resumes, was cumbersome and inefficient. The new process allows all
search committee members access to all applications and provides transparency in the evaluation
of applicants and the whole selection process, and stronger partnership between academic
departments and Human Resources.

e Informal assessment of orientation and communications like the President’s weekly email and the
Bulletin indicate that new employees appreciate the orientation process and efforts to keep them
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informed; many offer positive comparisons with other colleges. While there has been no formal
assessment of the weekly communications, the President receives frequent feedback about how
valuable those emails are.

Faculty who participate in the year-long professional development program are surveyed to assess
the effectiveness of the program; all suggestions for change are taken into consideration the
following year. One example is that the college is developing its own video scenarios to replace
the “Getting Results,” an online resource developed several years ago by PBS and the League
for Innovation, as it is somewhat dated. The college intends to offer more opportunities for
professional development for adjunct faculty in coming years to accommodate those who have
specific interests, based on faculty surveys to determine their needs.

Recognition of teaching excellence is important. Full-time faculty are selected for NISOD awards
for teaching excellence held in Austin, Texas, as well as being recognized at faculty events and
by having their names on a plaque at the Lynn and Danvers campuses. Faculty take pride in
receiving the NISOD award, and report that the conference is productive, inspiring changes in their
pedagogy. Adjunct faculty are selected for the annual Excellence in Teaching Award; recipients
receive an honorarium and their name on a recognition plague on the Danvers and Lynn campuses.
The college is reviewing its participation in NISOD to see if there is an even better option for
recognition.

Based on research conducted prior to the 2009 NEASC self-study, the College determined that the
area of active teaching and learning needed improvement. To assess progress, the Community
College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE) results for 2007 were compared to 2011, on an
institutional level as well as measured against all other colleges. (See table below). While the
College has improved on some measures, efforts need to continue.

Table 5: Comparative Data —Active Teaching and Learning Strategies
+ Indicates improvement from 2007-2011

Item 2007 2007 2011 2011
NSCC All NSCC All
Made a class presentation 32.1 27.08 32.5+ 29.3

Worked on a paper or project that required integrating ideas or

: : . 62.4 58.0 69.4+ 62.2
information from various sources

Worked with other students on projects during class 41.4 45.9 42,9+ 47.7
Worked with classmates outside of class to prepare class assignments 19.8 20.8 17.7 23.0
Participated in a community-based project as part of a regular course 7.4 6.2 6.7 6.8

The data indicates continuing need for encouraging facuity to include active learning strategies such as
making class presentation, working with classmates outside of class, and engaging in service outside of
class. Informal feedback indicates that students may be defining “making a presentation” very narrowly,
as most faculty do require presentations, but not always defined as a “speech.” Academic Technology
staff are working with faculty to encourage them to use technology to enhance student communication
and teamwork outside of class, since community college students do not have much time to spend on
campus. Service Learning and Civic Learning will be a focus of a committee run through the CTLA to address

engagement in the community.

e To enhance opportunities for active learning in the classroom, the College has piloted an active
learning classroom on each campus, specifically designed and structured to provide a more active,
collaborative, inclusive learning environment that promotes high engagement in the classroom.
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Faculty will continue to be surveyed on their experiences with these classrooms. This information
will be used as plans are made for renovations on campus, including how to furnish the learning
spaces in the addition to the McGee building.
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STANDARD SIX— STUDENTS

DESCRIPTION

The Student and Enrollment Services component interacts with students from the point of admission
through registration; provides wraparound support through advising, tutoring, and adaptive services; and
enriches student experience through co-curricular activities. (Please refer to Data Forms 6.1, 6.2, 6.3)

Reporting to the Vice President of Student and Enrollment Services (SES) are two deans: Dean of
Students and Dean of Enrollment Services. Providing a framework for the work in student services is the
Massachusetts Department of Higher Education’s Vision Project, which emphasizes key outcomes that
impact college participation, completion, student learning, workforce alignment, preparing citizens, and
the elimination of disparities. Since 2009 NEASC visit, SES has employed a student-oriented, cross-college
approach to initiatives that have, in some cases, expanded to community and statewide partnerships. This
drive has been framed by keeping student success in the center of decision-making processes.

Since persistence and achievement are central to student success, a number of strategies are employed to
create a supportive environment. To assist students to get started on the right foot, the Student Support
and Advising Center has piloted mandatory orientation for all incoming students. NSCC’s orientation
provides students with information on school services, the College’s website and Pipeline portal, and
academic and career choices; this effort is supplemented by parent orientations. To accommodate those
students who are unable to attend an in person orientation session an online orientation option was
created. To assess the effectiveness of the new mandatory orientation, both short and long term effects
have been considered. In the long term student retention and success for those students going through the
mandatory orientation process will be compared with that of students prior to the mandatory orientation
process. In the short term, the number of students attending the orientation will be compared with student
numbers when the process was optional. Spring 2014 was the first semester that all new students were
required to attend orientation. Compared to spring 2013 there was a 183% increase in student attendance.

As part of the Student Support Center departmental review process, Crisis Intervention services underwent
an internal assessment in 2012. Crisis intervention visits and the nature of the visits were tracked. The
substantial number of mental health issues identified led to the creation of two Senior Academic Counselor
positions to provide crisis intervention services to both the Lynn and Danvers campuses. In the first year
that these positions were institutionalized student visits for crisis intervention per month more than
doubled on each campus from September to April.

NSCC implemented the “Fresh Start” academic forgiveness policy in Fall 2012, which allows re-admitted
students with poor academic history to be treated as a transfer student, wherein students after some
advice and counseling, can use this “second chance” to demonstrate readiness for college work. While few
have taken advantage of this policy, it is a valuable tool for those returning to college after a fairly long
hiatus, during which the factors that caused failure in the past no longer exist.

A 2012 CCLA project to assess Career Services led to Vision Project Performance Incentive Fund (PIF) grant
funding to improve coordination, collaboration and visibility of Career Services throughout the college.
Initial assessments identified that students were highly interested in using Career Services but were not
accessing them to the same degree. In response, NSCC increased the Career Services staffing (1 Career
Exploration Counselor and 1 Career Placement Counselor) and instituted a Career Services Leadership Team
to evaluate career services and build collaboration among the departments. To foster this collaboration
and present a comprehensive view of career services, a virtual career center website has been created and
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is being piloted over the summer 2014. Website visits, student tracking and follow up surveys in 2015 will
serve as the basis for assessment of these initiatives.

Another (PIF) grant from the Board of Higher Education supports NSCC's Academic and Career Mapping
initiative, which provides clear academic and career information in highly digestible formats to enhance
students’ awareness of the connections between academic programs and potential career options. The PIF
grant also supported an Early College High School pilot program at Lynn Classical High School.

Providing academic support, the NSCC Tutoring Centers have increased staffing, and the College has
renovated physical space to improve services and accommodate students’ needs. Indeed, scheduling of
tutors has increased by 30% in the past five years, and the number of tutoring sessions has risen between
5-10% each year for the past four years. Approximately, 6,500 tutoring sessions are held each year.
Accommodating the demand for academic support, NSCC opened a new 2,125 square foot state-of-the-
art tutoring center on the Danvers campus, centralizing all tutoring services. To handle the growing need
for academic intervention, personnel resources for tutoring in the computer sciences have increased
fourfold in the past five years, and more specialized tutors have been hired to assist ESL students and those
seeking degrees in career and technical areas. NSCC is also a member of the Connecticut Distance Learning
E-Tutoring Consortium, which provides access to online tutoring services. As of August 2014, Tutoring is
organized under Academic Affairs as part of Library and Learning Support. During 2013-2014 it became
apparent that more tutoring in Math was needed; this year, professional math instructors will be available
many more hours to serve students. Tutoring services will be assessed during 2014-2015 and results used
to improve and enhance services.

The College recognizes that students need guidance concerning their rights and responsibilities. The
Student Handbook, readily available on the college webpage, contains complete information on these
topics: Student Complaints p. 33-49; Student’s Rights & Responsibilities p. 49-65; Policy & Procedures
Relative to Students with Disabilities p. 66 — 71; Student Grievance Procedures p. 72- 80; Netiquette Guide
p. 81-82; and Academic Policies and Financial Aid Policies, p.83-95.

Disability Services did an assessment survey of all full and part time faculty in September 2013 to ascertain
faculty's knowledge of Universal Design for Learning (UDL) and to identify how faculty were incorporating
UDL principles and best practices into their courses. The survey results demonstrated that 68% of faculty
are familiar with UDL and are applying principles on a consistent basis. As a result of the assessment, faculty
discussion groups were formed to discuss practical applications for incorporating UDL principles into their
course design.

To bolster student success, Disability Services has created two free programs for students: A chapter of
the Delta Alpha Pi Honor Society, which offers high-achieving students with disabilities the opportunity to
expand and practice their leadership skills; and a student-centered Transition Group, which helps students
with disabilities adapt to the expectations of college-level academics. Formal assessment of both programs
is planned for 2014-2015.

Named a Military Friendly School, a title bestowed to the top 20% of schools that deliver the best
experiences for veteran students, NSCC serves an average of 350 military veterans who have access to a
wide range of services available in a dedicated Veterans Center. A full-time Veterans Services Specialist
closely monitors the overall success of veteran students, providing advice and counseling; and an
Assessment Officer evaluates military experience and provides credit for military training. In addition,
NSCC is an official military testing center that administers and accepts CLEP and DSST exams and waives all
testing fees for active military and veterans.
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Rounding out student development opportunities, Student Life has increased options for leadership
development, volunteerism, and civic engagement. In September 2011, Student Life joined the National
Society of Leadership and Success, Sigma Alpha Pi. To date, the annual student surveys compiled indicate
that the program and its curricula are relevant and valuable for the students who have engaged in Sigma
Alpha Pi. Over five hundred NSCC students have participated in this program that is composed of lectures,
peer mentoring and community service. As the College looks for new ways to retain students and support
their success and degree completion, we will begin to mark these students in our student database. This
will allow us to measure the impact of the Sigma Alpha Pi experience on retention, success and degree
completion. In addition to Sigma Alpha Pi, Student Life has developed a Student Government Association
Scholarship (since 2012) and effective July 2014, directly oversees the Presidential Scholar Program. This
is a small leadership program that provides financial assistance, mentoring, and leadership opportunities
to students who meet certain criteria when they apply to the College. Over the next few years, the College
will consider how this program might be made available to more students, again with the hope of better
supporting retention and student success. Complementing these activities, a Community Service Fair is
held each fall to introduce students to the many volunteer opportunities in the College’s surrounding
communities. Finally, the number of student campus clubs has increased from twenty nine to forty in the
last five years, increasing opportunities for student engagement, community involvement and student
success.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

NSCC has reviewed and implemented several policies and procedures that foster student achievement and
promote success, ensuring that students follow a pathway toward their educational and professional goals.

o In April 2012, the Academic Policy Committee approved a new Change of Program process, which
requires signatures of an advisor and a Student Financial Services representative so that students
understand the ramifications of changing programs on their academic progress and financial
aid status. The Academic Policy Committee is also considering a proposal to change the NSCC
Withdrawal Policy: In an effort to facilitate improved communication between professor and
student, the new proposal would require the professor’s signature. Results will be monitored to
see if these changes do help students progress toward their degree more efficiently.

e As Career Services is consolidated and students begin to use the resources more regularly,
assessment may lead to the establishment of a physical Career Center in the offices in the new
Lynn addition.

e Future assessment of the Crisis Intervention initiative will examine how the Intervention
services affect retention rates for this high risk population as compared with the general student
population.

e NSCC has implemented student and course levels in the BANNER student records system, allowing
the institution to calculate the college-level GPA for graduation and transfer purposes, simplifying
planning for class scheduling for students close to graduation, assisting in determining student
financial aid eligibility, and improving accuracy for internal and external reports.

e As noted in Standard 4, NSCC is working with the Massachusetts Articulated System of Transfer
(MAST) team to establish a Common Transfer Policy among the fifteen Massachusetts Community
Colleges and State Universities to provide transparency and to create a statewide database of
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courses that will indicate equivalency between institutions. We are hopeful that transfers among
public colleges will be more efficient.

e The number of students who receive aid continues to rise, with a three to five percent increase per
year. From 2011 to 2013 alone, the number of FAFSAs received increased by 17%. Unfortunately,
during this period, the loan volume also increased by approximately 25%. Efforts to mitigate the
increasing loan rate has included hiring an Academic Counselor who focuses on managing NSCC's
loan program and educating students regarding financial literacy. In FY 14, NSCC also partnered
with the services of the American Student Assistance’s financial literacy program, SALT.

e With the expansion in the spectrum of student services, SES has set ambitious benchmarks for
improving student achievement and success: a) Improve overall graduation rates 16.2% to 19%; b)
Develop strategies to reduce achievement gaps between Hispanics and Whites (9.8% to 7%), Blacks
and Whites (8.4% to 6%), and Males and Females (6% to 3%). A part of this effort, an Enroliment
Plan with a specific minority recruitment component will be rolled into an annual tactical plan.
(Please refer to Form S1.)

e Other services slated for streamlining include developing an online jobs board to give greater
access to employment opportunities as employers will have the ability to create and advertise
positions, and implementing a Self-Service Transcript Request process.
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STANDARD SEVEN — LIBRARY AND OTHER INFORMATION RESOURCES
DESCRIPTION

With full-service libraries at the Lynn and Danvers Campuses, the Library educates and supports the
College community with a well-balanced, up-to-date collection of print, media, and electronic resources.
The Library provides inviting spaces for study, learning, and research. The highly knowledgeable staff
assists visitors in making the best use of resources, as well as accessing information beyond the Library's
walls. Services are continuously updated and upgraded so that patrons are equipped with the knowledge
they need, when they need it. Since the Library is a major support service for academics, each academic
department has a library liaison who acts as a contact person and an advocate. Librarians work with the
faculty to enhance their courses as well as help departments address accreditation and program review
needs.

Following the 2009 NEASC site visit, the Library recognized that changes were needed in the areas of
staffing, physical layouts, budget and spending, information literacy instruction, and access for users. (A
discussion of improvements to access for all library users, including online students, is addressed in the
section responding to the Areas of Emphasis.) As suggested in the 2009 report, an assessment was made of
the library staff and their assigned duties. To correct a staffing imbalance, an additional part-time reference
librarian was hired. This gave the library, two 20 hours/week part-time reference librarians, one at each
campus. Short-staffing at the Danvers circulation desk was improved by reallocating a library assistant from
technical services.

In emphasizing customer service, the Library has responded to a variety of patrons’ requests. In terms of
space, quiet study areas are located away from the circulation and reference desks, and in the back of both
libraries. Small tables or single study carrels are for individuals, and “Quiet Zone” signs inform patrons that
talking and cell phone use are not allowed. Additionally, group study areas have larger tables and are closer
to the entrances, circulation and reference desks, and classrooms. With smaller print collections, both
libraries removed shelving or had the height of shelving reduced; this increased seating has made for a less
cramped atmosphere and added more natural light. Because of increasing demand for computer access, a
computer lab on the Danvers campus was added, and scanners for patrons’ use have been added to both
libraries.

To address the emphasis on information literacy, the information literacy instruction program teaches
students to develop information skills needed for success in college and life. The Library encourages faculty
to work with librarians to create assignments which reinforce these skills. To augment this collaboration,
Research Methods (LSC 101), a one-credit information literacy course, has been offered as independent
study and online. Consequently, all librarians underwent a training program through Academic Technology
on online teaching. Less formal options include presentations in classes and meetings, preparation of
unique LibGuides, and development of online and video tutorials. Equally important, the Library supports
distance learning with off-campus access, via a proxy server, to the online databases and library catalog.
With persistent links, the library’s e-resources and e-reserves can be added to online courses and the
learning management system giving access to all students. To facilitate the College’s initiatives to make the
cost of textbooks more affordable for students, the librarians collaborate with the Educational Technology
Innovations Group and faculty in providing Open Education Resources (OER) and OER LibGuides. Currently,
10 faculty are being trained in implementing OER for their classes, with those courses expected to run in
2014-2015. Following implementation, the courses will be assessed by determining the cost savings to
students and by faculty and student satisfaction surveys aimed at measuring usefulness of teaching and

NSCC Fifth-Year Report 29



learning using ORE resources. This data will be analyzed and used to: improve OER courses by faculty if
necessary; promote the adoption of OER in more programs and courses; among more faculty; and, solidify
a process for Academic Technology Staff to use when working with faculty in developing ORE courses. The
goal is to realize even more significant cost savings to students.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

The expansion and modifications of services through the Library reflect the changing educational
environment of the College as a whole. The Library is an integral part of institutional effectiveness, ensuring
the availability of varied channels of information resources to carry out NSCC's mission and vision.

Budget needs and purchasing resources remain a challenge for the Library. Now with access to
105 databases, the number of online databases has increased approximately 65% since 2009. E-
book collections have grown from 37,487 titles in 2012, to 41,853 titles in 2013. Rising costs to
online resources strain the current budget, requiring implementation of alternatives, realizing
savings without sacrificing service. The Library Director, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs,
and Assistant Vice President for Budget and Planning met in Spring 2014 to calculate the 1%-4%
increases, dependent on FTE, for databases and subscriptions to better project the FY15 and future
budgets.

The Library Staff assess effectiveness through a variety of ways, and these assessments help
inform modifications to the Library and its services. For example, the 2013 CCSSE Survey included
a question regarding students’ use of library resources to complete course assignments. This data
indicated that students valued and used Library resources, informing the decision to develop
LSC101 “Research Methods” as an online course making it available for greater student access.
Likewise, data from the 2012 Information Technology Committee’s College-wide Survey to faculty,
staff, and students indicated the need for more computers and quiet individual and group study
space. This resulted in adding more computers to both campus libraries, redistributing student
space to create distinct quiet and group study space, adding more online resources available
via the proxy server for remote access, and a major facelift to the library’s web page to enable
easier navigation. Additionally, Tell Us What You Think promotions, developed and adapted by
Library Staff such as the adaptation of Harvard’'s Awesome Box, leads to enhancing collection
development.

Because of changing formats, and to justify and articulate how materials are selected, the
Collection Development Policy undergoes periodic revisions. This policy supports the Library’s
partaking in NOBLE’s Collection Assessment program, utilizing the reports from the integrated
library system, Evergreen. New in 2014, the NOBLE program will be a three-year process which
will analyze 36 subject areas of the library’s collection for usage and currency. The program will
assist with collection management, particularly de-accessioning and collection development. To
keep up with the prevalence of students’ use of Google, the Library staff will investigate a viable
discovery platform to search across all electronic resources in one search. In FY15, the NSCC Library
will participate in the Massachusetts Board of Library Commissioners initiative to recommend
a statewide discovery platform to be aligned with the Massachusetts Commonwealth Catalog.
The effectiveness of this platform will be measured using COUNTER (Counting Online Usage of
NeTworked Electronic Resources) Statistics, a resource which provides comparable usage reporting
to better understand how the information accessed from a variety of vendors/publishers is being
used. This data will help inform whether the college purchases the discovery platform.
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STANDARD EIGHT — PHYSICAL AND TECHNOLOGICAL RESOURCES

DESCRIPTION

North Shore Community College has made significant progress in meeting the objectives of its planned
campus facilities expansion and implementing ongoing improvements in information technology
infrastructure. Critical educational programs and services have been relocated from outdated facilities into
state-of-the-art spaces with greater capacity to address both enrollment growth and changing academic
requirements. Technological resources have been updated, enhanced, and focused to meet current
and emerging service needs for campus communications, data warehousing, institutional analytics, and
academic instruction. Moreover, the College has managed this growth while maintaining a leadership
position in energy management and environmental stewardship.

Physical Resources

New campus construction projects and consolidation efforts have enabled several initiatives that address
long-standing physical resource needs, while others remain in search of resolution. A major initiative, the
Danvers Health Professions and Student Services Building (HPSS) is a 58,700 square foot facility and the first
Zero Net Energy Building {ZNEB) owned by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. All Health and Animal
Science programs have been relocated to this facility from the former Health Professions & Science Building
and the aging Essex Aggie campus. Student Enrollment and Support Services on the Danvers Campus have
also been centralized in HPSS. The facility was designed and built in accordance with legal requirements
to ensure equal access for individuals with disabilities, and features contemporary learning spaces and
technology. Relocating programs and services to HPSS has enabled newly available space in the former
Health Professions & Science Building to be renovated for the College’s new Math Redesign program,
expanded tutoring, veterans services, and additional meeting and conference rooms.

Similarly, plans for the expansion of the Lynn Campus have been approved for $20.7M as part of the
Governor’s 2014 Capital Projects Spending Plan. A complete account of this initiative is included in the
section under ‘Area of Special Interest-Master Planning.” Additionally, a new lease was negotiated in 2010
for the Cummings Properties in Beverly, MA, which houses space for Corporate and Community Education
programs and the Adult Learning Center and the MBTA building in Lynn. In 2015, new leases will be
negotiated for both facilities.

Importantly, NSCC has been an active member of the American College & Universities President’s Climate
Commitment since 2007 when it submitted the first of five greenhouse gas reports. The College also
created a Climate Action plan in 2009 and has since filed two progress reports. As noted in these reports,
NSCC’s carbon footprint is improving in the component of electricity even with the addition of new
facilities. As a commuter college, the component of carbon due to cars remains approximately 70% yet
fluctuates with enrollments. In recognition of these efforts, the Massachusetts Department of Energy
Resources selected NSCC as a winner in the state-wide 2012 Leading by Example Awards.

Keeping the campuses safe, the Campus Police Department has adopted and implemented a majority of
the International Association of Campus Law Enforcement Administration (IACLEA) recommendations. The
department, evaluated according to that organization’s Loaned Executive Management Assistance Program
underwent an on-site review in 2006 by IACLEA consultants. Implementing these recommendations has
raised the department’s overall level of professionalism and service to the College community.
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Technological Resources

The College’s technology infrastructure supports the changing physical resources and keeps pace with ever-
diversifying academic and administrative demands. Many College-wide technologies were implemented
upon proof-of-concept and integration into the new HPSS building. Voice over Internet Protocol {VolP)
was implemented in 2011, and an aging voicemail system was upgraded in 2013 to an IP-based solution
to better accommodate mobile device users. In 2011 and 2012 Both the Danvers and Lynn core networks
were upgraded to the latest generation of Cisco Nexus, and wireless access was expanded to all facilities
with guest access and a refined role-based security. The consolidated Enrollment and Student Support
Services area features self-service stations, a computer lab to support orientations, and a state-of-the art
adaptive lab to support students with disabilities.

Technology infrastructure has been advanced by the Enterprise Data Warehouse and Reporting, in which
the majority of reporting takes place through the Operational Data Store. The Enterprise Data Warehouse
of the system is being used for trending analysis, and report writing has been consolidated through the
Cognos business intelligence reporting tool. With a solid reporting base in place NSCC has developed the
first iteration of dashboard reporting to be rolled out to executives and Deans as noted in Standard Two.
This model is expected to expand to all key performance indicators. Approximately fifty staff utilize the
system and more continue to be trained. As part of these improvements, in 2009 the College retired the
GroupWise and Campus Portal email systems, migrating all students, faculty, and staff into Google Apps.
Novell Directory Services was also retired and replaced by Microsoft Active Directory. This transition
ensures a single set of log-in credentials for most College services, provides robust tools that could not
be accomplished with internal systems, and saves a minimum of $60k annually. The one integrated email
system has allowed for collaboration tools to be successfully utilized by faculty, students and staff and
has increased consistent usage of the NSCC email system by students by nearly 40%. Campus portal usage
continues to grow with 4000-6000 unique users daily and over 10,000 unigue users weekly. Email is now
the colleges primary means of communication.

In 2013 NSCC developed its first mobile app to complement our Mobile web-site that was implemented in
2011. NSCC will continue to develop these areas to provide additional access to services including: grades,
rosters, registration, payment, class schedules, etc.

Complementing sustainability initiatives, in 2010, Information Systems implemented a College-wide print
management system in all academic learning spaces, reducing paper waste by over 50%. This system was
further extended to allow students to print from their personal computing devices. The implementation
of VMware has reduced the number of physical servers from 110 to 8, cutting annual costs by a minimum
of $150,000 in server replacements and HVAC/electrical costs. Computer workstation replacements
have been kept at a four-year cycle, and their upgrade to current All-in-One systems will require less
energy. All academic computers are configured using Microsoft group policy to ensure optimal power
consumption. Network switch upgrades to Power-over-Ethernet (PoE) have been successful in reducing
power consumption for phones and wireless access points.

In concert with these efforts, the NSCC public web site was completely redesigned to enable the dynamic
display of information from the Banner Administrative system. New features include audience-based
navigation, custom keyword search and tracking, enhanced content management tools for departments
and integration with Google Apps and Analytics. The site was reviewed and approved by the Institutional
Image Council executive team prior to going live in 2009.
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To support teaching and learning, presentation technology installations have effectively grown to 100%
of all classrooms. New academic technologies integrated into HPSS include two simulation labs with
Laerdal mannequins, video recording and debriefing systems; a new digital radiography lab; state-of-the
art facilities to support veterinary technology; and high-end general purpose classrooms and conferencing
areas with the latest interactive presentation systems and furnishings.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

With major facilities development on the horizon as well as continuing advancement in technology
infrastructure, NSCC will rely on its sophisticated systems planning and implementation processes to make
the necessary transitions over the next five years.

NSCC will undertake a campus master facilities planning process, managed by MA’s Division of
Capital Asset Management and Maintenance (DCAMM), with the goal of locating all offerings
and support services in College-owned buildings to ensure seamless integration of the student
experience and reduce current leasing arrangements.

The College will plan for the potential 2016 occupancy of the addition to the McGee Building on the
Lynn campus as well as the relocation of existing departments and programs (see ‘Area of Special
Interest-Master Planning’ for additional detail). Building upon the concepts developed through
the HPSS building project, the College will continue to update its core information infrastructure,
academic technologies, and overall learning environment specifications through upcoming campus
improvement and expansion projects.

The College, under the guidance of the Information Systems Department, will implement key
enhancements to its information systems to improve workflow and productivity, including
communications and customer relationship management; security program improvements and
education; enhanced tools for advising, degree evaluation, alerting and access improvements;
and campus portal enhancements that facilitate the ability of departments to manage their areas
with greater self-sufficiency. Cloud Solutions and data warehousing will facilitate streamlining
processes and data-based decisions. Multiple teams and other sources of input including; faculty
and advisors, enrollment management team, new KPls at the state level, and NSCC's Banner
Implementation team, a sub- team of the Information Technology governance committee, have
identified common directions that will enhance the above named services for our stakeholders.

The College, under the leadership for the Dean for Academic Technology, Assessment, and
Instructional Development, and as noted in the Areas of Study completed a Learning Management
System (LMS) review in 2014 and will replace ANGEL, with Blackboard. The College will also explore
and implement academic technologies that support institutional and student learning outcomes
assessment initiative through both quantitative and qualitative measures (i.e. learning analytics,
ePortfolios, and linkages to institutional research data).
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STANDARD NINE — FINANCIAL RESOURCES

DESCRIPTION

The Office of Administration and Finance, led by a seasoned financial officer with decades of hands-on
experience at the College, is supported by highly educated and qualified staff with extensive experience
and technical ability. The College continues to obtain funding from three primary sources: tuition and fees,
grants and an appropriation from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. For fiscal year 2014, NSCC's total
operating expenses are budgeted at $56,207,000 with total operating revenues budgeted at $30,826,000
and non-operating revenues budgeted at $25,030,000. This represents a deficit of $351,000 which will be
covered by reserves that were authorized by the Board of Trustees. In 2013, tuition and fees comprised
27% of revenues, while the appropriation from the State comprised 36% of total operating and non-
operating revenues. These revenue sources provide the support for NSCC to operate and carry out its
mission. The following charts display revenue sources and expenditure allocations over the past five years:

100%

90%

80% B TUITION and
20% FEES

60% I STATE

50% APPROPRIATION
o W FEDERAL,

3 O % STATE, PRIVATE GRANTs
0% B BOOKSTORE
10% I OTHER

0%

FY2009 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

100% INSTRUCTION
90% ACADEMIC
80% SUPPORT

70% | STUDENT

60% SERVICES

50;% B SCHOLARSHIPS
‘;g;: M PUBLICSERVICE
530 " OPERATIONS
o B INSTITUTIONAL

0% SUPPORT

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY 2012 FY2013 [l BOOKSTORE

NSCC has operated within its revenue sources and without compromising its level of service by maintaining
expense allocations where needed and putting efficiencies in place. (Please see Data Forms 9.1, 9.2, 9.3,
9.4)

The College contracts KPMG to conduct its external financial audit, and started to conduct an annual A-133
audit in FY2012. Annual audits for the past five years have revealed no material weaknesses that would
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prevent the College from meeting its mission. The audit findings continue to indicate “The College uses
these capital assets to provide services to students, faculty and administration.”

Grant and fundraising priorities are well integrated into the College’s planning processes. Institutional
grants (as opposed to grant aid to students) in FY2013 totaled more than $4,500,000 or 8% of NSCC's
annual budget. Significant state and federal grants in operation were a state Early Education and Care (EEC)
regional lead award, US Dept. of Education Perkins and FIPSE grants, as well as a partnership in a statewide
DOL TAACCCT consortium grant. Additionally, the MA Department of Higher Education has recognized
NSCC’s efforts to meet the goals of the Vision Project by awarding NSCC a Performance Incentive Fund (PIF)
grant in each of the last three years.

In terms of private fundraising activities, the College’s foundation, or 501¢(3) fundraising arm, led a major
gifts initiative to equip a new state-of-the-art Health Sciences facility on the Danvers campus that opened
in 2012. Through the cultivation of multiple donors, the NSCC Foundation also established a Believe in
Lynn fund to support targeted activities in that community and continues to support student retention and
success through the largest scholarship program among the Massachusetts community colleges. The NSCC
Foundation currently holds assets of more than $6.5 million.

Moreover, NSCC has been able to build and maintain significant reserves — to almost $7 million at FY13
fiscal year end, from a fund balance of $4 million in 2009. By FY13, NSCC’s assets exceeded liahilities by
more than $68 million due to the Health Professions and Student Services (HPSS) building. This was an
increase of $38 million from 20089.

Especially significant for the financial future of NSCC, the Commonwealth has begun using a performance-
based funding formula this fiscal year as a major change in the way community college appropriations
are determined. The formula was developed through the Department of Higher Education (DHE) and
determines the amount of state funds distributed to an institution. It has three major components: the
cost of operation subsidy, base allocation, and performance allocation. The cost of operation subsidy is
$4.5 million which is a standard amount distributed to each of the community colleges. The base allocation
is determined from completed credit hours, and the performance allocation is determined from eight
different student performance elements all weighted by discipline and priorities, and ranked among the
other community colleges. Although not fully operational at this time, the funding formula is likely to
have a significant impact on the how colleges make decisions regarding program priorities and resource
allocation. The Offices of Budget and Planning will be working with DHE to analyze NSCC's data and
determine areas of focus for maximum improvement in the funding formula outcome.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

NSCC continues to work towards aligning enroliment management, academic planning, facilities and fiscal
affairs with the goal of improving measures of performance and institutional effectiveness. The College
remains tuition and State fund dependent. With both major resources declining, the role of Finance is to
manage resources and expenses effectively within a transparent and controlled environment.

e The College updated its Internal Control Plan (ICP) in April 2013 with minimal change. In 2014, a
consultant was hired to review the plan and provide recommendations for updates. The complete
report indicated that the ICP needs to be rewritten. Some areas to update include automated and
technologically advanced processes that have already heen implemented as well as changes in roles
and responsibilities to maintain the necessary checks and balance. Within the next five years, the
College plans to complete a college-wide risk assessment and incorporate those recommendations.
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Education and training of staff continues to be important and is ongoing, especially in the use of the
Banner Enterprise System, in ensuring data integrity and accuracy.

e In 2012 and 2013, significant measures were undertaken to assess expenditures. The State
Community College Partnership for Collaborations and Efficiencies (PACE), Mass. Higher Ed.
Consortium {MHEC), and Office of the State Comptroller (OSD) were helpful in NSCC's success in
reducing expenses and discovering areas for improvement. NSCC implemented bond refinancing,
changing credit card processors, expanding the ProCard program and capitalizing on vendor
discounts and competitive pricing, as well as significant savings in Information Technology and
energy efficiencies. In 2015, plans are in place to improve the College’s bookstores through
improved merchandise offerings and student access, with goals of improving service and value.

e With decreasing resources, NSCC will need to be more data-driven in developing budgets and
establishing fees. To further stabilize student fees, developing alternative funding sources is being
explored. President Gentile brings an expertise in fundraising and in 2014, is committed to raising
the level of external fundraising activities.

e In 2014, the state allocation was determined by the new funding formula. The amount of funds
distributed was founded on base and performance assessments. Although NSCC's base ranking
was in line, the performance ranking was not and had a significant effect on overall funding, which
amounted to the lowest distributed percentage, a three and a half percent increase over the
previous year’s amount. To mitigate this situation, the College’s goals in the next five years, utilizing
data from a DHE and NSCC analysis, are to increase retention, course completions, and overall
student success to increase future funding allocations.

o The institution’s Board of Trustees, aside from budget and financial oversight, has assigned the
Finance Committee, a sub-committee made up of three Board Members, the responsibility to
review all executive budget and travel/entertainment expenses on a monthly basis and report
back to the full Board. This extended focus to increase overall transparency and oversight was
heightened in 2013 by a high-profile case regarding misuse of college resources. The Trustee
Finance Committee also acts as the Audit Committee, monitoring the annual Financial Statement
and Federal A-133 Audits processes.

e As a result of the 2009 Self Study, NSCC realized the importance of linking budget and planning.
One initiative was to implement a strategic planning software solution (SPOL) to help with planning
efforts, data tracking, and measuring results. Unfortunately, this solution was not feasible. The
software was a helpful tool; however business practices and operational processes were not
able to support its utilization. Currently, a budgeting process is being formalized that includes
linking the strategic initiatives and operational plan at the very beginning. The Strategic Plan is
reviewed by the President and Vice Presidents to determine the priorities and enrollment goals
for the upcoming year. A preliminary budget is prepared with input from deans and directors and
forwarded by the Executive Staff to the Board of Trustees for review and approval. In 2015, much
work will be dedicated to quantifying the strategic initiatives. Current work on the Enterprise Data
Warehouse, previously mentioned, will also allow for trend analysis supporting multi-year review
and forecasting.

NSCC Fifth-Year Report 36



STANDARD TEN — PUBLIC DISCLOSURE

DESCRIPTION

North Shore Community College presents information that is complete, accurate, timely, accessible,
meeting public disclosure requirements through an integrated mix of print, web-based and digital
communications, including institutional mission, vision, strategic plans, educational outcomes, academic
information, costs, student and graduate statistics. All official print and online publications are coordinated
through the Marketing Communications and Public Relations & New Media Departments, which report to
the Vice President of Institutional Advancement. The departments work closely on web content, including
posting news and events, calendar items, and announcements, as well as designing images and banners
and maintaining components of NSCC's website.

The official College print publications, such as the Academic Catalog and Student Handbook, are all posted
on the College website as downloadable PDFs. NSCC's website, www.northshore.edu, is the primary portal
for public disclosure and is managed by NSCC Web Services, a component of Information Systems in the
Administration and Finance division. The website serves as a central hub, allowing access to essential
information to all constituencies. Web Services works closely and collaboratively with the Director of
Marketing Communications and to a lesser extent the Director of PR & New Media on content revisions,
updates, and expansion. The trio and their teams strive to ensure synchronicity between print and online
updates. Web Services and the Director of Marketing Communications also work with Academic Affairs
to highlight General Education Outcomes on the web and in print. Additionally, in compliance with the
Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008, a special section directly related to public disclosure — Student
Consumer Disclosure Information — has been established, see http://www.northshore.edu/disclosure/.
(Please see Data Form 10.1)

APPRAISAL AND PROJECTION

The ubiquity of the internet and the explosion of social media have placed challenging demands in
delivering effective, efficient, and timely information.

e NSCC continues to shift its primary communication vehicles online, thus keeping them more
accessible, relevant, timely, and green. As part of this effort, the College is researching a new
product that will move the catalog creation online using an HTML environment, which will improve
production efficiency as well as accuracy and accessibility of information.

e The College is actively engaged in sharing a wide variety of information to various audiences
through the use of Facebook, Twitter, Linkedln, Instagram, Pinterest, YouTube and Flickr.
Communications have subsequently become more real-time based and comprehensive. Usage is
constantly monitored and effectiveness assessed in terms of the number of followers/friends, how
interactive they are with NSCC sites, and growth over the years. Future expected outcomes include
deeper engagement of users and steady growth in all of the above over time. New platforms are
also assessed as they become available to determine whether or not they are being used by NSCC
students and/or might be effective tools to enhance communications and outreach.

e Following an unfortunate alarm malfunction on our Danvers campus, an assessment of the
college’s Emergency Communication Plan was undertaken to specifically see how social media
was addressed. Upon analysis, it was determined it was not included in the plan and a new
section specifically pertaining to management of social media in times of crisis was created.
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Desired outcomes include being prepared and able to anticipate how quickly a crisis can go viral.
Subsequently the social media channels have been linked to the automated emergency messaging
system so that consistent, accurate messages can be sent automatically at a moment’s notice. A
drill of the new system was conducted and worked as planned. Repeated drills will be held multiple
times per year.

e An assessment of the College’s website determined it could be improved for ease of user
navigation, to include an online academic calendar, and updated in general. A ‘refresh’ of the site is
planned for 2014-2015 to coincide with the college’s year-long 50% anniversary celebrations under
the guidance of the college’s webmaster and director of marketing communications.

e In 2014, the College undertook a follow-up to a previous image study to gauge how NSCC is
perceived by students and the community. The last image study was conducted in 2006 by Jim
Black of SEM Works. He has again been contracted to conduct both written and verbal surveys
of prospective students, and businesses in the community. At this point he has produced several
initial reports on his findings and one more market study will be forthcoming. Once all results are
received they will be analyzed to determine how the college can even better market and promote
itself to its many constituencies. A plan will be created on how practices can be augmented or
improved across multiple platforms. It is anticipated that this work will take place in the fall of
2014.
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STANDARD ELEVEN — INTEGRITY
DESCRIPTION

North Shore Community College strives to promote integrity in decisions and actions, aspiring to meet the
highest ethical principles through “living” its mission and vision. (Please refer to Data Form 11.1) NSCC
builds upon core strengths and seeks sustained improvement in the area of integrity. The College continues
to be a “source of hope and opportunity” to welcome a diverse student body representing nations around
the world as well as students who have rarely left their home communities.

APPRAISAL and PROJECTION

Over the last five years, despite the challenging economic times, changing political environment and
significant College leadership transition, the College has maintained a high standard of integrity. For the
next five years, the focus on integrity will remain constant while reflecting values of student-centered
learning including helping students achieve their personal education goals; open communication and
transparency; inclusiveness and dedication to diversity, commitment to fulfilling legal requirements and
colleges policies, and civic leadership.

e With a focus on student success, the College has implemented academic and student support
initiatives to improve student achievement, retention, and degree completion. For example,
effective for the Fall of 2013 semester, new students were required to attend orientation prior to
registering. As a result, when comparing retention rates of the 2011 cohort to the 2012 cohort,
there was an increase of 60% to 64%. While this may seem nominal, it bodes well for future efforts
that will support preparing and retaining students. Under the combined leadership of Academic
Affairs and Student Enrollment Services Vice Presidents, additional strategies that are strongly
being considered include: mandatory advising prior to registration for each semester, block
scheduling, and a scaling up of outreach efforts during the semester to ensure full support for the
completion, success and retention of students.

e The College’s commitment to open communication and transparency is evidenced through the
Bulletin, a weekly newsletter, and the President’s Weekly Message both of which are emailed to
all full and part-time faculty, staff and retirees. Additionally, the posting of governance committee
minutes, noted earlier in this report, and the communications among college divisions through the
work of cross-component committees contribute to open communications as do the continued use
of PACE and CCSSE survey, findings of which inform improvements.

e The College continues to recruit and hire diverse faculty and staff. Over the past five years
institutional diversity of faculty and staff has increased from 16% in 2008 to 20% in 2013. At the
same time, the diverse student population has continued to substantially increase from 29.4%
in 2008 to 36.6% in 2013. The Diversity Leadership Council, National Coalition Building Institute,
Forum on Tolerance and Multicultural Society continue to contribute to a campus culture of
acceptance and inclusivity. An assessment of the college’s efforts in support of diversity is discussed
in the Reflective Essay.

e In 2006, a cross-component Compliance Committee was established to monitor issues related
to financial aid from reporting of student data to the National Clearing House to fiscal audits
to academic programs. During the summer and fall of 2013, a compliance consultant was hired
to develop an institutional calendar that integrated all department compliance and regulatory
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reporting requirements and a Compliance Google site was created. In spring 2014, the Executive
Staff expanded the Compliance Committee’s charge to include making recommendations on how to
use and manage the Compliance calendar and site. This work is in progress and, once established, a
baseline assessment of the College’s compliance activities will be conducted under the guidance of
the Executive Staff.

e NSCC remains dedicated to civic engagement and public partnerships yet given the State’s
assessment, via the Vision Project, of the value of civic learning the College’s commitment has
shifted from a three-pronged approach of service-learning, Public Policy Institute (PPI), community
service to an umbrella approach of Civic Learning. This change is in response to the requirement
that public colleges embed civic learning across the curriculum for the purpose of ‘preparing
students to assume the responsibilities of citizenship’ (Einal Report from the Study Group on Civic

Learning and Engagement: Preparing Citizens, p.3, 2013). With the emphasis on the curriculum and
inherently co-curriculum, the PPl activities have been subsumed into Academic Affairs and Student

Enrollment Services where service-learning and community service respectively are already housed.
As noted in the Areas of Emphasis, a Civic Learning Committee will oversee a baseline assessment
of the college’s engagement in curricula-rooted Civic Learning.
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REFLECTIVE ESSAY

ASSESSMENT OF STUDENT LEARNING

Because learning is the cornerstone of its mission, North Shore Community College actively engages in
assessment practices that place the student at the center of the educational enterprise. As a guiding
principle, assessment is “the process of seeking and interpreting evidence to use by learners and their
teachers to identify where the learners are, where they need to go, and how best to get there” (Assessment
Reform Group, 2002). Assessment, then, is fundamental to the College’s collective efforts in creating a
pathway for student success.

North Shore Community College has maintained a coordinated Assessment of Student Learning Outcomes
initiative since 1993 when it established the Center for Teaching, Learning and Assessment (CTLA) as a
resource for faculty and staff to improve teaching and learning through assessment processes. As noted in
E1A, NSCC’s review and assessment process has had a four-stage history. Since its beginning, the process
has evolved from articulating a program/department mission and developing supporting learning outcomes
to its present-day three-pronged assessment system (see Figure 1) 1) Institutional Assessment of Student
Learning Outcomes; 2) Department/Program reviews including academic and support services; and 3)
Assessment Menu. These activities reflect the work of an assessment redesign team that was formed to
improve and strengthen the overall assessment process. This 30-member team composed of faculty,
professional staff and administrators worked through the 2009-2010 summer and academic year to re-
envision and reframe the assessment system based on extensive faculty and staff feedback. During this
restructuring phase, the formal process of systematically reviewing programs and departments was
temporarily suspended until a successor assessment system was fully developed. Assessment of student
learning continued through course-level strategies supported with CTLA resources.

Figure 1: Assessment System

|

The College is now firmly positioned to fully implement its long-held commitment to assessment of student
learning. Grounded in assessment program successes, the credibility of faculty and staff work at local,
regional and state levels, and under the leadership of Dr. Hynick with guidance from CTLA assessment
professionals, NSCC will reinvigorate its systematic program review and assessment of student learning.
Further, it will continue to grow in areas such as: improved assessment activities and processes;
incorporating external perspectives more consistently; transparency; technology supported tools and
assessment management systems; and, linking assessment data and findings to budget and planning.

Institutional Assessment of Student Learning Qutcomes

A review of the College’s 2001 GenEd Outcomes led to a re-examination of student learning outcomes as an
important part of identifying skills and abilities necessary for today’s global society. Through a set of
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of surveys, faculty, staff, and students responded to the question, “Which skills are most important for
an NSCC graduate to have?” A faculty team, assisted by CTLA Staff, analyzed survey data and drafted an
updated version of the Student Learning Outcomes that went through a College-wide, including trustees,
vetting and refining process. Importantly, Critical Thinking emerged as the overarching attribute from which
essential student learning outcomes emanate. It was approved by the faculty and staff and the Board of
Trustees in 2013. NSCC Student Learning Outcomes are presented in Table 6. Note: The General Education
Outcomes at NSCC are considered as Institutional Student Learning Outcomes. (ISLOs)

Table 6: Student Learning Outcomes

The learning outcomes are designed to encourage student to think critically, to grow academically, and to engage culturally. The
outcomes reflect the importance of critical thinking, not as a single outcome but rather inherent in all outcomes

Critical Thinking Outcomes
Attributes
Define e Comprehend and critically analyze ideas and information, whether presented verbally, symbolically,

numerically, visually, or aesthetically.
e  Construct thoughtful, creative questions and ideas based on relevant and appropriate information.
° Participate in opportunities for civic engagement such as internship, community service, service
learning, or democratic processes and reflect on these experiences.

Investigate e Recognize when information is needed; locate, organize, evaluate, and use that information
effectively.
e Use information technology critically and creatively.
Evaluate s  Explore ideas from multiple perspectives, differentiate approaches for audience and purpose, and

support ideas with sufficient evidenced.
e  Work within diverse communities to develop solutions to civic problems of local, national, and/or
global significance.

Conclude o Relate to individuals, groups, and organizations in the professional/work environment and
community by demonstrating respectful and honest behaviors that have been modeled in the
academic setting.

e  Recognize the environmental, social, and economic aspects of sustainability and its
interdependence, and express awareness of how personal values and choices affect the
environment and society.

e Make informed decisions to solve real world problems.

Communicate o  Produce logically developed writing using correct grammar, spelling, and punctuation.

e Cite sources appropriate in written and oral work.

¢ Demonstrate accurate calculations and symbolic operations.

e  Use appropriate technology for basic applications, information access, and electronic
communication.

e  Show respect and courtesy for others both within and outside the NSCC community and reflect
sensitivity to other points of view.

One of the successful practices for establishing the culture of assessment at a campus is engaging key
representatives from all academic divisions in assessment. In NSCC, at the beginning of the year 2012, the
GenEd Assessment team was formed. In preparation for a pilot study of assessment of student learning
outcomes, the team attended many assessment related conferences and also underwent training on how
to use AAC&U VALUE rubrics in scoring. Using the Lumina Foundation degree qualifications profile, the
team modified the VALUE rubrics for Critical Thinking and Writing, the learning outcomes selected for the
pilot study.

In the spring of 2013, as noted in the Area of Emphasis, CTLA Staff along with the GenEd Team initiated
a Pilot Assessment employing an institution-wide assessment model with modified VALUE Rubrics in the
areas of Critical Thinking and Writing. The modified VALUE rubrics consist of four performance levels—
Benchmark, Milestone 1, Milestone 2, and Capstone—each with a set of agreed-upon accomplishments.
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Student work samples from 105 students in developmental, 100 & 200 course levels from all five academic
divisions were scored. Trained using VALUE rubrics, the GenEd Team was divided into small groups, each
group scoring approximately 16-18 samples. Inter-rater reliability was calculated and the weighted kappa
values were above 0.8. Providing a baseline, the Writing Skills assessment results show that 44% of
students are at the Benchmark level, 42% at Milestone 1 and 12% at Milestone 2 (see Figure 2).

Figure 2: Writing Skills Assessment
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|
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Because there were flaws in the assignment prompts, some of which were judged not to elicit critical
thinking, a full assessment of critical thinking has been postponed. However this pilot study was an initial
step in developing large-scale assessment studies. Furthermore, the pilot study provoked further discussion
about the criticality of writing, which has led to two projects: the first, mapping the writing courses in all
associate degree programs, was completed and findings shared with all the academic division deans. This
increased their understanding of the distribution of the writing intensive courses in each academic
division and garnered their support for continuing to assess writing. The second project, gathering
students’ personal opinions on their writing skills by conducting interviews was completed in summer 2014,
Also, the CTLA plans to facilitate a large scale study of writing skills assessment in 2014-2015 with the goals
of determining the level of students’ performances and ways to enhance their writing skills.

The purposes of this project were to assess the students' confidence in writing and receive their feedback
to improve the writing program. The results suggested that most of the students were confident about
their writing skills (62% confident, 25% somewhat confident and 13% not confident) and their confidence
levels increase as they spend more time in college (See Figure 3). Moreover, the study identified the
practices that students perceived as helpful and also collected their opinions and suggestions to improve
the writing program in college. In order to develop action plans, the study findings will be shared in the
department and division meetings in fall 2014.
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|Ligure 3: Cross-tabulation of Confidence Levels and Number of Semester(s) Completed
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Confident
Somewhat

confident
Not confident

Completed 1 semester Completed 3 semesters Completed more than 5
semesters

Other Institutional Assessment Initiatives (In progress):

In addition to assessment of academic skills, assessment projects examine several strategies that amplify
student engagement, promote Student Learning Outcomes, and reinforce institutional values. Two of the
projects are highlighted as examples:

In the fall of 2013, the Diversity Leadership Council in association with the CTLA completed the first phase
towards improving the College’s diversity efforts through assessment. A study of the College’s efforts
across six dimensions (noted below) was conducted. The purpose of this assessment project was to collect
baseline data to understand the current status of and take steps to make meaningful progress in increasing
diversity among faculty and staff as well as integrating an understanding of and appreciation into all aspects
of the College’s work. Data was collected using the Inclusive Excellence toolkit by Jesus Tervino, Thomas
Walker and Johann Leyba, Denver University Center for Multicultural Excellence, and assessed using the
NERCHE'S Diversity rubric. The results suggested that the college is at the Emerging stage in the area of
allocation of teaching and learning resources; at the developing stage, in other dimensions such as 1)
Philosophy and Mission, 2} Faculty Support and Involvement, 3) Curriculum, Pedagogy, and Research,
4) Student Support and Involvement, and 5) Administrative Leadership and Institutional Support; at the
transforming stage, in 6) Staff Knowledge and Awareness, and Institutional Evaluation and Assessment
components. These results were presented at a Diversity Collaborative event. The assessment data and
the committee’s recommendations will be also presented to the whole college community, and the
second phase towards improvement will begin in the fall of 2014 with the following goals a) developing
recommendations based on faculty and staff feedback to the assessment data; b) Diversity Leadership
Council and Executive Staff review of these recommendations; and, ¢) an improvement plan developed and
implemented.

With sustainability at the forefront of the College’s values, NSCC has embarked on several initiatives that
highlight environmental awareness for students, faculty, and staff. The College now offers two “green”
associate degree programs — Environmental Horticulture and Environmental Studies. Also, the Green
Curriculum Project raises student and community awareness of sustainability issues. As part of the project,
faculty incorporate discipline-related sustainability and environmental topics in their courses. Thirty-eight
faculty members, representing a cross-section of disciplines, have participated in this project thus far. In
order to enhance the effectiveness of the program, the soon-to-be established Civic Learning Committee
will conduct an assessment of Sustainability and Civic Learning in the fall of 2014 to determine where
elements of sustainability and civic leaning exist in the curriculum regardless of faculty participation in
the Green Curriculum Project or other related projects. The goal is to develop a baseline of data to be
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reviewed, analyzed, and form the basis of a plan for improving faculty and staff efforts.

Academic Department/Program Reviews

The second component of NSCC’s comprehensive assessment system is the departmental / programmatic
reviews. Ta ensure institution-wide assessment, three protocols have been developed: Department Review
for academic departments (e.g., Mathematics or English), Program Review for academic programs (e.g.,
Nursing or Early Childhood Education) and Department/Program Review for support programs (e.g.,
Service-Learning, Library, Advising). A department or program review at NSCC is considered a self-study
and each review process has a guide for conducting the self-study with support from the CTLA. From 2011-
2013, nine programs have completed their self-study, and an additional four self-studies - Physical Therapy
Assistant, Communication Skills, Early Childhood Education and College Success Seminar - are in progress.

To preserve flexibility, the self-study is designed in collaboration with the faculty or staff, division deans,
and members of the CTLA, who explore and discuss goals, considerations, and options in the design of the
self-study. The overall purpose is to provide faculty and staff with the opportunity to assess, analyze, and
reflect on their department or program. The process is intended to be collaborative and involve advisory
boards as an external perspective although every program or department does not have this opportunity.
The process is expected to lead to recommendations for improving teaching and learning and improvement
in services overall. Further, it reinforces the principle of academic freedom by recognizing that each
program or department may use various teaching, learning, and assessment methods. In general, the self-
study is conducted in one to three year cycles according to the needs of the department or program with a
team of three to five full-time faculty members, adjunct faculty, or staff participating. After the completion
of the process, the self-study team presents the findings at the department meetings as well as at the
annual on-campus Teaching and Learning conference.

Using the framework, departments/ programs examine their resources, sequence, relevance, and
cohesion of curriculum units for the purpose of improvement. For example, the History Department, after
a discipline review, introduced a new sequence of World History 1 and 2 courses in the academic year
2013-2014 based on their findings that World History would best prepare students for transfer to a four-
year college and most importantly, encourage them to be thoughtful citizens of the world. Similarly the
Office Technology program assessment resulted in reviewing, restructuring and reducing redundancies
within existing courses, and adding new, relevant courses to the program like BUS 102- Business Law and
RES 204 Real Estate Law courses were added to the Legal Administrative Assistant Program. Also, the
core curriculum of the Nursing Education program was revamped to align with the “Nurse of the Future”
competencies and to meet the needs of increasing geriatric care nursing as well as prepare students to earn
their Bachelors or Doctorial in Nursing. The courses were approved and implemented in the fall of 2013.

Assessment of student learning outcomes is one of the main components of a self-study. The History
department, in addition to examining their curriculum assessed their teaching methods and students’
writing skills through analysis of two sets of assignments—a midterm and a final—from four higher-
level history classes. The team developed essay guidelines and a rubric composed of six expected
outcomes: overall understanding, argument, evidence, organization and structure, clarity and style, and
documentation of sources. In total, eighty samples were rated using the rubric, and the results suggested
that more than 55 % of the students achieved proficient level. Department faculty members discussed
the findings and were of the opinion that the quantitative methods are not comprehensive, and it is often
difficult to assess critical thinking using statistical methods. The faculty exchanged thoughts and ideas
on high impact teaching methods and improved assessment methods for future implementation. The
discussions led to another classroom-level project using a qualitative assessment method (See Assessment
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discussions led to another classroom-level project using a qualitative assessment method (See Assessment
Menu section).

Furthermore, the review process encourages faculty to reflect upon their practices. For instance, the
Communications Skills Department faculty currently doing their self-study are actively engaged in
incorporating appropriate assessment strategies on the course or classroom level as a part of their study.
They are exploring portfolio assessment to replace standardized tests and timed writing exams. Portfolios
are considered to be one of the best available methods to assess students’ reading and writing skills, as
portfolios capture student performance over time, on multiple occasions within the framework of the
course, resulting in a more accurate understanding of students’ abilities.

Non- Academic Programs Assessment

To gauge institutional effectiveness, assessment of non-academic components provides an important
measure of support services that contribute to student achievement. For example, the Student Support and
Advising Center (SSAC) started the program assessment process for support departments in 2013. Because
of the wide range of services and the varying cycles in which these services are offered, it was decided to
assess the individual services separately, including Crisis Intervention, Transfer Counseling, New Student
Orientation, College Success Seminar, and Advising. In two areas, the assessment process has led to the
implementation of new services or practices.

In particular the assessment of Crisis Intervention Services highlighted the increased number and severity of
crisis situations handled by the SSAC. This information led directly to a restructuring of the SSAC staff with
the addition of two Senior Academic Counselor positions whose primary function is to work with students
in these situations. The second component that completed the assessment process was Advising, which is a
shared model between Student Services and Academic Affairs. Involving faculty and professional staff, the
focus of this assessment was frequency of advising contacts, quality of advising, best practices, and advisor
assignments. Based on the assessment results, the advisor assignment process was revised to increase the
number of students who were assigned an advisor who also taught one of the student’s courses that
semester.

Another example of student support services self study is Service-Learning. The Service-Learning program
was initiated in 2001 with a few faculty members and approximately 30 students. It has grown into a large
program with 56 faculty members and over 800 students taking part each year. In order to increase the
capacity and efficiency of the program, the Service-Learning Program underwent a review in 2011. Surveys
and interviews were conducted to get feedback from community partners, faculty and students. In student
satisfaction surveys (conducted every semester), 98 percent of service-learning students agreed that
service-learning improved their understanding of the course materials and its relevance beyond the
classroom; 96% of the students agreed that service-learning increased the likelihood that they will pursue
future opportunities to be involved in the community. The community partners and faculty gave positive
feedback about the program; however, after completing its self-study, the Service-Learning program
embarked on a series of action plans correcting deficiencies revealed in the self-study and resulting in the
following changes: a) Civic engagement has been included as a Student Learning Outcome; b) the College
recognizes and celebrates service-learning faculty efforts by including a service-learning letter of
appreciation in their work profile; c) service-learning activities are publicized regularly in the College
bulletin; d) the service-learning website was revised; and e) a Facebook page dedicated to NSCC Service
Learning was created. The program continues to expand benefiting significantly more students with 850
students participating in 2013-2014.
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Assessment Menu

To underscore the culture of assessment, the Assessment Menu—the third feature of the Assessment
System—is designed to increase engagement in meaningful assessment and simultaneously enable faculty
to tailor assessments to departmental and programmatic priorities. Taking an innovative approach, the
Assessment Menu defines the levels of assessment, the number of team members necessary, and the
potential for participatory stipends. Importantly, the Menu does not stipulate the project or the process;
rather, the Menu paves the way for faculty buy-in and ownership by allowing faculty and staff to conduct
assessment at any level, from a small inquiry to a department review. With built-in flexibility, the Menu
facilitates targeted assessment so that academic and student service components can gather data for
informed decision-making, planning, and improvements.

Guided by the CTLA, some recent examples include: the Center for Alternative Studies (CAS) assessed
Directed Study policies and procedures. The findings conveyed that the Directed Study faculty members
were satisfied with the program policies and procedures. However, they recommended setting a timeline
for the paperwork, clearly defining the role of faculty, students and administrators in the Directed Study
Program, and conducting an exit survey for students. This led to improvements in program’s standards, and
also changes in the official procedures that facilitate clear communications between faculty, students, and
administrators of the program; Influenced by the seminal work of Tom Angelo and Patricia Cross,
instructors use classroom action research technigues to get immediate feedback about what students are
learning. In one case, an instructor in the History Discipline conducted an assessment after a debate session
in the classroom. After getting the consent from students, she recorded their conversations and then asked
them to reflect upon their learning in writing. This direct assessment method allowed students to register
their learning in their own words while the analysis of recordings and reflection papers provided evidence
of student learning. In sum, the Assessment Menu encourages faculty/staff to ask questions that are
important to them but with a goal of enhancing student learning and success. The critical feature of the
Menu is that it accommodates experimentation, which leads to implementation of effective educational
practices.

In general, assessment is conducted not only with a goal of accountability but also with the aim of
improving educational practices that enhance student learning and success.

STUDENT SUCCESS

Clearly the overarching purpose of assessment is to determine the effectiveness of practices and
interventions that lead to increased student achievement, persistence, and degree-attainment. With a
sophisticated Institutional Research component, NSCC regularly collects critical data that document
strengths and point to areas needing improvement.

According to Astin (1993, p.18), a clinical and counseling psychologist, “any educational assessment project
is incomplete unless it includes data on students inputs, student outcomes and the education environment
the student is exposed...”. He developed the Input-Environment-Outcome (I-E-O) model (See Figure 3
below) to be used as a guiding framework for assessment in higher education.
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| Figure 3: Astin’s Input- Environment-Outcome (I-E-O) Model
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Inputs refer to personal qualities the student brings in to the program. The demographic profile provides a
peek at the qualities of NSCC's student population. At its two campus locations, fall program enrollments
indicated that 51% of NSCC students are in Career programs (degree and certificate), 39% in Transfer
Programs, and 10% non-matriculated. A snapshot reveals that the student population is predominantly
female (61%) and part-time (61%); more than half of them (58%) are first-generation college students; 58%
of the students are in the traditional age group (18-24 years); and many students (37%) work more than 30
hours per week (See Figure 4).

__Figure 4: Comparison of Work Patterns of NSCC Students with a National Cohort
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Indeed, more NSCC students (37%) work more hours per week than their counterparts across the nation
(31%). Both the part-time status and the heavy workload present challenges in terms of students’ achieving
their goals.

Environment

Environment refers to the student’s actual experiences in the college. The Community College Survey of
Student Engagement (CCSSE) provides data for internal assessment initiatives and formulation of high
impact practices. The scores of two fundamental indicators, Student Effort and Academic Challenge, that
focus on student learning were selected from the most recent CCSSE survey (2011), and displayed here.
These benchmark scores were measured against peer institutions and a national cohort.
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Table 7: Student Effort
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As a major factor in the achievement of educational goals, Student Effort examines eight areas such as
reading, writing, seeking help, and time spent on preparing for class. Table 8 shows that student effort at
NSCC is generally on par with other community college students although a bit higher, which may indicate
that NSCC students, despite their multiple responsibilities, reflect the “effort” demonstrated by or slightly
more their peers.
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Another measure, Academic Challenge, assesses the rigor of the learning experience. Survey items address
the nature and amount of assigned academic work, the complexity of cognitive tasks presented to students,
and the standards faculty members use to evaluate student performance. Table 9 indicates that the NSCC
students’ ratings of academic challenges are slightly higher than students from other community colleges.

Outputs

Outputs refer to the skills/abilities that are developed due to education. This includes indicators such as
grade point average, course completion rates, and graduation rates.

Course Completion Rates

On average, course completion rates of non-developmental college-level courses have remained above 70%
for the past five years, and the rate has been trending upward during this same period. At the same time,
the course completion rate compares favorably to the average of all Massachusetts community colleges
(see Table 9).

Table 9: Annual Credit Course Completion Rate

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
North Shore Community College 74.8% 75.2% 75.9% 77.0% 77.4%
Massachusetts Community College Average 76.7% 76.4% 77.0% 77.8% NA
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Reflecting national interest in developmental education, NSCC has embarked on several initiatives to
reform developmental curricula to include acceleration strategies, improved placement, and
contextualization to enable students to attain their educational goals more rapidly. Table 10 presents a five-
year view of student performance in developmental Mathematics and English.

Table 10: Developmental Math and English Completion Rates

MATH 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ATTEMPT 3,057 3,439 3,318 3,259 2,970
COMPLETE 1,871 2,194 2,140 2,151 1,759
61.2% 63.8% 64.5% 66.0% 59.2%

009 010 0 D 0
ATTEMPT 2,113 2,126 1,847 1,927 1,756
COMPLETE 1,596 1,674 1,476 1,514 1,399
75.5% 78.7% 79.9% 78.6% 79.7%

These innovations in developmental education are still being refined to determine best practices that
prepare students for college-level work. An apparent trend is the declining number of students in
developmental courses, over the past three years, perhaps attributable to improved placement procedures.
Nevertheless, the fluctuating completion rates are being examined by departmental faculty to assess the
impact of curricular innovation.

Professional Licensure Exams

Another area of success is the pass rate on the National Council Licensure Exam (NCLEX), a requirement to
become a registered nurse. Consistently, NSCC outpaces the performance of the average pass rate for
Massachusetts community colleges.

Table 11: NCLEX Pass Rates
00 008 009 010 0

NSCC Passing Rate 88% 96% 92% 89% 93%

Massachusetts CC Average Passing Rate 83% 87% 86% 88% 90%

Since the exam results exclude repeat test takers, the NCLEX pass rates are considered as a strong indicator
of academic quality and learning cutcomes. Further, NSCC NCLEX pass rates are consistently higher than
the average rates of its sister MA community colleges.

Retention and Graduation Rates

As part of its assessment of student achievement, the College closely monitors fall-to-fall retention as a
barometer of performance. While for the most part, retention has remained steady, there was a concerning
dip in 2011.
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Table 12: Fall to Fall Retention
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Clearly, getting students to the finish line is of central importance. For some, it is the associate degree; for
others it is transfer to a baccalaureate institution. Examining the three-year graduation rate for the past five
years reveals that NSCC has maintained a steady graduation rate of approximately 17% a figure the College
is committed to improve. At the same time, the transfer rate has increased by 34% from 2009 to 2013,
suggesting increased interest in acquiring a four-year degree.

rr Table 13: 3-Year Graduation and Transfer Rates 2009-2013
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Through various assessments and continuous data gathering, the College can identify and build on areas of
strengths as well as make tactical shifts to meet challenges. The Office of Institutional Research plays a vital
role in collecting and sharing the data regularly with concerned authorities. It helps informed decision-
making on behalf of student success.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS

Assessment at NSCC takes place on multiple levels, from statewide initiatives to institutional programs to
the classroom, but with an underlying focus on student learning and student achievement. With a
successful introduction of the restructured assessment process, the College has made progress in
developing a wide-ranging culture of assessment. With guidance from the CTLA, assessment practices
continue to evolve through professional development, involvement of cross-component teams, and
engagement of students. Under further guidance of the CTLA, self-studies will also continue to evolve to
include broader external perspectives.
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Moving assessment from a set of independent events to an integrated comprehensive system requires
several building blocks. To advance the assessment system, technology will provide the means to manage
data and track progress through an assessment management system (AMS). The college’s move to
implement Blackboard supports such advancement. It has increased options of doing assessment within the
system, and also an option of aligning with multiple outside resources then the College’s current LMS -
ANGEL. With this technological backbone, the College can develop and implement a strategic and
systematic plan for assessment self-studies of all academic programs, departments, and support
departments. As part of this process, the expansion of e-portfolios presents a structure for assessment of
students’ progress that can also be used to measure student learning outcomes.

In concert with improved technological infrastructure, the CTLA web presence will be developed into a
major assessment resource for both internal and external constituents. The website will be a searchable
site, which includes the publishing of program and department reviews, student learning outcomes,
supporting data, and best practices.

On an organizational level, the College will consider how assessment fits within the current governance
structure during the Coordinating Council’s college-wide assessment of the governance system with a goal
of formalizing a framework that incorporates assessment into strategic initiatives, curricular planning, and
budgeting priorities. Such a modification would complement the College’s ongoing involvement and
participation in the statewide Vision Project providing synchronicity between institutional initiatives and
statewide priorities.

At the core of NSCC's assessment initiatives is the examination of student learning outcomes for the
purposes of improving academic progress and student services. As a community of educators, NSCC faculty
and staff will be creating new tools to assess critical thinking, reflective judgment, and deep learning. By
championing assessment, the College becomes an agent for positive change, innovation, and collaboration.

References
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PLANS

In the next five years, the major foci will be on expanding and improving campus facilities; increasing
partnerships and relevant programs; supporting faculty and staff development to grow and sustain
academic and student programming; succession planning for a retiring workforce; and, fulfilling vision
project key outcomes. All of this will be guided through the leadership of the college President, Dr. Patricia
Gentile.

LYNN CAMPUS EXPANSION

The Lynn Campus, in contrast to the Danvers Campus which has no more buildable space, has ample space
for additional buildings and is projected to experience demographic and economic growth over the next
decade. The imminent expansion to the McGee building will be welcome. Because of funding limitations,
other upgrades to the McGee Building cannot be accommodated in this first round of expansion. Moreover,
improved access and connectivity between the College and the downtown Lynn still need to be addressed
along with a second phase of campus development focused on future program growth and additional
student space. Consequently, NSCC will self-fund the Master Plan update. The Master Plan update will
assess projected new academic programs and recommend additional buildings on the buildable space that
is still available on the Lynn Campus. Additional buildings could address the following outstanding critical
needs not met in the current Bond funding: 1) the outdated Lynn Campus cafeteria, library, and bookstore;
2) program space for Hospitality/Culinary Arts/restaurant, a long-term need and regional growth industry;
and 3) program space for Workforce Development and Corporate Training (consolidation would reduce
leased space in Beverly for approximately $240k annual cost savings). An update to the Master Plan is a
strategic activity that will lead to completing facilities on the Lynn Campus’s footprint, with appropriate
academic programs and student services through 2020.

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

In 2015, North Shore Community College (NSCC) will celebrate the 50™ anniversary of its founding in 1965.
Starting as a vision for a local, accessible institution of higher education based in and responsive to the
Essex County community it serves, NSCC has evolved to a high quality, multi-campus, comprehensive
community college enrolling 11,000 students annually in its credit programs and another 5,000 in its
noncredit programs and corporate training services in academic year 2013. Since inception, nearly a quarter
of a million North Shore residents have enrolled in NSCC courses.

The College has developed a strong bench of expert faculty, with 70% master-prepared and 21% doctoral-
prepared. The College understands that its excellence in serving students and the community rests in the
expertise of its employees and will continue to invest in professional development, leadership grooming,
and credential achievement.

Over the first half-century, NSCC has developed a wide breadth of strong partnerships with employers,
community organizations, government agencies, K-12 school districts, and other institutions of higher
education. Listening closely to its internal and external stakeholders, NSCC has created over 100 relevant
degrees (AA, AS, AAS, credit and non-credit certificates, and workforce credential programs). In every
aspect of NSCC’s founding vision, the College has matured into a model comprehensive community college.
The 50" anniversary celebration will honor the successful creation, growth and maturity of NSCC and allow
us to turn our collective attention to the next half-century vision.
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This mid-term report comes at a time of significant transition for NSCC as many employees who have
honorably served NSCC for decades are at the crossroads of retirement. By the end of this decade, NSCC
will have experienced a turnover of nearly 41% of full-time employees due to retirements alone since 2011.
This transition will affect the College across all levels from front-line service, in the classrooms, to top
leadership. For example, Dr. Wayne Burton, third president of the College who served for thirteen years,
retired in 2013. At the same time, long-serving Vice President of Academic Affairs, Paul Frydrych, also
retired. New leadership, new faculty, and new staff will certainly shape the vision and planning for the
future of NSCC.

At the 50" benchmark, a continuing challenge for the College exists in building campus facilities sufficient
to meet academic and student life needs—an important strategic focus going forward. Over the past five
decades, NSCC has struggled to obtain the campus sites, gather the capital resources, and implement a
building program to meet its phenomenal enrollment growth. As a result, despite hosting two campuses
(Danvers, Lynn) in Essex County, the College continues to lease classroom, lab, and office spaces in Beverly,
Lynn and Middleton (expected September 2014 for Culinary Arts and Cosmetology programs).

Over the past twenty years, the Danvers Campus has experienced capital infusion, new buildings, and
expansion resulting in a well-developed northern suburban campus. The Commonwealth’s first public Zero
Net Energy Building serves as the College’s Health Professions and Student Services center. Although the
Danvers site has become NSCC's sighature campus, several issues remain to be addressed, such as the need
for mass transit services and the aging infrastructure and renovation of the Math & Science building.

At the same time, the College’s urban southern campus in Lynn has suffered a historic space deficit that will
partially be addressed by a 28,000 square foot 3-story addition slated to begin construction in late 2014
with tentative opening in 2016. As the College turns its focus forward into the next half-century, the Lynn
Campus will be critical to a vibrant future. Demographic shifts and enrollment trends portend the growing
importance of developing the Lynn Campus site, facilities, academic and career technical degree programs,
and workforce development services.

As one of fifteen community colleges in the Commonwealth, NSCC contributes to the State’s higher
education philosophy and policies. In particular, the Board of Higher Education’s (BHE) Vision Project has
had a recent significant impact on NSCC and will continue to play an integral role in strategic, tactical, and
resource planning for the College. Under the Patrick Administration, the BHE adopted the Vision Project to
propel Massachusetts into national leadership by producing the best-educated citizenry and workforce. The
Vision Project focuses on seven key outcomes and has revised the State’s funding formula for community
colleges to provide incentives to meet those outcomes. Public accountability for outcomes, most certainly,
will continue to be a key element in the future of NSCC.

Finally, NSCC understands its future will be, in part, an extension of the good work and development of the
past. Yet declining public investment, heightened expectations for student success, and a growing demand
for excellent and relevant programs and services will fundamentally change the College’s operations.
NSCC’s healthy and sustainable future will be tied to building more and better pathways and collaborations
with education, community, business, and philanthropic partners. The College will certainly continue to
deal with the capital challenges that open access brings while committing more deeply than in its first fifty
years to ensuring residents of the North Shore the opportunity of an affordable, excellent education.
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f\f——— NEW ENGLAND ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES

N COMMISSION ON INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION
@ C 3 Burlington Woods, Suite 100, Burlington, MA 01803-4514
Voice: (781)425 7785 Fax: (781} 425 1001 Web: http://cihe.neasc.orp

AFFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS RELATING TO TITLE TV

Periodically, member institutions are asked to affirm their compliance with federal requirements relating to Title IV
program participation, including relevant requirements of the Higher Education Opportunity Act.

1. Credit Hour: Federal regulation defines a credit hour as an amount of work represented in intended learning outcomes and
verified by evidence of student achievement that is an institutional established equivalence that reasonably approximates not iess
than: {1} One hour of classroom or direct faculty instruction and a minimum of two hours of out of class student work each week for
approximately fifteen weeks for one semester or trimester hour of credit, or ten to twelve weeks for one quarter hour of credit, or the
equivalent amount of work over a different amount of time; or (2) At least an equivalent amount of work as required in paragraph (1)
of this definition for other academic activities as established by the institution including laboratory work, internships, practica, studio
work, and other academic work leading to the award of credit hours. (CIHE Policy 111. See also Standards for Accreditation 4.34.)

URL hitp://www.northshore edu/academics/definitions/credii-hour. html
Print Publications College Catalog

Self-study/Fifth-vear report Page page 16

Reference

Z. Credit Transfer Policies. The institution’s policy on transfer of credit is publicly disclosed through its website and other
relevant publications. The institution inciudes a statement of its criteria for transfer of credit earned at another institution of higher
education along with a list of institutions with which it has articulation agreements. (CIHE Policy 95. See also Standards for
Accreditation 444 and 10.5)

URL http:/rwww.northshore. edu/iransfer services/
Print Publications College Catalog

Self-study/Fifth-year Report Page page 17

Reference

3. Student Complaints. “Policies on student rights and responsibilities, including prievance procedures, are clearly stated, well
publicized and readily available, and fairfy and consistently administered.” (Standards for Accreditation 6.18, 10.5, and 11.8.)

URL hitp:/fwww.northshore. edu/students/
Print Publications Student Handbook
Self-study/Fifth-year Report Page page 26

Reference

4. Distance and Correspondence Education: Verification of Student Identity: If the institution offers distance
education or correspondence education, it has processes in place to establish that the student who registers in a distance education or
correspondence education course or program is the same student who participates in and compietes the program and receives the
academic credii. . ., The institution protects student privacy and notifies students at the time of registration or enroliment of any
projected additional student charges associated with the verification of student identity. (CTHE Policy 95. See also Standards for
Accreditation 4.42.)

Students participating in online courses are enrolled and verified through
a password-protected, secure learning management system (LMS).
Method(s) used for verification Enrollment is automatically generated through the Banner Student
Information System. As such, student access to all online resources is
through a central authentication system.

Self-study/Fifth-year Report Page page 17

Reference

Tuly, 2012



5. FOR COMPREHENSIVE EVALUATIONS ONLY: Public Notification of an Evaluation Visit and
Opportunity for Public Comment: The institution has made an appropriate and timely effort to notify the public of an

upcoming comprehensive evaluation and to solicit comments, (CHHE Policy 77.)

URL

N/A

Print Publications

Self-study Page Reference

The undersigned affirms that

North Shore Community College

(institution

name) meets the above federal requirements relating to Title IV program participation, including those enumerated

above.

Chief Executive Ofi’:"lc;fa:r;f"f:)?ﬂpj VA
)

Dr. Patricia A, Gentile, i""»,\_ j
. Ji

President

Date: /O "/ (p" /}[

July, 2012
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October 10, 2013

Members of the Board of Trustees
North Shore Community College

Ladies and Gentlemen:

North Shore Community College (NSCC) management is providing FY2013 financial statement results
that demonstrate continued success in managing College operations. Credit enrollments during FY13
continued to be essentially stable. The College lived within budget by administrative and sustainability
efficiencies, and holding down administrative expense. The graduating class of 2013 continued strong but
level with 2012. Although staff and resources have been stretched, efforts continued to provide access to
programs and services and maintain retention. The College expects consistent enrollment levels in
FY2014, which requires additional attention to revenue estimates, improved programs and services,
scheduling of classes in limited space, and efficiencies in operations to address the demand and retention
without loss of quality.

The preliminary FY13 budget was approved in May 2012 by the Board of Trustees, assuming that the
College would raise fees slightly and utilize some fund balance carried forward. The FY13 budget reflects
the priorities of the College’s Strategic Plan, such as Green initiatives and support for Student Success.
FY13 institutional budget development included level State appropriation, but no adjustment for the prior
years’ ARRA supplements, leaving the college with a need to raise fees and reduce expense budget. In
addition, a mid-year 1% reduction of $176k was mandated, reducing the appropriation further and shifting
payroll and additional fringe benefit expense to local funds. Approximately $800k from reserves was
designated by the Trustees to renovate space vacated by Student Services Staff that moved into the Health
Professions and Student Services Building the prior year — the renovated spaces, finished in August 2013,
included a new Veterans’ Center, consolidated Tutoring Center, large meeting room, a fitness area, and an
additional Math Redesign classroom. The Board of Trustees approved a student fee increase of $7 per
credit in May 2012 plus approximately $600k in reserves to assist in balancing the FY'13 budget and also to
provide for increased operational costs. The level enrollment increase in FY13 coupled with reduction of
expenditures due to utilities savings, marketing efficiencies, technology efficiencies, keeping close watch
on savings across all components, and capital improvements, led to a small increase in net position by the
end of FY13, reflected and supported by the financial statements.

The College, with the concurrence of the Trustee Finance Committee, continues to be conservative with
reserves and expenses, anticipating a continuing uncertain economic recovery through FY14 and possibly
beyond. Because there was not sufficient bond funds available from the new building project (originally
planned), the College received approval to spend some reserves in FY13 to renovate the Math and Science
building areas that were vacated when Student Services staff moved to the new HPSS building - a study
was funded by the College in FY12 to plan to utilize these spaces for other College priorities, such as
consolidating Tutoring Services and increasing classroom and other learning space capacity. The College
received Emergency funds of $350k from DCAM at the end of FY 12 towards upgrading the HVAC
system of the Math and Science building, a project that was completed in FY 13 and was a requirement for
the renovations of space. We will be requesting another round of DCAM funds to complete the HVAC
system of the Math and Science Building, which will allow us to move forward with Phase 2 of the
renovations in FY 14 in this building, to include a small renovation of the College Bookstore, Mailroom,
and IT deployment area.
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The FY2009-2013 Strategic Plan was developed under the direction of the College’s governance structure
and utilized a data-driven approach with broad institutional and community input. The FY2009-2013
Strategic Plan was approved institution-wide and by the College’s Board of Trustees in May 2008. The
Plan has six major goals with objectives and specific core activities: Institutional Culture,
LearnerCenteredness, Teaching and Academic Programs, Engagement, Environmental Sustainability, and
Resources for Growth. While these goals had foundations in the prior College Strategic Plan (FY2008 was
the fifth year of the Strategic Plan 2004-2008), core activities were intended to build upon successes of the
last five years and bring the College to the next level. Engagement and Environmental Sustainability were
new goals for the College, and reflect an institutional commitment to integrate these 21* century values
into the life of the College. This Strategic Plan was completed in FY13, and the next Strategic Plan 2014-
2016 was completed and approved in May 2013, unanimously, by the College Governance Coordinating
Council, full Faculty/Staff meeting, and Board of Trustees. The fact it had unanimous approval is a
testament to the collaborative model and governance-infused process, guided by a cross-component
Strategic Plan Steering Committee.

In FY2013, North Shore Community College continued to make progress in planning and implementation
of sustainable environmental practices with sustainability projects through DCAM, in addition to
completion of the new Health Professions and Student Services building. The College completed an
agreement with the State for an Energy Performance Grant/Bond through DCAM - these funds,
anticipated to provide significant energy improvements and savings at both the Lynn and Danvers
campuses, will be paid (bond portion) through savings over next several years. Significant utilities savings
were also seen due to late acceptance of the new building HVAC systems, and a relatively mild winter
season overall. Environmental sustainability will continue as a strong future strategic direction and
commitment of the College.

The Capital Facilities Master Plan process under the purview of the BHE/DCAM started in FY07 and was
completed in FY08. The NSCC Capital Facilities Master Plan outlines the priority building projects and
options for completing the Danvers and Lynn campuses, and formed the basis for $52.6m allocations for
Danvers and Lynn campuses included in the State Capital Higher Education Bond bill. With the
completion of the Danvers HPSS building, the College turns its sights and focus on space needs on the
Lynn campus. $20.7m has been allocated in the State Bond bill to expand and renovate the Lynn campus,
and the College received approval for self-funding a study for Lynn campus expansion at the end of FY10.
An Interdepartmental Service Agreement for $175k between DCAM and NSCC was in place in Fall FY11,
the State Designer Selection Board approved a Project Manager and Design Firm (Shepley Bullfinch) in
March 2011, the Study commenced in April 2011. An additional $200k from the College was placed in
amendment to the ISA so the Study continued with more detail (including study of potential sustainability
options such as solar and wind technologies) through FY 13, with the study at ST04 stage by August 2012.
This is the next major building initiative critical to meeting NSCC’s documented space needs within the
next five-ten years. It is hoped that the Lynn Expansion and Renovation Study project will be approved for
construction phase by inclusion on the FY14 State Capital Spending Plan, which is expected to be released
in the Fall of 2013.

The College also began a collaboration and signed an agreement for a public/private partnership with
Higher Education Partners, a private equity firm, to find space in Lynn close to the Lynn campus that could
be repurposed for the Culinary and Cosmetology programs that must be vacated from the Essex Aggie
property by Fall 2014, to accommodate the construction schedule for a new Regional Vocational Technical
High School. The HEP partnership would establish a Culinary and Cosmetology Center on Union Street in
Lynn, is being planned during FY14, and is expected to be ready for opening for the Fall 2014 semester.
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This space would also provide some general classrooms and workforce training. A shift of focus to Lynn
activities (Lynn is a Gateway City) will continue in the next several years as this is a demographic
population (immigrant and diversity) of expected growth and workforce need, and a key strategic direction
for the College.

North Shore Community College continues to be a leader in regional collaborations, K12 partnerships and
regional workforce development, maintaining a reputation for providing quality education programs
specifically designed to meet regional needs. The Division of Corporate and Community Education
increased corporate training contracts during FY2013. Workforce development and better relationship
between industry needs and community college academic programming remains another major focus by
Massachusetts Governor Patrick and the Department of Higher Education Vision Project goals. The
College also collaborated as an active participant in a system-wide three-year $20m grant from the Federal
Dept. of Labor to strengthen the community colleges ability to respond to workforce needs and increase
graduates in specific job categories; NSCC's share will provide additional support for Re-Design of
Developmental Math, including renovation of classrooms and faculty training, to increase the rate and
shorten time of students moving through to College level Math proficiency, and for expansion of the
Career Pathways project begun under a FIPSE grant.

As part of the FY 13 State Budget legislation, several sections and language is changing the governance and
appropriation process for Massachusetts Community Colleges. Intended to strengthen the coordination of
the community colleges, legislation also mandated that the Department of Higher Education (in
consultation with Community College Presidents) develop a budget allocation formula for the FY 14
appropriation based on enrollments and performance factors. The College Board of Trustees retains its
authority over local fees. As a result of implementing a pilot of Performance-based funding formula,
additional funds were approved for public higher education appropriations in Massachusetts, with the
caveat that fees would not increase for FY14. NSCC received approximately a 3.5% increase in its
appropriation for FY 14, plus an amount for collective bargaining — the College therefore did not raise fees
for FY14. The FY14 Budget also includes an estimate for savings (there will also be long term major
savings for the College) expected from re-financing the College’s Series B and C HEFA bonds, for which
bids were received through Mass Development and closing is expected by end of October, 2013.

A large impact during FY13 was the announcement of substantial leadership change in January, 2013.
President Wayne Burton, after 13 years in office, announced his retirement effective July 31, 2013, and
subsequently there was the announcement that VP of Academic Affairs, Paul Frydrych, after 42 years at
the College, would be retiring effective August 15, 2013. This set in motion a Presidential Search process
by the College Board of Trustees, under the new requirements for Presidential Search by the State
Department of Higher Education. That Presidential Search is expected to recommend a final candidate to
be approved by the DHE in October, 2013. In May, 2013, the Board of Trustees approved an Interim
President (the CFO) and Interim VP of Academic Affairs (Dean of Liberal Arts) to be in place effective
when the two retired during summer, 2013, and providing continuity in Executive leadership during the
transition to a new President. The Interim President would serve until such time as a new President could
be hired and available on campus, hopefully by January, 2014. At the time of this audit, the Presidential
Search is on schedule.

The 2013 audit also includes an A-133 audit of Federal funds, which had previously been provided by the
State of Massachusetts through a State Single Audit. The State Comptroller changed the process for public
Higher Education institutions for FY 12 and beyond - each college will now be responsible for including
an annual A-133 audit as part of their annual College audit and Financial Statements.
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Overall, these financial statements reflect that we met or exceeded our FY13 Key Performance targets and
ambitious institutional objectives, despite many fiscal challenges in the past fiscal year. College
management looks forward to FY2014, the first year of the new three-year Strategic Plan 2014-2016, even
as we all face the economic challenges and potential political changes of the coming year.

Sincerely,

North Shore Community College
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The following discussion and analysis provides management’s view of the financial position of North Shore
Community College, (the College) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of operations for the years then
ended. This analysis should be read in conjunction with the College’s financial statements and notes thereto,
which are also presented in this document.

North Shore Community College is a public institution of higher education serving almost 16,000 credit and
noncredit students annually with 135 full time faculty, 374 part time faculty, 294 full time staff and 175 part time
staff members. Campuses are located in Danvers, Beverly, and Lynn, Massachusetts. In addition, the College
offers programs and courses in offsite locations throughout the greater North Shore area. The College offers
approximately 100 credit programs leading to Associate of Arts, Associate of Science, and Associate of Applied
Science degrees and one year certificates. In addition, North Shore offers almost 1,000 noncredit workforce
development and recreational courses.

Financial Highlights

° At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the College’s assets of $90,545,024 and $91,699,114, respectively, exceeded
its liabilities of $22,522,696 and $23,730,203 by $68,022,328 and $67,968,911, respectively. The resulting
net position is summarized into the following categories: net investment in capital assets, restricted
(expendable and nonexpendable), and unrestricted.

° The College’s Trustees may use the unrestricted net position of $6,984,283 at June 30, 2013 to meet the
College’s ongoing obligations to its stakeholders. Additionally, the restricted, expendable net position of
$200,088 at June 30, 2013 may also be expended, but only for the purposes for which the donor or grantor
intended.

e The College’s total net position increased by $53,417 in 2013 compared to an increase of $7,351,228 in
2012. The 2013 decline is attributed to a decrease in capital appropriations due to the completion of a new
academic building on the Danvers campus in 2012.

o Unrestricted net position for FY2013 decreased by $404,166 to $6,984,283. Unrestricted net position for
FY2012 increased by $974,022 to $7,388,449.

This decrease in unrestricted net position for FY2013 resulted from the use of planned budgetary expenditures
for the new academic building.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The College’s financial statements comprise two primary components: (1) the financial statements and (2) the
notes to the financial statements. Additionally, the financial statements focus on the College as a whole, rather
than upon individual funds or activities. The College follows principles established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

North Shore Community College Foundation (the Foundation) is a legally separate tax-exempt component unit
of the College. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement the resources that are
available to the College in support of its programs. The Board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating and
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primarily consists of graduates and friends of the College. Although the College does not control the timing or
the amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources received or held by the Foundation are
restricted to the activities of the College by the donors.

Because these resources held by the Foundation can only be used by or are for the benefit of the College, the
Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College’s financial
statements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is required to focus on the College, not its component unit.

The Financial Statements

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of North Shore Community
College’s finances and are comprised of three basic statements.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the North Shore Community College’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the North Shore Community College
is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the
College’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., the payment for accrued compensated absences, or the receipt of amounts due from students
and others for services rendered).

The Statement of Cash Flows is reported on the direct method. The direct method of cash flow reporting portrays
net cash flows from operations as major classes of operating receipts (e.g., tuition and fees) and disbursements
(e.g., cash paid to employees for services). GASB requires this method to be used. The Foundation is not
required to present the statement of cash flows.

The financial statements can be found on pages 19 to 21 of this report.

The College reports its activity as a business-type activity using the economic resources measurement focus and
full accrual basis of accounting. The College is also part of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Therefore, the
results of the College’s operations, its net position, and its cash flows are also summarized in the
Commonwealth’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
financial statements. The notes provide information regarding both the accounting policies and procedures the
College has adopted as well as additional detail of certain amounts contained in the financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 22 to 36 of this report.
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Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the College’s financial position. In the
case of the North Shore Community College, assets exceeded liabilities by $68,022,328 and $67,968,911 at the
close of FY 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets net of related debt and capital leases used to acquire
those assets, and is by far the largest portion of the College’s net position in fiscal year 2013 and 2012,
representing, 89.44% and 88.89% or $60,837,957 and $60,423,655, respectively. The College uses these capital
assets to provide services to students, faculty, and administration; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the College’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Also, in addition to the debt noted above, which is reflected in the College’s financial statements, the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts regularly provides financing for certain capital projects through the issuance of
general obligation bonds. These borrowings, which are obligations of the Commonwealth, are not reflected in

these financial statements.

Condensed financial information

2013 2012 2011
Current assets $ 15,390,880 16,431,675 16,934,028
Noncurrent assets 75,154,144 75,267,439 65,243,216
Total assets $ 90,545,024 91,699,114 82,177,244
Current liabilities $ 9,487,416 10,060,347 8,915,717
Noncurrent liabilities 13,035,280 13,669,856 12,643,844
Total liabilities $ 22,522,696 23,730,203 21,559,561
Net Position:
Invested in capital assets $ 60,837,957 60,423,655 51,770,513
Restricted, expendable 200,088 156,807 484,699
Unrestricted 6,984,283 7,388,449 8,362,471
Total net position 68,022,328 67,968,911 60,617,683
Total operating revenues $ 39,536,634 37,764,483 38,569,376
Total operating expenses 62,866,897 61,262,173 60,280,538
Net operating loss (23,330,263) (23,497,690) (21,711,162)
Net nonoperating revenues 22,291,441 22,926,116 24,351,152
Change in net position before
capital appropriations (1,038,822) (571,574) 2,639,990
Capital appropriation 1,092,239 7,922,802 16,103,096
Increase in net position 53,417 7,351,228 18,743,086
Net position — beginning 67,968,911 60,617,683 41,874,597
Net position — ending $ 68,022,328 67,968,911 60,617,683
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Major sources of revenue for the College are Tuition and Fees and the State Appropriation. Tuition is set by the
Board of Higher Education at $25.00 per credit for both FY2013 and 2012. Fees are set by the College’s board of
trustees at $144.00 for FY2013 and $137 for FY2012, per credit for the Fall and Spring semesters.

Source of Operating and Nonoperating Revenues
2013

Other auxiliary
enterprises
6%

Other sources
Federal, state, local and 1%
private grants and

contracts
30% State appropriations
3 36%
Net tuition and fees /
27%
State fiscal stabilization
fund {ARRA)
0%

Source of Operating and Nonoperating Revenues
2012

Other auxiliary
enterprises
5%

Other sources

Federal, state, local and 1%

private grants and

contracts
26% State appropriations
= 45%
Net tuition and fees /
23%

State fiscal stabilization
fund (ARRA)
0%

Highlights of operating revenue activity include:

° An increase of 3.38% or $912,212 in FY2013 in tuition and fees before scholarship allowances. This is
primarily due to a $7 per credit increase effective the Fall 2012 semester offset by little or no change in
enrollment numbers for the Fall 2012 semester and the Spring 2013 semester. This compares to an increase
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of 1.5% or $397,997 in FY2012 in tuition and fees before scholarship allowances. This was primarily due
to a $7 per credit increase effective the Fall 2011 semester offset by decreases in enrollment of 1.0% in the
Fall 2011 semester and of 3.3% in the Spring 2012 semester.

June 30
2013 2012 2011
Tuition and fees $ 27,900,897 26,988,685 26,590,688
Tuition remitted 1,034,407 725,758 900,000

An increase of 1.65% or $303,176 in federal, state, local, and private grants and contracts, compared to an
increase of 1.16% or $210,720 in FY2012. This change is primarily due to an increase in federal aid
accounts.

Major grants and contracts received by North Shore Community College for the year included the following:

Vocational Education grant from the Massachusetts Department of Education — award amount — $334,492
Upward Bound grant from the U.S. Department of Education — award amount — $380,280

Student Support Services grant from the U.S. Department of Education — award amount $477,726

Talent Search from the U.S. Department of Education — award amount — $230,000

Colleges of Worcester Consortium, Inc. — award amount — $150,378

FIPSE — $380,000 over 2 years, $120,000 for FY 13

OJIDP - $400,000 over 3 years, $104,754 for FY13

Region 3 Educators Support — $795,319

Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College & Career Training (TAACCCT) from the U.S.
Department of Labor - $785,000 over 3 years, $400,000 for FY13

Veterans Education & Job Training Project - $400,000 over 2 years, including no cost ext. $152,781 in
FY13

Project Access Bridge to the Future - $187,083 for 3 years, $88,796 for FY 13
Adult Learning Center — MA DHE - $183,773

Other auxiliary enterprises include the operations of the student bookstore service. The revenue generated from
these operations for FY2013 was $3,565,462, a decrease of $179,491 or 4.79% from FY2012. The revenue
generated from these operations for FY2012 was $3,744,953, an increase of $70,943 or 1.93% from FY2011.
Auxiliary operations expenses for FY2013 totaled $3,403,173, a decrease of 2.71% or $94,839 from FY2012.
Auxiliary operations expenses for FY2012 totaled $3,498,012, an increase of 0.23% or $8,142 from FY2011.
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In FY2012, there was decrease in sales revenue, due a decrease in new text book sales. In FY2012, there was a
slight increase in sales revenue, due to increased costs of textbooks. Also, new federal legislation effective
July 1, 2010 required bookstores to post ISBN numbers on their website; this factor allowed students to purchase
their textbooks at alternate sites, including other online stores, resulting in sustained decreases in sales. These
changes resulted in a net income from auxiliary operations enterprises for fiscal year 2013 of $162,289,
compared to $246,941 in fiscal year 2012.

Operating Expenses

Depreciation and 2013
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Highlights of operating expense activity include:

A decrease of 0.13% or $31,818 in instruction expenditures in FY2013. This slight decrease is primarily
due to a decrease in the fringe benefit rate from 32.98% in FY2012 to 25.98% in FY2013, which helped to
offset an increase in full-time salaries from collective bargaining increases. This compares to an increase of
4.93% or $1,121,799 in FY2012, which was due to an increase in the fringe rate from 31.82% to 32.98%,
as well as an increase in enrollments and resulting part-time faculty expenses.

An increase of 6.90% or $510,136 in academic support expenditures in FY2013, primarily due to
collective bargaining increases for full-time salaries. This compares to an increase of 2.53% or $182,530
in FY2012, primarily due to an increase in federal grant expenses, and an increase in the fringe benefit rate
from 31.82% to 32.98%.

An increase of 4.29% or $359,170 in student services expenditures in FY2013, primarily due to a
collective bargaining increases for full-time salaries. This compares to an increase of 3.06% or $249,051 in
FY2012, primarily due to an increase in the fringe benefit rate from 31.82% to 32.98% as well as
collective bargaining increases for full-time salaries.

An increase of 27.11% or $1,018,745 in scholarships and fellowships in FY2013, mainly due to an
increase in student loans, resulting in more refunds to students. By comparison, there was a decrease of
24.13%, or $1,195,148 in FY2012, mainly due to an increase in student aid applied to tuition and fees
resulting in lower refunds to students.

A decrease of 8.20% or $25,244 in public service expenditures in FY2013. In FY2012, there had been an
increase of .067% or $2,048 mainly due to the slightly increased activity.

An increase of 11.18% or $540,799 in operation and maintenance of plant expenditures in FY2013, due to
additional expenses incurred for renovations to the math and science building. By comparison, there was a
decrease of 6.99% or $321,524 in FY2012, due to a decrease in utilities expense of $277,000 and a
decrease in snow removal due to a mild winter.

A decrease of 21.43% or $1,304,832 in institutional support expenditures in FY2013, primarily due to a
decrease in the fringe benefit rate from 32.98% in FY2012 to 25.98% in FY2013 which helped to offset the
increases in expenses from FY2012 and FY2013 in the areas of retirement payouts of compensated
absences, audit including A-133, HEFA related insurance and equipment. In FY2012, there was an
increase of 14.65% or $948,243 due to an increase in the fringe benefit rate from 31.82% in FY2011 to
32.98% in FY2012.

For non-operating revenues and expenses, the Commonwealth’s total appropriations decreased by 2.89% or
$670,981 compared to an increase of 3.27% or $740,333, in FY2013 and 2012, respectively. The College
received a capital appropriation of $1.1 million for post construction improvements to the new Health
Professions and Student Services building on the Danvers Campus and completion of the Clean Energy
Investment Project.
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The Commonwealth’s fringe benefits provided for employees on the Commonwealth’s payroll decreased in
FY2013 by 20.59% or $1,207,783 to $4,657,852 compared to 5.26% or $293,181 to $5,865,635 in FY2012. The
fringe benefit rate decreased by 7 points to 25.98% from 32.98% for FY2012 compared to an increase of 1.16
points to 32.98% from 31.82% for FY2012, respectively. The Commonwealth’s fringe benefits provided for
employees on the Commonwealth’s payroll increased in FY2012 by 5.26% or $293,181 to $5,865,635 compared
to $5,572,454 in FY11. The fringe benefit rate increased by 1.16 points to 32.98% from 31.82% for FY2012
compared to an increase of 5.4 points to 31.82% for FY2011, respectively.

Tuition remitted to the Commonwealth increased by 42.53% or $308,649 in FY2013, compared to a decrease of
19.36% or $174,242 in FY2012, this decrease was due to an increase in net student fees.

Investment income decreased in FY2013 by 26.62% or $6,612 compared to an increase of 5.41% or $1,275 in
FY2012. The decrease is related to declining interest rates and lower balances in interest bearing accounts. The
“Temporary Full FDIC Insurance Coverage for Noninterest-Bearing Transaction Accounts” expired on
December 31, 2012 limiting insured deposits to $250,000 per institution effective January 1, 2013.

Loss from Operations

Because generally accepted accounting principles requires state appropriations to be presented as nonoperating
revenues, the College incurred a loss from operations in FY2013 and 2012. The Massachusetts Board of Higher
Education presets tuition rates, and the College’s board of trustees sets fees and other charges. Commonwealth
appropriations to the College made up the loss from operations not made up by tuition and fees.

The College, with the purpose of balancing educational and operational needs with tuition and fee revenues,
approves budgets to mitigate losses after Commonwealth Appropriations.

Capital Assets and Debts of the College
Capital Assets

The College’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 amounts to $73,004,777 and
$73,103,328, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. The College recognized $1.1 million in capital
appropriations in FY 2013 primarily for additional improvements to infrastructure to the new Health Professions
and Student Services building in Danvers and completion of the Clean Energy Investment Project. This
investment in capital assets includes land, building (including improvements), furnishings, and equipment
(including the cost of capital leases).

Debt

The College carries long-term debt, other than accruals for compensated absences, workers compensation, and
other long-term settlement obligations. Included in debt are $7,675,000 Series B bonds issued in March of 1998,
which are payable semiannually through FY2022 in principal repayment amounts between $170,000 and
$555,000. Interest is payable semiannually (April 2 and October 2) at fixed rates between 3.5% and 5.0%.

13



NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Required Supplementary Information
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Unaudited)

In December 2000, the College issued $7,610,000 of Series C bonds through the Health and Education Facilities
Authority. Principal is payable semiannually through FY2002 through 2026 in amounts ranging from $175,000
to $540,000. Interest is payable semiannually at fixed rates, ranging between 4.30% and 5.25%.

The College is required to maintain an escrow sufficient to pay one year’s principal and interest on the bonds.
This amount is included in deposits with bond trustee. The bonds are collateralized by certain property.

In 2012, the College added $1,966,772 to its debt obligations for a 10 year note for the Clean Energy Investment
Program (CEIP). The first payment for the note, in February of 2012, was in the amount of $97,532 for interest
only. The note represents 53% of the anticipated total obligation of $3,686,772 for equipment, design, and
installation of mechanical, electrical, controls and plumbing conservation measures at the Lynn and Danvers
Campuses. The remaining 47% or $1,600,000 will be paid for by the Department of Capital Asset Management
(DCAM).

In 2011, the College issued $148,050 of Series 2010A-9 bonds through the Massachusetts Development Finance
Agency for a Clean Renewal Energy Bond. Principal is payable annually and interest is payable semi-annually
commencing on November 1, 2010 through May 1, 2027. The Bond is designated a “clean renewable energy
bond” pursuant to Section 54C of the Internal revenue Code of 1986 and shall bear interest at a rate of 3.5%. The
debt is to fund a project for a 77 kilowatt photovoltaic system for the Danvers campus Berry building. The total
project cost is estimated to be $559,000, which will be funded from two sources: (1) grants from Division of
Capital Asset Management (DCAM) in the amount of $410,950 and (2) a financing agreement with Century
Bank and Trust Company, CREB financing secured by the College in the amount of $148,050.

In 2008, the College issued $190,600 of Series 2007A bonds through the Massachusetts Development Finance
Agency for a Clean Renewal Energy Bond. Principal is payable annually commencing on December 31, 2007
through December 31, 2021 and does not bear interest. The bond proceeds plus a grant in the amount of
$358,100 from the Massachusetts Technology Collaborative was used to fund a project for a 62.2 kilowatt solar
photovoltaic grid-tied panel on the roof of the Lynn Campus gymnasium.

The noncurrent accrual for compensated absences consists of the long-term portion of sick and vacation pay
relating to employees on the College’s payroll.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the College’s financial position for all those
with an interest in the College’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, North Shore
Community College, One Ferncroft Road, Danvers, Massachusetts 01923.
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Two Financial Center
60 South Street
Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
North Shore Community College:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component unit of North Shore Community College (the College) as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us and our opinions, insofar as they
relate to the amounts included for the discretely presented component unit, are based on the report of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement. 5

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities
and the discretely presented component unit of the College as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter

The financial statements of the College are intended to present the financial position, the changes in
financial position and cash flows that are attributable to the transactions of the College. They do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on
pages 5 - 15 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the College’s basic financial statements. The Letter of Transmittal is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. It has not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10,
2013 on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting

and compliance.
KPMes LLP

October 10, 2013
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2013 and 2012

North Shore Community

North Shore Community

College College Foundation
Assets 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 11,007,669 11.902,172 271,427 155,023
Cash held by State Treasurer (note 3) 777,163 762,360 —_ —
Investments (note 2) 941,155 936,105 - - —
Accounts receivable, net (note 4) 1,542,860 1,677,899 92,642 146,932
Inventory and other current assets 1,122,033 1,153,139 — -
Total current assets 15.390.880 16,431,675 364,069 301,955
Noncurrent assets:
Funds held by bond trustee — restricted
(notes 2 and 6) 2,149.367 2,164,111 — —
Investments (note 2) — — 5,646,460 5,181,525
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation (notes 5 and 6) 73.004.777 73,103,328 — —
Total noncurrent assets 75,154,144 75,267,439 5,646,460 5,181,525
Total assets $ 90,545,024 91,699,114 6,010,529 5,483,480
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities (note 3) $ 1,081.463 2,272,784 197,782 181,637
Accrued payroll (note 3) 3,058,394 3,193,115 — —
Compensated absences and workers comp (note 6) 3,187.444 2,523,185 —_ —
Accrued interest payable 128,095 135,513 — —
Students” deposits and unearned revenues 038,421 870,149 — —
Funds held for others 158,616 176,741 28,291 22,597
Current portion of bonds payable (note 6) 647,143 612,142 — —
Current portion of note payable (note 6) 287.840 276,718 — —
Total current liabilities 9.487.416 10,060,347 226,073 204,234
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences and workers comp (note 6) 1,761,420 1,445,706 — —_
Note payable (note 6) 1.835,552 2,123,392 — —
Bonds payable (note 6) 9,438,308 10,100,758 — —
Total noncurrent liabilities 13.035.280 13,669,856 — —
Total liabilities $ 22,522,696 23,730,203 226,073 204,234
Net Position
Investment in capital assets $ 60,837,957 60,423,655 - —
Restricted:
Expendable (note 7) 200,088 156,807 1,823,611 1,601,917
Nonexpendable —_ — 1,769.888 1,734,950
Unrestricted (note 8) 6,984,283 7.388,449 2,190,957 1,942,379
Contingencies (note 9)
Total net position b 68.022.328 67,968,911 5,784,456 5.279.246

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

North Shore Community

North Shore Community

College College Foundation
2013 2012 2013 2012
Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees $ 27,900,897 26,988,685 — —
Less scholarship allowances (10,645,444) (11,358,071) — —
Net student fees 17,255,453 15,630,614 — _
Grants and contracts 18,627,589 18,324,413 -— —
Auxiliary operations 3,565,462 3,744,953 — -
Other sources 88,130 64,503 — —
Total operating revenues 39,536,634 37,764,483 - —_
Operating expenses (note 10):
Instruction 23,860,813 23,892,631 —- —_
Academic support 7,906,583 7,396,447 —_— —
Student services 8,737,563 8,378,393 — —
Scholarships and fellowships 4,776,400 3,757,655 193,621 320,064
Public service 282,575 307,819 — e
Operation and maintenance of plant 4,821,828 4,281,029 — —
Institutional support 6,117,991 7,422,823 72,617 63,447
Depreciation and amortization 2,959,971 2,327,364 o —
Auxiliary operations 3,403,173 3,498,012 — —
Total operating expenses 62,866,897 61,262,173 266,238 383,511
Operating loss (23,330,263) (23,497,690) (266,238) (383,511)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations — unrestricted (note 11) 21,931,979 23,042,578 — —_—
State appropriations — restricted (note 11) 746,748 307,130 — —
Federal grants (ARRA) — 55,790 — —
Gifts, grants and contributions — — 377,126 446,009
Net investment income (note 2) 18,226 24,838 630,644 43,148
Interest expense (641,834) (675,249) — —_
Payments between the College and
the Foundation 236,322 171,029 (236,322) (171,029)
Net nonoperating revenues 22,291,441 22,926,116 771,448 318,128
Changes in net position before
capital appropriations (1,038,822) (571,574) 505,210 (65,383)
Capital appropriations (note 11) 1,092,239 7,922,802 — -
Change in net position 53,417 7,351,228 505,210 (65,383)
Net position, beginning of year 67,968,911 60,617,683 5,279,246 5,344,629
Net position, end of year $ 68,022,328 67,968,911 5,784,456 5,279,246

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Tuition, residence, dining, and other student fees
Grants and contracts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments to students
Other cash receipts

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations
Federal grants (ARRA)
Funds held for others
Principal payments on notes payable
Contributions from Foundation

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets
Capital state appropriation
Cash held by bond trustee
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents (including cash held by State Treasurer), beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents (including cash held by State Treasurer), end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Fringe benefits provided by the State
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences and workers comp
Students’ deposits and unearned revenues
Deferred revenues

Net cash used by operating activities

Noncash transactions:
Fringe benefits provided by state and federal
CEIP debt financing

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

20

$

b

$

North Shore Community

College

2013 2012
17,458,764 15,631,614
18,482,860 18,344,182
(12.615.447) (11.858.802)
(38.246.444) (36.775.635)
(4.776.400) (3.757.654)
3.871,999 3,718,787
(15.824.668) (14.697.508)
17,995,882 17,466,009
—_ 55,790
(18.125) (9.433)
(276.718) (88.617)
236,322 171,029
17.937.361 17.594.778
(2.834.831) (10.364.695)
1,092,239 7,922,802
14,744 (8.548)
(636.722) (596.416)
(645.936) (677.971)
(3.010.506) (3.724.828)
18,113 24,182
18,113 24,182
(879,700) (803.376)
12,664,532 13,467.908
11,784.832 12,664,532
(23.330.263) (23.497.690)
2,959,971 2,327,364
4,657,852 5.865,635
135,039 (158.750)
31,106 (129.999)
(1.107.050) 471,874
(134.719) 499,557
979,973 (244.086)
68,272 84,160
(84.849) 84.427
(15.824.668) (14.697.508)
4,657,852 5.865,635
— 1,966,772
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

®)

Organization

North Shore Community College (the College) is a state-supported comprehensive college that offers
a quality education leading to associate degrees in the arts and sciences as well as one-year
certificate programs. With campuses located in Danvers, Beverly, and Lynn, Massachusetts, along
with other satellite campuses, the College provides instruction and training in a variety of liberal arts,
allied health, engineering technologies, and business fields of study. The College also offers evening
credit and noncredit courses as well as community service programs. The College is accredited by
the New England Association of Schools and Colleges.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

The College’s policy for defining operating activities in the statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position are those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the
payment received for services and payment made for the purchase of goods and services and certain
grants and contracts. Certain other transactions are reported as nonoperating activities. These
nonoperating activities include the College’s operating and capital appropriations from the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, net investment income, gifts, and interest expense.

During 2013, the College implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position which resulted in no
material changes to the accompanying financial statements.

North Shore Community College Foundation (the Foundation) is a legally separate tax-exempt
component unit of the College. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to
supplement the resources that are available to the College in support of its programs. The Board of
the Foundation is self-perpetuating and primarily consists of graduates and friends of the College.
Although the College does not control the timing or the amount of receipts from the Foundation, the
majority of resources received or held by the Foundation are restricted to the activities of the College
by the donors.

Because these resources held by the Foundation can only be used by or are for the benefit of the
College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in
the College’s financial statements.

During the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Foundation distributed $236,322 and $171,029,
respectively, to the College for both restricted and unrestricted purposes.
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the College at: One Ferncroft
Road, Danvers, MA 01923,

Net Position

Resources are classified for accounting purposes into the following four net asset categories:

Investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, repair, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted — nonexpendable: Net assets subject to externally imposed conditions that the College
must maintain them in perpetuity.

Restricted — expendable: Net assets whose use is subject to externally imposed conditions that can be
fulfilled by the actions of the College or by the passage of time.

Unrestricted: All other categories of net assets. Unrestricted net assets may be designated by actions
of the College’s board of trustees.

The College has adopted a policy of generally utilizing restricted — expendable funds, when
available, prior to unrestricted funds.

Cash Equivalents

The College considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity date of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities, including funds held by bond trustee, are stated at fair value.
The College has no donor-restricted endowments.

Capital Assets

Real estate assets, including improvements, are generally stated at cost. Furnishings, equipment, and
collection items are stated at cost at date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at fair value at date of
donation. In accordance with the state’s capitalization policy, only those items with a unit cost of
more than $50,000 are capitalized. Interest costs on tax-exempt debt, net of related interest income
relative to capital assets are capitalized during the construction period. College capital assets, with
the exception of land and construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 40 years.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Fringe Benefits

The College participates in the Commonwealth’s Fringe Benefit programs, including active
employee and post-employment health insurance, unemployment, pension, workers’ compensation,
and certain post-retirement benefits. Health insurance, unemployment, and pension costs are billed
through a fringe benefit rate charged to the College.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation leave and sick leave.
Accrued vacation is the amount earned by all eligible employees through June 30, 2013 and 2012.
The accrued sick leave balance represents 20% of amounts earned by those employees with 10 or
more years of state service at June 30, 2013 and 2012. Upon retirement, these employees are entitled
to receive payment for this accrued balance.

Workers’ Compensation

The Commonwealth provides workers’ compensation coverage to its employers on a self-insured
basis. The College records its portion of the workers’ compensation in its records on an actuarially
determined based on the College’s actual experience.

Students’ Deposits and Unearned Revenue

Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees related to certain summer programs and
tuition received for the following academic year are deferred and are recorded as revenues when
earned.

Student Fees

Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarships and fellowships applied to students’
accounts. Certain other scholarship amounts are paid directly to, or refunded to, the student and are
generally reflected as expenses.

Tax Status

The College is a governmental component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and is
therefore exempt from income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Cash and Investments

(@)

(b)

(©)

Investment Policy

In accordance with Chapter 15A of the Massachusetts General Laws, the board of trustees has
adopted an investment policy that applies to locally held funds that are not appropriated by the state
legislature or derived from federal allocations. The principal objectives of the investment policy are:
(1) preservation of capital and safety of principal, (2) minimizing price volatility, (3) liquidity,
(4) return on investment, and (5) diversification. The board of trustees supports the investments of
trust funds in a variety of vehicles, including bank instruments, equities, bonds, government, and
commercial paper of high quality and mutual funds holding in any or all of the above. The board of
trustees has established investment fund ceilings and broad asset allocation guidelines, but delegates
to the President or his designee, the authority to determine exact dollar amounts to be invested within
those established limits and guidelines.

The Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial management of the
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), a local investment pool for cities, towns, and
other state and local agencies within the Commonwealth. MMDT operates as a Rule 2a-7-like pool
and the value of the College’s investment in the MMDT represents its value of the pool’s shares.

The Short Term Asset Reserve (STAR) fund is designed as an investment vehicle for bond proceeds
of organizations that borrow through the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency. The STAR
fund operates as a Rule 2a-7-like pool and the value of the College’s investment in the STAR fund
represents its value of the pool’s shares. The custodian of the invested funds is U.S. Bank.

Summary of Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments consist of the following at June 30:

Deposits and investments 2013 2012
Cash in bank $ 9,668,676 10,566,076
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT) 1,338,993 1,336,096
Total cash and cash equivalents 11,007,669 11,902,172
Certificates of deposit 941,155 936,105
US Bank - STAR Fund 2,149,365 2,129,941
Century Bank 2 34,169
Total deposits and investments $ 14,098,191 15,002,387

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is assumed to arise when the amount of investments that the College has
with one issuer exceeds 5% or more of the total value of the College’s investments. The College
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

does not have a formal policy for concentration of credit risk. Investments representing more than
5% of the College’s total investments at June 30 consist of:

2013
Percentage
Issuer Investment type Fair value of the total
U.S. Bank Government investment pool 2,149,365 49
Commonwealth of
Massachusetts MMDT 1,338,993 30
Total $ 3,488,358 79%
2012
Percentage
Issuer Investment type Fair value of the total
U.S. Bank Government investment pool 2,129,941 48
Commonwealth of
Massachusetts MMDT 1,336,096 30
Total $ 3,466,037 78%
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the College’s deposits might not
be recovered. Deposits are made in domestic banks that are federally insured and in some banks that
are Massachusetts banks with supplemental insurance for those accounts exceeding the federally
insured limits. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, $1,804,211 and $1,086,096, respectively, of the
College’s bank balances of $6,922,091 and $9,070,270, respectively, were exposed to custodial
credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The College does not have a written policy regarding interest rate risk. At June 30, 2013
and 2012, all of the College’s investments have maturities of one year or less except for a certificate
of deposit for $150,000 with a maturity of 5 years.
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

()  Disclosure of Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to a debt security will not
fulfill its obligations. The College does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. The
following is a listing of credit quality ratings of the College’s investments in debt securities as of

June 30:
2013
Quality ratings
Rated debt investments Fair value AAA Unrated
US Bank Fund $ 2,149,365 2,149,365
Century Bank 2 2
Certificates of deposit 941,155 941,155
MMDT 1,338,993 1,338,993
Total $ 4429515 2,149,365 2,280,150
2012
Quality ratings
Rated debt investments Fair value AAA Unrated
STAR Fund $ 2,126,941 2,129,941
Century Bank 34,169 — 34,169
Certificates of deposit 936,105 - 936,105
MMDT 1,336,096 - 1,336,096

Total $ 4436311 2,129,941 2,306,370

(g) Investments of the Foundation

The Foundation’s investments consist of the following at June 30:

2013 2012
Mutual funds $ 5,120,399 4,473,249
Money market funds 146,512 218,718
Corporate debt securities 379,549 489,558
$ 5,646,460 5,181,525
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

The Foundation’s investment income consisted of the following for the years ended June 30:

2013 2012
Interest and dividend income, net of amortization 3 105,867 104,573
Realized gain on sale of securities 40,806 5,944
Unrealized net gain (loss) on investments 483,971 (67,369)
$ 630,644 43,148

Cash Held by State Treasurer

Accounts payable and accrued salaries to be funded from state-appropriated funds totaled $777,163 and
$762,360 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The College has recorded a comparable dollar amount
of cash held by the State Treasurer for the benefit of the College, which was subsequently utilized to pay

for such liabilities.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include the following at June 30:

2013 2012
Student accounts receivable h 3,878,110 3,985,897
Grants receivable 506,078 446,288
Other receivables 27,339 42,122
4,411,527 4,474,307
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (2,868,667) (2,796,408)
$ 1,542,860 1,677,899
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Capital Assets

Capital assets of the College consist of the following at June 30:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Building, including improvements
Furnishings and equipment
Books

Total being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building, including improvements
Furnishings and equipment
Books

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total being
depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

28

2013
Estimated lives Beginning Ending
(in years) balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications balance
$ 13,842,077 13,842,077
4,951,538 667,374 (2,077) (4,367,550) 1,249,285
18,793,615 667,374 (2,077) (4,367.550) 15,091,362
20-40 86,385,793 1,580,733 4,003,632 91,970,158
3-10 8,134,443 586,724 363,918 9.085,085
5 505,463 505,463
95,025,699 2,167,457 — 4,367,550 101,560,706
(32,927,127) (2,523,058) (35,450,185)
(7,283,396) (408,247) (7,691,643)
(505.463) (505,463)
(40,715,986) (2,931,305) — — (43,647.291)
54,309,713 (763.,848) — 4,367,550 57,913.415
$ 73,103,328 (96,474) (2,077) — 73,004,777



NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

2012
Estimated lives Beginning Ending
(in years) balance Additions Retirements  Reclassifications balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 13,842,077 13,842,077
Construction in progress 25,581,778 4,130,018 (24,760,258) 4,951,538
Total not being
depreciated 39,423,855 4,130,018 — (24,760,258) 18,793,615
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building, including improvements 20-40 53,625,525 8,000,010 24,760,258 86,385,793
Furnishings and equipment 3-10 7,933,004 201,439 8,134,443
Books 5 505.463 505,463
Total being
depreciated 62,063,992 8,201,449 24,760,258 95,025,699
Less accumulated depreciation:
Building, including improvements (31,028,301) (1.898,826) (32,927,127)
Furnishings and equipment (6,883,526) (399,870) (7,283,396)
Books (505,463) (505,463)
Total accumulated
depreciation (38,417,290) (2,298,696) = — (40,715,986)
Total being
depreciated, net 23,646,702 5,902,753 — 24,760,258 54,309,713
Capital assets, net $ 63,070,557 10,032,771 — — 73,103,328
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(6) Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities at June 30 consist of the following:

2013
Beginning Ending Current Long-term
balance Additions Reductions balance portion portion
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds payable $ 10,600,000 600,000 10,000,000 635,000 9,365,000
CREB boends payable 257,696 36,722 220,974 21,416 199,558
Less unamortized discount on
revenue bonds payable (144,796) (9.273) (135,523) (9,273) (126,250)
Total bonds payable,
net 10,712,900 — 627,449 10,085,451 647,143 9,438,308
Other long-term liabilities:
Note payable 2,400,110 276,718 2,123,392 287,840 1,835,552
Accrued sick and vacation 3,656,453 956,272 4,612,725 3,136,653 1,476,072
Workers’ compensation 312,438 23,701 336,139 50,791 285,348
Total other liabilities 6,369,001 979,973 276,718 7,072,256 3,475,284 3,596,972
Total long-term
liabilities $  17.081,901 979,973 904,167 17,157,707 4,122,427 13,035,280
2012
Beginning Ending Current Long-term
balance Additions Reductions balance portion portion
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds payable $ 11,175,000 — 575,000 10,600,000 600,000 10,000,000
CREB bonds payable 279,112 — 21,416 257,696 21416 236,280
Less unamortized discount on
revenue bonds payable (154,069) — (9,273) (144,796) (9.274) (135,522)
Total bonds payable,
net 11,300,043 = 587,143 10,712,900 612,142 10,100,758
Other long-term liabilities:
Note payable 521,955 1,966,772 88,617 2,400,110 276,718 2,123,392
Accrued sick and vacation 3,889,459 — 233,006 3,656,453 2,476,069 1,180,384
Workers’ compensation 323,518 — 11,080 312,438 47,116 265,322
Total other liabilities 4,734,932 1,966,772 332,703 6,369,001 2,799,903 3,569,098
Total long-term
liabilities $ 16,034,975 1,966,772 919,846 17,081,901 3,412,045 13,669,856
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June 30, 2013 and 2012

In fiscal 2011, the College entered an agreement with the Commonwealth’s Division of Capital Asset
Management (DCAM) to participate in the Massachusetts Clean Energy Investment Program (CEIP).
Under the program, DCAM is responsible for construction of specific energy conservation projects at the
College funded by CEIP Funds and proceeds of bonds issued by the Commonwealth. In 2012, the College
added $1,966,772 to its debt obligations for a 10 year note for the Clean Energy Investment Program
(CEIP). The first payment for the note, in February of 2012, was in the amount of $97,532 for interest
only. The note represents 53% of the anticipated total obligation of $3,686,772 for equipment, design and
installation of mechanical, electrical, controls and plumbing conservation measures at the Lynn and
Danvers Campuses. The remaining 47% or $1,600,000 will be paid for by the Department of Capital Asset
Management (DCAM).

In 2011, the College issued $148,050 of Series 2010A-9 bonds through the Massachusetts Development
Finance Agency for a Clean Renewal Energy Bond. Principal is payable annually and interest is payable
semi-annually commencing on November 1, 2010 through May 1, 2027 and bears interest at a rate of
3.5%. The debt proceeds plus a grant of $410,950 from DCAM will be used to fund a project for a
77 kilowatt photovoltaic system for the Danvers campus Berry building.

In December 2000, the College issued $7,610,000 of Series C bonds at fixed rates ranging from 4.3% to
5.25%. The bonds were issued through the Commonwealth’s Health and Education Facilities Authority
(HEFA) to partially finance the construction of a new classroom building on the Danvers campus. In
March 1998, the College issued $7,675,000 of Series B bonds through HEFA at fixed rates ranging from
3.5% to 5% to advance-refund the remaining balance of Series A bonds. The bonds are collateralized by
certain property.

The College is required to maintain escrows sufficient to pay one year’s principal and interest on the
bonds. These escrows amounted to $2,149,365 and $2,164,111 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
and are included as funds held by bond trustee on the statements of net assets.

In 2008, the College issued $190,600 of Series 2007A bonds through the Massachusetts Development
Finance Agency for a Clean Renewal Energy Bond. Principal is payable annually through December 31,
2021 and does not bear interest. The bond proceeds plus a grant in the amount of $358,100 from the
Massachusetts Technology Collaborative was used to fund a project for a 62.2 kilowatt solar photovoltaic
grid-tied panel on the roof of the Lynn Campus gymnasium.

As a result of a 2009 settlement with the Federal Department of Education (DOE), the College incurred a
long-term liability of $650,000, with a repayment schedule of monthly payments for a period of
seven years beginning January 2010 and ending December 2016. The interest rate on the note payable to
DOE is 3% for the periods ending June 30, 2013 and 2012.
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June 30, 2013 and 2012

As of June 30, 2013, principal and interest due on notes and bonds payable for the next five years and in
subsequent five-year periods are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019 -2023
2024 —2028

Principal Interest

944,255 589,966

980,836 545,701
1,027,895 499,318
1,028,600 450,542
1,022,466 401,555
4,335,789 1,198,994
3,004,525 218,910

$ 12,344,366 3,904,986

Total interest expense for 2013 and 2012 was $641,834 and $675,249, respectively.

The following schedule summarizes future minimum payments due under non-cancelable operating leases

as of June 30, 2013:

2014
2015
2016
2017

$ 495,971

499,918
100,215
19,968

351,116,072

Rental expense for operating leases was $466,882 and $467,218 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and

2012, respectively.

Restricted Net Position

The College is the recipient of funds that are subject to various external constraints upon their use, either as
to purpose or time. These funds are composed of the following at June 30:

Restricted — expendable:
Instructional and departmental uses
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Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Unrestricted Net Position

The College’s unrestricted net position at June 30, have been designated for the following purposes:

2013 2012

A restricted reserve equivalent to two years of the Series B

and C Bond repayment for the Allied Health Building

in Danvers $ 2,255,633 2,258,720
Deferred maintenance 250,000 250,000
Institutional financial aid 360,000 375,000
Contingencies 290,650 226,897
Reserve for replacement of capital assets 2,300,000 2,300,000
Science renovations 140,000 900,000
Reserve for strategic initiatives including grant

institutional requirements 300,000 250,000
Presidential search 60,000
Campus safety initiatives 175,000 134,000
Collective bargaining costs 853,000 693,832

$ 6,984,283 7,388,449

Contingencies

Various lawsuits are pending or threatened against the College that arose from the ordinary course of
operations. In the opinion of management, no litigation is now pending, or threatened, which would
materially affect the College’s financial position.

The College receives significant financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants.
Expenditures of funds under these programs require compliance with the grant agreements and are subject
to audit. Any disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits become a liability of the College. In the
opinion of management such adjustments, if any, are not expected to materially affect the financial
condition of the College.

The College participates in the Massachusetts College Savings Prepaid Tuition Program (the Program).
This Program allows individuals to pay in advance for future tuition at the cost of tuition at the time of
election to participate, increased by changes in the Consumer Price Index plus 2%. The College is
obligated to accept as payment of tuition the amount determined by this Program without regard to the
standard tuition rate in effect at the time of the individual’s enrollment at the College. The effect of this
program cannot be determined as it is contingent on future tuition increases and the Program participants
who attend the College.
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(10) Operating Expenses
The College’s operating expenses, on a natural classification basis, are composed of the following for the
years ended June 30:
2013 2012
Compensation and benefits 43,749,549 42,896,742
Supplies and services 11,380,977 12,280,412
Depreciation and amortization 2,959,971 2,327,364
Scholarships and fellowships 4,776,400 3,757,655
62,366,897 61,262,173
(11) State Appropriation
The College’s state appropriation is composed of the following for the years ended June 30:
2013 2012
Direct unrestricted appropriations 18,342,857 17,945,564
Add fringe benefits for employees on the state payroll 4,623,529 5,822,772
Less day school tuition remitted to the state and included
in tuition and fee revenue (1,034,407) (725,758)
Total unrestricted appropriations 21,931.979 23,042,578
Restricted appropriations 712,425 264,267
Add fringe benefits for employees on the state payroll 34,323 42,863
Total restricted appropriations 746,748 307,130
Capital appropriations 1,092,239 7,922,802
Total appropriations 23,770,966 31,272,510
(12) Fringe Benefit Program

NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

The College participates in the Commonwealth’s Fringe Benefit programs, including active employee and
postemployment health insurance, unemployment, pension, and workers’ compensation benefits. Health
insurance and pension costs for active employees and retirees are paid through a fringe benefit rate charged
to the College by the Commonwealth. Currently the obligation to provide these benefits is borne by the
Commonwealth.

(@) Retirement Plan

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is statutorily responsible for the pension benefits of College
employees who participate in the Massachusetts State Employees’ Retirement System
(the Retirement System). The Retirement System, a single employer defined benefit public employee
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NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

retirement system, is administered by the Commonwealth and covers substantially all nonstudent
employees. The College is charged for the cost of these fringe benefits by the Commonwealth. Such
pension expense amounted to $2,106,367 and $2,002,728 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Employees, who contribute a percentage of their regular compensation, fund the
annuity portion of the Retirement System. Annual covered payroll was approximately 83% and 77%
of annual total payroll for the College in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Insurance

The College participates in the various programs administered by the Commonwealth for property,
general liability, automobile liability, workers’ compensation, and health insurance. The
Commonwealth is self-insured for employees’ workers’ compensation, casualty, theft, tort claims,
and other losses. Such losses, including estimates of amounts incurred but not reported, are
obligations of the Commonwealth. For workers’ compensation, the Commonwealth assumes the full
risk of claims filed under a program managed by the Human Resources Division. For personal injury
or property damages, Massachusetts General Laws limit the risk assumed by the Commonwealth to
$100 per occurrence, in most circumstances. The Group Insurance Commission administers
healthcare and other insurance for the Commonwealth’s employees and retirees. The Commonwealth
assesses the state agencies and departments a portion of the cost related to health insurance, and as
such Government Accounting Standards Board No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, was appropriately implemented at the
Commonwealth, not the College.

Other Employee Benefits

The employees of the College can elect to participate in two defined contribution plans offered and
administered by the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education — an IRC 403(b) Tax-Deferred
Annuity Plan and an IRC 457 Deferred Compensation SMART Plan. Employees can contribute by
payroll deduction a portion of before-tax salary into these plans up to certain limits. The College has
no obligation to contribute to these Plans and no obligation for any future pay-outs.

Pass-Through Grants

The College distributed $8,796,344 and $7,022,907 during 2013 and 2012, respectively, for student loans
through the U.S. Department of Education federal direct lending program. These distributions and related
funding sources are not included as expenses and revenues or as cash disbursements and cash receipts in
the accompanying financial statements.
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Twoe Financial Center
60 South Street
Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Trustees
North Shore Community College:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of North Shore Community College (the College) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 10, 2013. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
the North Shore Community College Foundation, Inc., as described in our report on the College’s financial
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
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determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KPMe LP

October 10, 2013
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l\| New England Association of Schools and Colleges

] — \ Commission on Institutions of Higher Education
~ 3 Burlington Woods Drive, Suite 100 e Burlington, MA 01803
5 C phone: (781) 425-7785 e fax: (781) 425-1001

http://cihe.neasc.org

INTERIM REPORT FORMS (5th-year report)
DATE: June 2014

General instructions:

Interim Report Forms are included as patt of the institution's interim report (5th-year report) and may
otherwise be requested by the Commission. These forms are either identical to the analogous form in
the Data First set used for comprehensive evaluations OR a simplified version of the analogous form.

There are no forms in this set for Standards 7 or 8.

Each of the forms is on a separate spreadsheet of this Excel workbook. Much of the information
requested is readily available on audited financial statements, yearly IPEDS surveys, and other
institutional reports and publications.

When entering financial data, please round to the nearest thousand. If your institution tabulates data in
a different way from what is requested on the form, clearly explain your methodology on the form and
report the data in the way that is consistent with your institution's normal practices.

In the following forms, the column "Cutrent Year" refers to the year in which the report is submitted
to the Commission. On the Revenues and Expenses form, please make sure the information is
consistently presented from year to year, including the "Current Budget" and the "Next Year Forward"
columns. For example, if depreciation is allocated in the "Most Recently Completed Year" column, it
should also be allocated in the "Current Budget" column.

Interim Report forms are protected to ensure that they are not inadvertently changed, and cells
containing certain formulas are locked. If you wish to add rows or adjust column widths, you may
unprotect the spreadsheet by selecting the "Protection” option from the "Tools" menu. The required
password is "ark" (lower case, no quotation marks).

Instructions and definitions are embedded in each form. This version of the forms has been
formatted to print the forms with their accompanying instructions. If you with to print only the forms,

you can find a specially formatted version of them on the Commission website: http://cihe.neasc.org.

If you have questions about completing the forms, please call Kaslong Nda (781-425-7708) or any
other member of the Commission staff for assistance.




Institution Name:

OPE ID:

Financial Results for Year Ending
Most Recent Year
1 Year Prior
2 Years Pdor

Fiscal Year Ends on:

Budget / Plans
Current Year
Next Year

Contact Person:
Title:
Telephone No:
E-mail address

INTERIM REPORT FORMS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nozth Shore Community Collegg

217300 ]
Annual Audit
Certified:* Qualified
6/30/2014 Yes Ungqualified
6/30/13 Yes Ungqualified
6/30/12 Yes Ungqualified
6/30/11 Yes Unqualified
6/30 | (month/day)
7/1/13
7/1/14

Karen Hynick

[Vice President for Academic Affairs

[978 762-4000 x5516

[khynick@northshore.edu

|
|
=
l

*The college's financial statements were prepared in conformity with US GAAP and wete audited by
Certified Public Accountants who issued an unmodified report for all years in question.

June, 2014
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Standard 3: Organization and Governance
(Locations and Modalities)

Campuses, Branches, Locations, and Modalities Currently in Operation (See definitions, below) AY 2013/14
(Tnsert additional rows as appropriate.)

: City State or Country  Date Initiated Enrollment*®
B Main campus Danvers MA 1965 10,950
Bl Other principal campuses
£l Branch campuses
£l Other instructional locations
Distance Learning, e-learning Enrollment*®
Date Initiated 3,101 | duplicated
First on-line course 9/1/99
First program 50% or more on-line 9/1/02
[First program 100% on-line 9/1/03
Distance Learning, other Date Initiated Enrollment*
Modality [N/A ] [ |
ECorrcspondmcc Liducation Date Initiated Enrollment*
N/A | | | |
Dl,ow—Rcsidcncy Programs Date Initiated Enrollment®
Program Name [N/A B I_ | |

Definitions
Main campus: primary campus, including the principal office of the chief executive officer.

Other principal campus: a campus away from the main campus that either houses a portion or portions of the
institution's academic program (e.g., the medical school) or a permanent location offering 100% of the degree
requirements of one or more of the academic programs offered on the main campus and otherwise meets the
definition of the branch campus (below).

Branch campus (federal definition): a location of an institution that is geographically apart and independent of
the main campus which meets all of the following criteria: a) offers 50% or more of an academic program leading
to a degree, certificate, or other recognized credential, or at which a degree may be completed; b) is permanent in
nature; ¢) has its own faculty and administrative or supervisory organization; d) has its own budgetary and hiring
authority.

Instructional location: a location away from the main campus where 50% or more of a degree or Title-IV eligible
certificate can be completed.

Distance Learning, e-learning: A degree or Title-IV eligible cerficate for which 50% or more of the courses
can be completed entirely on-line.

Distance Learning, other: A degree or Title IV certificate in which 50% or more of the courses can be
completed entirely through a distance learning modality other than e-learning.

Correspondence Education (federal definition): Education provided through one or more courses by an
institution under which the institution provides instructional materials, by mail or electronic transmission, including
examinations on the materials, to students who are separated from the instructor. Interaction between the
instructor and the student is limited, is not regular and substantive, and is primarily initiated by the student.
Correspondence courses are typically self-paced. Correspondence cducation is not distance education.

* Repott here the annual unduplicated headeount for the most recently completed year.

June, 2014 3.2



Fall 2013

Standard 4: The Academic Program
(Summary - Enrollment and Degrees)

Fall Enrollment* by location and modality, as of Census Date FALL 2013

Degree Level/
Location & Modality

Associate's

Bachelor's

Clinical
doctorates (e.g.,
Pharm.D., DPT,

DNP)

Master's

Professional
doctorates (e.g.,
Ed.D., Psy.D,,
D.B.A)

M.D.,).D.,
DDS

Ph.D.

Total Degree-
Seeking FTE

Main Campus FTE

Other Campus FTE

Branches FTE

Other Locations FTE

Overseas Locations
FTE

On-Line FTE

146

Correspondence FTE

Low-Residency
Programs FTE

Total FTE

4,359

Unduplicated
Headcount Total

6,553

Degrees Awarded,
Most Recent Year

928

Student Type/
Location & Modality

Non-
Matriculated
Students

Visiting
Students

Title IV-Eligible Certificates:
Students Seeking Certificates

Main Campus FTE

2416

QOther Campus FTE

Branches FTE

Other Locations FTE

Overseas Locations
FTE

On-Line FTE

Correspondence FTE

Low-Residency
Programs FTE

Total FTE

Unduplicated
Headcount Total

699

Certificates Awarded,
Most Recent Year

1n.4.

Notes:

1) Enrollment numbers should include all students in the named categories, including students in continuing education and students enrolled through any

contractual relationship.

2) Each student should be recorded in only one category, e.g., students enrolled in low-residency programs housed on the main campus should be recorded
only in the category "low-residency programs.”

3) Please refer to form 3.2, "Locations and Modalitics," for definitions of locations and instructional modalities.

* For programs not taught in the fall, report an analogous term's enrollment as of its Census Date.

June, 2014
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Standard 4: The Academic Program
Headcount by UNDERGRADUATE Program Type

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year¥ Forward (goal)
For Fall Term, as of Census Date Fall 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014
Certificate 494 454 452 498 473
Associate [ es32 || ess0 | o186 || 6553 || 6225 |
Baccalaureate I I l | | | | ! I l
Total Undergraduate | 7,326 | | 7,284 | | 7,238 | | 7,051 | | 6,698 |
* Non Matriculated 659 690 674 699 664
4.2
Standard 4: The Academic Program
Headcount by GRADUATE Program Type
3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year¥ Forward (goal)
For Fall Term, as of Census Date (FY2 ) (FY2 ) (EY2 ) (FY2 ) (FY2 )
Master's | i | [l [ |
Doctorate r | I l l I | ] I I
First Professional I I I l I I | | | l

Other | I [l L [l |

Total Graduate | I | | | ] I | | I

4.3

Standard 4: The Academic Program
(Credit Hours Generated at Undergraduate and Graduate Levels)

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year* Forward (goal)
Fall 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014
Undergraduate 76,489 75,592 72,709 71,642 68,060
Graduate l [ il i il | |

#"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

4.4
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Standard 5: Faculty
(Rank, Fall Term)

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Year* Next Year
Prior Prior Priot Forward (goal)
(FY 2011) (FY 2012) (FY 2013) (FY 2014) (FY 2015)
FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
Number of Faculty
Professor 100 97 84 79 69
Associate 13 14 14 13 14
Assistant 14 18 22 26 32
Instructor 3 3 5 3 13 1 14 1 18 1
Other
Total 130 134 3 133 1 132 1 133 1
5.1

(Appointments, Tenure, Departures, and Retirements, Full Academic Year)

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Priot Prior Year Forwatrd (goal)
(FY 2011) | ®Fy2012) || Fy2013) || (Fy2om) || (Fy2015)
ET PT ET T ET ET FT PT ET PL
b ? 7 13 10 9 8
Faculty
Appointed
# of
Faculty in 2 112 110 97 90 85
Tenured
Positions
# of
Faculty = 4 1 3 2 il
Departing
# of
Faculty ? 4 4 11 6 9
Retiring

*"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014

53



Standard 6: Students

(Admissions, Fall Term)

Credit Seeking Students Only - Including Continuing Education

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Next Year
Priot Prior Prior Year® Forward (goal) |
Fall 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012 Fall 2013 FY2014
Freshmen - Undergraduate

Completed Applications 3,366 3,026 2,910 2,868 2,900
Applications Accepted 2,861 2,600 2,473 2411 2,500
Applicants Enrolled 1,667 1,604 1,530 1,489 1,500

% Accepted of Applied 85.0% 85.9% 85.0% 84.1% 86.2%

% Enrolled of Accepted 58.3% 61.7% 61.9% 61.8% 60.0%
Percent Change Year over Year

Completed Applications - -10.1% -3.8% -1.4% 1.1%

Applications Accepted - -9.1% -4.9% -2.5% 3.7%

Applicants Enrolled = -3.8% -4.6% -2.7% 0.7%
Average of Statistical Indicator of
Iﬂaﬁmde of Enrollees: (Define Below) | | l i | | | |

|
Transfers - Undergraduate

Completed Applications 1,260 1,224 1,104 1,069 1,100
Applications Accepted 944 918 830 790 800
Applications Enrolled 709 644 656 648 700

% Accepted of Applied 74.9% 75.0% 75.2% 73.9% 72.7%

% Enrolled of Accepted 75.1% 70.2% 79.0% 82.0% 87.5%

Master's Degree
Completed Applications
Applications Accepted
Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied
% Enrolled of Accepted

First Professional Degree - All Progtams

Completed Applications
Applications Accepted
Applications Enrolled
% Accepted of Applied
% Enrolled of Accepted

Doctoral Degree
Completed Applications
Applications Accepted
Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied
% Enrolled of Accepted

*"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014
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Standard 6: Students
(Enrollment, Fall Census Date)

Credit-Seeking Students Only - Including Continuing Education

UNDERGRADUATE
First Year Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Second Year

Third Year Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount

Total FTE

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Fourth Year

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Unclassified

Total Undergraduate Students
Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE
% Change FTE Undergraduate

GRADUATE
Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE
% Change FTE Graduate

GRAND TOTAL
Grand Total Headcount
Grand Total FTE
% Change Grand Total FIE

#"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim repost is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Cutrent Next Year
Prior Priot Prior Year* Forwatd (goal)
Fall 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014
3,695 3,371 3,064 3,018 2,958
4.290 4,603 4,848 4,732 4,637
7,985 7,974 7,912 7,750 7,595
El 5,098.9 || 4,972.8 | | 48473 || 4,776.1 | | 4,680.6 |
[ — | || | |
I || || ||
| | Il || ||
| | | || I |
3,695 3,371 3,064 3,018 2,958
4,290 4,603 4,848 4,732 4,637
7,985 7,974 7912 7,750 7,595
5,098.9 4,972.8 4.847.3 4,776.1 4,680.6
na -2.5% -2.5% -1.5% -2.0%
>
>
?
I || || ]
na = - = -
7,985 7,974 7,912 7,750 7,595
5,098.9 49728 4,847.3 4,776.1 4,680.6
na -2.5% -2.5% -1.5% -2.0%

6.2



Standard 6: Students
(Financial Aid, Debt, and Developmental Coutses)

Where does the institution describe the students it seeks to serve?

http://mww.northshore.edu/about/mission.htmi

Il

3 Yeats 2 Years Most Current Next Year
Prior Prior Recently Budget* Forward
Completed (goal)
Year
FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
Student Financial Aid
Total Federal Aid $20,179,223] $20,389,889| $22,203,435| $24,047,566| $25,372,366
Grants $13,071,884] $13,125,126] $13,224,114| $13,344,851| $13,385,366
Loans $6,079,462| $7,116,376] $8,826,711] $10,537,046] $11,835,000
Work Study $127,877 $148,387 $152,611 $147,831 $152,000
Total State Aid $1,756,585| $2,104,310]  $1,533,027|  $2,093,258 $2,155,000
Total Institutional Aid §725,095 $567,363 $628,101 $615,000 $630,000
Grants $725,095 $567,363 $628,101 $61,500 $400,000
Loans N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total Private Aid $374,451 $402,354 $410,241 $425,931 $440,000
Grants $118,253 $135,981 $150,956 $165,931 $120,000
Loans $256,198 $266,373 $259,285 $260,000 $270,000
Student Debt
Percent of students graduating with debe™*
Undergraduates 20% 21% 38% NA 35%
Graduates
For students with debt:
Average amount of debt for students leaving the institution with a degree
Undergraduates 6,254 6,299 6,242 NA
Graduates

Average amount of debt for students leaving the institution without a degree

Undergraduates
Graduate Students

Percent of First-year students in Develo

English as a Second/Other Language
English (reading, writing,

communication skills)
Math
Other

Three-year Cohort Default Rate

Most recent three years

5,951 6,812 4,674
mental Courses™#¥
7% 6% 5%
26% 25% 22%
47% 37% 42%
FY2009 FY2010 FY2011
12.8 10.6 8.1

* All students who graduated should be included in this calculation.
**Courses for which no credit toward a degree 1s granted.

©oe"Current Budget" refers to the year in which the team visit occurs, or, if these forms are being completed in
conjunction with an interim or progress report, the year in which the report is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014
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Standard 9: Financial Resources

(Statement of Financial Position/Statement of Net Assets)

2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior Most Recent Percent Change
FISCAL YEAR ENDS month &day: (06/30) (FY 2011 ) (FY 2012 ) Year FY2013 2 yrs-1 yr prior 1 yr-most _recent
ASSETS
CASH AND SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS $12,799,183 §11,902,172 $11,007,669 -7.0% -7.5%0
CASH HELD BY STATE TREASURLER S668,725 $762,360 $777,163 14.0%% 1.9%
DEPQOSITS HELD BY STATE TREASURER S0 $0 SO |- -
ACCQUNTS RECEIVABLE, NEET 51,519,149 $1,677.899 51,542,860 10.4% -8.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE, NET S0 S0 |- -
INVENTORY AND PREPAID EXPENSES $1,023,140 $1,153,139 $1,122,033 12.7% -2.7%
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS $923,831 $936,105 $941,155 1.3% 0.5%
LOANS TO STUDENTS $0 S0 S0 |- -
FUNDS HELD UNDER BOND AGREEMENT $2,172,659 $2,164,111 $2,149,367 -0.4% -0.7%
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 563,070,557 573,103,328 $73,004,777 15.9% -0.1%
OTHER ASSETS i =
TOTAL ASSETS $82,177,244 $91,699,114 | $90,545,024 [ 11.6% -1.3%
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES §7,267.795 $8,124,597 87,455,394 11.8% -8.2%
DEFERRED REVENUE & REFUNDABLE ADVANCES $785,989 S870,149 $938,421 10.7% 7.8%
DUE TO $TATE S0 SO 30 |- -
DUE TO AFFILIATES S0 SO S0 |- -
ANNUITY AND LIFE INCOME OBLIGATIONS S0 S0 S0 |- -
AMOUNTS HELD ON BEHALF OF OTHERS $186,174 $176,741 $158,616 -5.1% -10.3%
LONG TERM DEBT $11,821,998 $13,113,010 $12,208,843 10.9% -6.9%
REFUNDABLE GOVERNMENT ADVANCES S0 30 S0 |- -
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES $1.497.,605 $1.445,706 $1,761.422 -3.5% 21.8%
TOTAL LIABILITIES $21,559,561 | $23,730,203 | $22,522,696 10.1% -5.1%
NET ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
INSTITUTIONAL $8,362,471 $7,388,449 $6,984,283 -11.6% -5.5%
F FOUNDATION $2,009,499 $1,942,379 $2,190,957 -3.3% 12.8%
TOTAL $10,371,970 $9,330,828 $9,175,240 -10.0% -1.7%
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
INSTITUTIONAL $484,699 $156,807 $200,088 -67.6% 27.6%
FOUNDATION $1,622,191 $1,601,917 $1,823,611 -1.2% 13.8%
TOTAL $2,106,890 $1,758,724 $2,023,699 -16.5% 15.1%
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
INSTITUTIONAL $0 $0 $0 |- =
FOUNDATION $1,712,939 $1,734,950 $1,769,888 1.3% 2.0%
TOTAL $1,712,939 $1,734,950 $1,769,888 1.3% 2.0%
TOTAL NET ASSETS $14,191,799 $12,824,502 | $12,968,827 -9.6%% 1.1%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $35,751,360|  $36,554,705| $35,491,523 2.2%, -2.9%
June, 2014 9.1




Standard 9: Financial Resources

(Statement of Revenues and Expenses)

Most Recently Next Year
3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior Completed Year | Current Budget® Forward
FISCAL YEAR ENDS month &day: (06/30) (FY2011) (FY2012) (FY 2013) (FY 2014) (FY 2015
OPERATING REVENUES
TUITION & FEES 526,590,688 526,988,685 $27,900,897 $27,326,000 $26,735,150
ROOM AND BOARD S0 S0 SO
LESS: FINANCIAL AID (59,876,273) (511,358,071) (510,645,444) (12,700,000)|  (§13,700,000)
NET STUDENT FEES $16,714,415 $15,630,614 $17,255,453 514,626,000 $13,035,150
GOVERNMENT GRANTS & CONTRACTS $17,077,944 $17,596,745 517,923,999 $17,600,000 $17,600,000
PRIVATE GIFTS, GRANTS & CONTRACTS 51,035,749 $727,668 $703,590 $700,000 §700,000
OTHER AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES $3,674,010 $3,744,953 $3,565,462 $3,600,000 $3,500,000
ENDOWMENT INCOME USED IN OPERATIONS SO 30 S0 $0
OTHER REVENUE (specify): S67,258 $64,503 $88,130 $80,000 §72,000
OTHER REVENUE (specify): SO $0 $0 S0 S0
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS S0 $0 S0 S0 S0
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $38,569,376 $37,764,483 $39,536,634 $36,606,000 $34,907,150
OPERATING EXPENSES
INSTRUCTION $22,770,832 $23,892,631 $23,860,813 $22,324 898 522,884,885
RESEARCH S0 S0 S0 $0 $0
PUBLIC SERVICE $305,771 $307,819 $282,575 $264,325 $270,955
ACADEMIC SUPPORT $7,213,917 $7,396,447 $7,906,583 $7,395,816 57,581,330
STUDENT SERVICES $8,129,342 $8,378,393 $8,737,563 58,172,932 $8,377,938
INSTTTUTIONAL SUPPORT $6,474,580 §7,422,823 $6,117,991 $5,725,282 $5,868,892
FUNDRAISING ANIY ALUMNI RELATIONS S0 SO S0 S0 S0
OPERATION, MAINTENANCE OF PLANT (f not allocated) $4,602,553 54,281,029 $4,821,828 $4,514,673 $4,627,917
SCHOLARSHIPS & FELLOWSHIPS (Cash refunded by public
institutions) 54,952,803 $3,757,655 $4,776,400 54,467,094 $4,579,145
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES $3,489,870 $3,498.012 $3,403,173 $3,393,587 $3,087,043
DEPRECIATION (if not allocated) $2,340,870 $2,327,364 52,959,971 $2,900,000 $3,700,000
OTHER EXPENSES (specify): $0 S0 S0
OTHER EXPENSES (specify): $0 S0 S0
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES $60,280,538 $61,262,173 $62,866,897 $59,158,606 $60,978,105
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS ($21,711,162) ($23,497,690)| ($23,330,263)| ($22,552,606)| ($26,070,955)
NON OPERATING REVENUES
STATE APPROPRIATIONS (NET) $24,409,422 $23,405,498 $22,678,727 $23,040,000 $26,451,321
INVESTMENT RETURN $23,563 $24,838 $18,226 $18,000 $18,000
INTEREST EXPENSE (public institutions) ($597,571) ($675,249) ($641,834) ($589,966) ($333,804)
GIFTS, BEQUESTS & CONTRIBUTIONS NOT USED IN
OPERATIONS $515,738 $171,029 $236,322 $200,000 $200,000
OTHER (specify): $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER {specify): $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER (specify): $0 $0 $0
NET NON OPERATING REVENUES $24,351,152 $22,926,116 $22,291,441 $22,668,034 | $26,335,517
INCOME BEFORE OTHER REVENUES EXPENSES,
GAINS, OR LOSSES $2,639,990 ($571,574) ($1,038,822) $115,428 $264,562
CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS (public institutions) $16,103,096 $7,922,802 $1,092,239 $800,000
OTHER
TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET ASSETS $18,743,086 $7,351,228 $53,417 $115,428 $1,064,562

*"Current Budget" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014
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(Statement of Debt)

Standard 9;: Financial Resources

Most Recently Next Year

FISCAL YEAR ENDS month & day 3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior | Completed Year | Current Budget* Forward
(06/30) (FY2011) (FY2012) (FY 2013) (FY 2014) (FY 2015)
DEBT

BEGINNING BALANCE $16,499,031 $16,034,975 517,081,901 $17,157,707 $11,260,616

ADDITIONS $220,854 51,966,772 $979,973 S0 S0

REDUCTIONS (5684.910) (5919,846) (5904,167) (5944,259) $1,044,029

ENDING BALANCE $16,034,975 $17,081,901 $17,157,707 $16,213,448 $12,304,645

INTEREST PAID DURING FISCAIL

YEAR $597,571 $675,249 $641,834 $589,966 $333,804

CURRENT PORTION $3,391,131 53,412,045 $4,122,427 $1,534,221 $559,894

BOND RATING

DEBT COVENANTS: (1) DESCRIBE INTEREST RATE, SCHEDULE, AND STRUCTURE OF PAYMENTS; and
(2) INDICATE WHETHER THE DEBT COVENANTS ARE BEING MET.

LINE(S) OF CREDIT: LIST THE INSTITUTION'S LINE(S) OF CREDIT AND THEIR USES.

FUTURE BORROWING PLANS (PLEASE DESCRIBE)

*"Current Budget" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014
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Standard 9: Financial Resources

(Supplemental Data)
Most Recently Next Year
3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior | Completed Year | Current Budget* Forward
FISCAL YEAR ENDS month & day (6/30) (FY2011) (FY2012) (FY 2013) (FY 2014) (FY 2015)
NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 541,874,597 $60,617,683 $67,968,911 368,022,328 $68,137,756
TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET
ASSETS $18,743,086 $7,351,228 553,417 $115,428 $1,064,562
NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $60,617,683 $67,968,911 $68,022,328 $68,137,756 $69,202,318
FINANCIAL AID
SOURCE OF FUNDS
UNRESTRICTED INSTTTUTIONAL $300,000 $360,000 $360,000 $360,000 $360,000
FEDERAL, STATE & PRIVATE GRANTS $18,113,693 $18,324,413 $18,627,589 $19,800,000 $19,800,000
RESTRICTED FUNDS $484,699 $156,807 $200,088 $300,000 $300,000
TOTAL $18,898,392 $18,841,220 $19,187,677 $20,460,000 $20,460,000
25 DISCOUNT OF TUITION & FEES 71.1% 69.8% 68.8%0 68.8"% 68.8%
o UNRESTRICTED DISCOUNT 1.8% 0.6% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7%

PLEASE INDICATE YOUR INSTITUTION'S ENDOWMENT SPENDING POLICY:

minus Interest Receivable equals Base for the Year.

5% Spending policy of the Base for the Year, given the following formula: Total Assets (market value) minus Pledges Receivable

*"Current Budget" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

June, 2014
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PART II: DOCUMENTING STUDENT SUCCESS (THE S-SERIES)

The S-series of forms has been devised for institutions to present data on retention and graduation rates and
other measures of student success approptiate to the institution’s mission. (Standards for Accreditation: 6.6, 6.7, 6.8,
6.9, 10.10 and 10.12) Clearly, not every measure listed here is appropriate for every institution. At the same time,
some institutions may have multiple instances of a single item (e.g., licensure pass rates). In developing these
forms, the Commission recognizes the value of trends in data, and the importance of the institution’s own goals
for success. FEach form provides space for institutions to indicate definitions and the methodology used to
calculate measures of student success.

By listing several ways to measure student success and achievement, the Commission encourages institutions to
reflect on how they are using data to understand student success. The far right column within each form
provides institutions the opportunity to identify their goal for each measure of student success, and the date by
which the goal is expected to be attained. As always, the Commission expects that the institution’s mission will
provide helpful guidance in thinking about which measures of student success are most important and most
useful. In brief, the forms are:

S1. Retention and Graduation Rates. Here institutions ate asked to provide information on their IPEDS-
defined retention and graduation rates, along with their goals for these indicators. Institutions can also provide
additional retention and graduation indices, depending on their mission, program mix, student population,
locations, and method of program delivery. For example, some baccalaureate institutions may also track 4- and 5-
year graduation rates; some community colleges may find 4- and 5-year rates to complete an associate’s degree to
be helpful in evaluating their success with their student population. Institutions can also track the success of part-
time students, transfer students, or students studying at off-campus locations or in programs offered on-line.

S2. Other Measures of Student Achievement and Success. The measures recorded here are likely to be
mission-related. For example, some institutions may track the success of students gaining admission into
certain graduate- or first-professional degree programs. Community colleges may track the success of their
students entering baccalaureate programs. For some institutions, the number of students who enter programs
such as Teach for America, the Peace Cotps, or public service law may also represent indicators of institutional
effectiveness with respect to their mission.

S3.  Licensure Passage and Job Placement Rates. Institutions that prepare students for specific careers
will find it appropriate to record the success of their students in passing licensure examinations. Also included
in this form is the provision to record the success of students — perhaps by their academic major — in finding
employment in the field for which they were prepared.

S4. Completion and Placement Rates for Short-Term Vocational Programs. Institutions with such
programs in which students ate eligible for Title IV federal financial aid should use these forms.

Using the forms: By completing these forms eatly in the self-study process, institutions will have time to
collect and analyze all available information. The Appraisal section of the self-study provides a useful
opportunity for institutions to reflect both on the findings recorded in the forms and the extent to which they
have developed the systems to collect and use the most important data on student success. Similarly, the
Projection section affords institutions an opportunity to state their commitment for improvement in the area of
assessment.
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Form S1. RETENTION AND GRADUATION RATES

Student Success Measures/ 3 YF:ars 2 Yfiars 1 Y.car Most Recent Goal for 2014
Prior Performance and Goals Prior Prior Prior Year (2013)
IPEDS Retention Data Fali 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012 Fall 2013 Fall 2014
Associate degree students 61% 63% 60% 64% 65%
Bachelors degree students
IPEDS Graduation Data Fall 2007 Fall 2008 Fall 2009 Fall 2010 Fall 2011
Associate degree students 17% 19% 14% 17% 19%
Bachelors degree students
Other Undergraduate Retention Rates (1) Fall 2009  Fall 2010 Fall 2011 Fall 2012 Fall 2013
a | Fall to Fall Retention 60.4% 62% 58.5% 63.2% 64%
b | Fall to Spring Retention 91.7% 91.1% 93.2% 92.7% 93%
c
Other Undergraduate Graduation Rates (2) Fall 2007 Fall 2008 Fall 2009 Fall 2010 Fall 2011
a | IPEDS Transfer Out Rate 20% 16% 14% 23% 24%
2003 2004 2005 2006
Cohort Cohort Cohort Cohort
b | Achieving The Dream (ATD) Rate 40.8% 45.3% 43.9% 47.5% 48%
2003 2004
BHE Success Indicator 2003 Only
c | Year Available 73.4% 77.6%
Graduate programs *
Retention rates first-to-second year (3)
Graduation rates @ 150% time (4)
Distance Education
Course completion rates (5) | 78.1 | 82.3 | 83.9 | 81.6 82.0%

Retention rates (6)

Students move interchangeably from on campus to online courses, thus

separate retention rates are not calculated.

Graduation rates (7)

Programs at NSCC are not designated as “online.” Students make take
online courses to fulfill program requirements.

Branch Campus and Instructional Locations

Course completion rate (8)

Retention rates (9)

Graduation rates (10)

Definition and Methodology Explanations

1

2
3
4

L

* An institution offering graduate degrees must complete this portion.
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Form S2. OTHER MEASURES OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT AND SUCCESS

Measures of Student Achievement
and Success/ Institutional 3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior
Performance and Goals

Most Recent

Year (2013 ) Goal for 2014

Success of Students Pursuing Higher Degree
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Annualized Credit Course
Completion Rate™* 75.2% 75.9% 77% 77.4% 80%

1
2
3

4

Definition and Methodologv Explanations

*Mass Department of Higher Education Performance Measure for Community Colleges

Rates at Which Graduates Pursue Mission-Related
Paths (e.g., Peace Corps, Public Service Law)

1 Not available

4

Definition and Methodologv Explanations

Rates at Which Students Are Successful in Fields
for Which They Were Not Explicitly Prepared

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

% of Career Program
Graduates Employed (in
1 related or unrelated field)** 91.7% 95.7% 86.0% 74.4% Not available

% of Transfer Program
Graduates who successfully
transferred to another
college/university and are

2 | currently attending school** 93.7% 92.2% 98.8% 94.3% Not available

3

4

Definition and Methodology Explanations

**Source: Career and Transfer Program Graduate 10 Month follow up survey data

Documented Success of Graduates Achieving Other
Mission-Explicit Achievement (e.g., Leadership,
Spiritual Formation)

1 Not available

2

L

3

Definition and Methodology Explanations

Other (Specify Below)

1

5

=

Definition and Methodology Explanations
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Form S3. LICENSURE PASSAGE AND JOB PLACEMENT RATES

: ; : Most Recent
2
3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior Year (2012) Goal for 2014

State Licensure Passage Rates * 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Nurse Education Licensure
1 Exam 92% 89% 93.2% 90% 90%
2 -# Passed # Examined 57/62 49/55 55/59 52/58
3 Cosmetology State License 87% 91% 100% 97% 97%
4 -# Passed # Examined 27/31 31/34 29/29 29//30
Practical Nursing Licensure
5 Exam 91% 100% 100% 100% 100%
-# Passed # Examined 29/32 26/26 31/31 29/29
6 Veterinary Tech Exam 50% 37% 66% 88% 88%
-# Passed # Examined 5/5 545 6/3 162

National Licensure Passage Rates *

National Federation of State
Boards in Physical Therapy's

1 National licensing Exam 85.5% 95% 100% 88% 88%
-# Passed # Examined 23/26 19,20 22/22 15/17
Respiratory Care Licensure
2 Exam 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
-# Passed # Examined 11/11 6/6 12/12 11/11
Amer Registry of Radiologic
3 Technology 100% 100% 89% 100% 100%
-# Passed # Examined 19/19 18/18 14/16 18/18

Aviation Science — Single
Engine Commercial Pilot

4 Cert 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
-# Passed # Examined 3/3 2/2 4/4 1/1
Medical Assisting — CMA
5 (AAMA) 73% 100% 78.5% 64% 64%
-# Passed # Examined | 8/11 6/6 11/14 9/14
Occupational Therapy Nat’]
6 Cert Exam 92.3% 86% 75% 85% 85%
-# Passed # Examined 24/26 18/23 21/28 35/41

Job Placement Rates

1 | (SEE BELOW)

* For each licensure exam, give the name of the exam above along with the number of students for whom scores are available and the total
number of students eligible to take the examination (e.g. National Podiatric Examination, 12/14). In following columns, report the passage
rates for students for whom scores are available, along with the institution's goals for succeeding years.

** For each major for which the institution tracks job placement rates, list the degree and major, and the time period following graduation
for which the institution is reporting placement success (e.g., Mechanical Engineer, B.S., six months). In the following columns, report the
percent of graduates who have jobs in their fields within the specified time.

Institutional Notes of Explanation

Placement rates for the degree programs provided below are calculated from the 10 month follow up survey results. Total
a | emploved students are divided by total respondents to determine a “placement rate”™

DEGREE PROGRAM PLACEMENT RATES
A Indicates AA, ** Indicates AS, “*" Indicates AAS
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Goa] 2013

CODE PROGRAM Class of 2009 Class of 2010 Class of 2011 Class of 2012
ACD™ | Business Accounting 78.6% 90.0% 100.0% 82.4% R
NA
AMD™ | Aviation Management 100.0% 100.0%
NA
ASD M | Animal Care Specialist 100.0% 75.0% 100.0% 75.0%
NA
AVD™ | Aviation Science 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
BOD" Biotechnology 100.0% 100.0% 75.0%
NA
CED™ | Computer Applications 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
CKD™ | Computer Networking 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 66.7%
NA
CLD" A | Culinary Arts & Food Service 88.9% 62.5% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
CPD Computer Prog for Bus 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
CRD™ | Criminal Justice 83.0% 93.6% 87.7% 23.7%
NA
DAD™ | Drug & Alcchol Rehab 100.0% 86.7% 91.7% 37.5%
NA
DDD™ | Developmental Disabilities 85.7% 100.0% 83.3% 100.0%
NA
EADM Executive Administrative Asst 100.0% 100.0% 75.0% 100.0%
NA
EGDA% Early Childhood Education 95.5% 90.9% 100.0% 75.0%
NA
ELan Floriculture 100.0% 0.0%
NA
FPD"™ Fire Science Degree 100.0% 100.0% 85.7% 100.0%
NA
FSD~ | Food Science & Safety 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
GDD™ | Digital Graphic Design 100.0% 100.0% 77.8% 71.4%
NA
HM”? Mental Health 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%
NA
HOD~* | Hotel Management 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
HSD™ Gerontology 'Social Welfare 100.0% 100.0% 33.3% 83.3%
NA
HUD™* | Environmental Horticulture 100.0% 100.0% 28.6% 66.7%
NA
LAD™ | Legal Administrative Asst 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NA
LHD" Health Science 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 24.0%
NA
MAD™M | Medical Adm Asst/Secretary 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 90.0%
NA
MGD” | Business Management 88.9% 93.8% 100.0% 66.7%
NA
MKD"" | Business Marketing 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 16.7%
NA
NSD™M™ Nutrition Sciences & Diet Tech 100.0% 77.8% 100.0%
NA
NSG™ Nurse Education 84.6% 97.3% 88.1% 81.1%
CLASS OF CLASS OF CLASS OF CLASS OF GOAL 2013
CODE PROGRAM 2009 2010 2011 2011
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NA

OTA”™ | Occupational Therapy Asst 92.9% 90.0% 100.0% 95.7%
PAD™M Paralegal Studies 88.9% 100.0% 81.8% 87.5% N
PTAM Physical Therapist Assistant 100.0% 100.0% 86.7% 100.0% "
RAD™ | Radiologic Technology 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% "
RSPM™ Respiratory Therapy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% "
TGD™ | Tourism & Guest Services 100.0% 100.0% 57.1% 100.0% M
TTV | Telecomm. Tech Nynex 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% e
VET* | Veterinary Technology 100.0% 100.0% 88.9% 83.3% "
WDV Web Development 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% o
CERTIFICATE PROGRAM PLACEMENT RATES

CLASS OF CLASS OF CLASS OF CLASS OF Goal 2013
CODE | PLACEMENT RATES 2009 2010 2011 2012
ACN Accounting Cert 0% 0% 100% 60% NA
ASC Animal Care Specialist Cert 0% 100% 100% 100% NA
BOC Biotechnology Cert 50% 0% 100% 0% NA
CAl CAD Certificate 33% 100% 100% 66.7% NA
CEC Computer Applications Cert 0% 100% 100% 100% NA
CKC Computer Networking Cert 100% 100% 100% 0% NA
CLC Culinary Arts & Food Svc Cert 0% 75% 100% 100% NA
CRC Criminal Justice Cert 5.9% 100% 87.2% 50% NA

Developmental Dis Caseworker
DSC Cert 60% 100% 83.3% 71.4% NA
ERC Energy Utility Tech Cert 69.2% 100% 100% 87.5% NA
FSC Fire Science Cert 25% 100% 71.4% 100% NA
Gerontology'Active Specialist

GER Cert 0% 0% 100% 0% NA
GDC Digital Graphic Design Cert 0% 100% 33.3% 100% NA
GER Gerontology Cert 0% 100% 75% 60% NA
ITC Early Childhood Education Cert 0% 100% 100% 80% NA
LEC Law Enforcement Cert 0% 87.5% 75% 100% NA
LOS Legal Office Cert 0% 0% 100% 100% NA
MAC Medical Assisting Cert 100% 88.9% 100% 80% NA
MHC Mental Health Cert 0% 100% 75% 71.4% NA
MNC Adv. Mfg. Tech 0% 0% 0% 100% NA
MOC Medical Coding Cert 0% 60% 70% 100% NA
MOS Medical Office Support Cert 0% 66.7% 0% 100% NA
OFC Word Processing Cert 100% 100% 0% 100% NA
PAD Paralegal Cet 15.4% 88.9% 72.2% 70% NA

CLASS OF CLASS OF CLASS OF CLASS OF
CODE | PROGRAM 2009 2010 2011 2012 GOAL 2013
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PAE Teacher Aide Cert 25% 100% 87.5% 71.4% NA
PNR Practical Nursing Cet 31.6% 100% 90% 86.4% NA
PYK Youth Worker 0% 100% 100% 100% NA
SAC Substance Abuse Counseling 14.3% 100% 17.6% 71.4% NA
SNC Special Needs Cert 0% 0% 0% 100% NA
SRG Surgical Tech Cert 12.5% 100% 42.9% 85.7% NA
WDV Web Development 100% 100% 100% 100% NA
WHA Wellness & Healing Arts Cert 0% 100% 100% 100% NA
ZC8 Cosmetology Clock Hour Cert 73.9 100% 100% 85.7% NA

* List each short-term vocational training program separately. In the following columns indicate the annual weighted average completion

rate for the most recent and two prior years. In the final two columns, list institutional goals for the next two years.

#* List each short-term vocational training program separately. In the following columns indicate the annual weighted job placement rate

for the most recent and two prior years. In the final two columns, list the institutional goals for the next two years.

July 2011




Form S4. COMPLETION RATES FOR SHORT-TERM VOCATIONAL TRAINING PROGRAMS
FOR WHICH STUDENTS ARE ELIGIBLE FOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL AID

*Note: completion rates for the certificate programs below were calculated bv dividing the number of graduates from the FTFTDS Cohort
within three years (IPEDS RATE) by the number of students originally enrolled in the program at their start date. IPEDS calculates the rate
by race and gender, but not by program, because students may change majors during the course of their enrollment period and therefore

rates may be unusual e.g.. students may complete a program in which they were not originally enrolled.

FTFTDS07 FTFTDS08 FTFTDS09 FTFTDS10 FTFTDS11

CODE | PROGRAM
Computer Aided
Design/ Certificate
(CAD)

CAI 0 100% 0 0 NA
Criminal Justice
Certificate

CRC 350% 400% 0 100% NA
Energy Utility
Technology Cert

ERC 100% 150% NA 77.8% NA
Law Enforcement 0
Certificate

LEC 100% 0 0 NA
Medical Assisting
(Certificate)

MAC 233.3% NA NA 400% NA
Mental Health

MHC | Certificate 0 100% NA 100% NA
Medical Coding

MOC 100% 50% 0 20% NA
Medical Office
Support (Certificate)

MOS 0 5%0 0 0 NA
Office Support
Certificate

OFC 0 NA 50% 25% NA
Paralegal Certificate

PAD 300% 0 0 NA
Practical Nursing

PNR 50% 85.7% 0 33.3% NA
Substance Abuse
Cnsl (Certificate)

SAC 60% NA 300% 33.3% NA
Surgical Technology
(Certificate)

SRG 50% 66.7% NA 100% NA
Web Development

WDV 100% 0 0 0 NA
Cosmetology
Certificate

ZCS 116.7% 90% 400% 91.3% NA

Note; “0" is provided where the calculation is not possible. NA is provided where there is no data. Because NSCC does not calculate
completion rates by program, no goal is available.
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